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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”)
of China Heclthwise Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | present to you the annual results of

the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

On 23 April 2018, the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong has changed to Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong and the telephone
and facsimile numbers of the Company have changed to (852) 2268
8248 and (852) 2548 5575.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year” or "Period” or
"FY18/19"), the Group's turnover from continuing operations
decreased by approximately (“approx.”) 19% to approx. HK$452
million, compared with approx. HK$561 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “FY17/18" or "Corresponding Period”).

Gross profit margin from confinuing operations for the Year was
approx. 36% compared to approx. 29% in the Corresponding Period.
Overall, loss attributable to owners of the Company was approx.
HK$95 million compored with HK$186 million in the Corresponding
Period. The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (FY17/18: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, revenue from continuing operations decreased due
to the net effect of (1) the substantial decrease in sales from consumer
electronic products segment from approximately HK$292 million in
FY17/18 to approximately HK$42 million in FY18/19 as a result
of the expiry of confract with Haier in December 2017; and (2) the
increase in revenue in the OBM toys, money lending and investment in
financial instruments segments.

The Group recorded a decrease in loss for the year ended 31 March
2019 as compared fo the year ended 31 March 2018. The decrease
in loss was mainly due fo (i} significant decrease in impairment loss
and fair value loss on financial instruments; (i) gain on disposal
of subsidiaries engaged in the OEM toy business; [iiij decrease in
segment losses of the consumer electronic products business; [(iv] an
improvement in results of the money lending segment of the Group;
and partially offset by (v) the expenses incurred by the Group relating
to the share options granted fo the directors of the Company during the
Year; and (vi] increase in the impairment loss on property, plants and
equipment during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese
and other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and
dried seafood products fo wholesaler and retailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum
Yung Drugs Company Llimited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and retail of “Sum Yung" (2E) and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” (Fg ik
77) is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Year, this segment had contributed revenue of approx.
HK$155 million (period from 1 July 2017 1o 31 March 2018:
HK$134 million) and segment profit of approx. HK$2 million (period
from 1 July 2017 to 31 March 2018: HK$6 million). As ot 31 March
2019, there were 11 (31 March 2018: 11) refail shops of Nam Pei
Hong.

Consumer Electronic Products
Childcare Products

The main childcare products of the Group are small baby appliances
[electric sterilizer, baby botile & food warmer, baby food processor,
baby hair cutter, baby air purifier, efc.). The confract between the
GCroup and Haier was expired in December 2017 which have a
significant negative impact on the Group's revenue and profit.

The management sfreamlined the disfribution networks to cope with the
negative impact of contract expiry with Haier. We will focus more on
large distributors with extensive networks in the future. The streamline
of the distribution networks facilitates network management and has
reduced cost during the Year.

OBM Toy

The strengthened and continued recovery of the North American market
has positively impacted the sales of our Own Brand Manufacturing
("OBM") business. Kid Galaxy has recorded a sharp increase in
sales by approximately 47% overall due to the much improved market
condifion in the United States and the fovorable market respond to
our new line of products. Sales for the year ended 31 March 2019
increased approx. 47% from approx. HK$125 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018 to approx. HK$184 million for the year ended
31 March 2019.
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The sales increase was mainly due to reducing prices and lowering
margins in order to enlarge deliveries to North America’s largest
membership only retail warehouse club, largest discount retail chain
stores as well as the largest online retailer, accounting for approx. 94%
of the segment turnover (FY17,/18: 99%).

For the year ended 31 March 2019, North America remained our
major destination for the Group's OBM toys, with shipments amounting
to approx. HK$173 million compared to HK$123 million for year
ended 31 March 2018, accounted for approx. 38% (FY17/18: 22%)

of the Group's tofal revenue from continuing operations.

In view of the increased OBM foy sales mainly in the United States of
America, account receivables increased from approx. HK$14 million
as at 31 March 2018 to approx. HK$31 million as at 31 March
2019.

Money Lending

During the Year, the Group's money lending business generated
interest income on loans amounting to approximately HK$23 million
(FY17/18: HK$1 million], and reported a segment profit (before
taxation) of approximately HK$8 million (FY17/18: HK$1 million).
The average monthly outstanding balance of loans receivables was
approximately HK$221 million in the Year. During the Year, the Group
granted new loans in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$453 million to 10 customers. The Group's customers made
drawings in the aggregate principal amount of HK$400 million from
the existing and new loans, and repaid HK$ 176 million to the Group.
At the end of the Year, the direciors assessed the collectability of the
loans receivable. Although there was no objective evidence that the
Group would not be able to collect its loans receivable, an allowance
for expected credit losses on loans receivable of approximately
HK$5 million was recognised based on a valuation prepared by an
independent professional valuer. Such allowance for expected credit
losses was made in accordance with the new impairment model
of HKFRS @ Financial Instruments and had no effect on the Group's
cashflow.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE

Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments business
generated dividend income and sale of financial instruments amounting
to approximately HK$43 million (FY17/18: Nil), and reported a
segment loss of approximately HK$2 million (FY17/18: HK$67
million) including (i) a loss of approximately HK$43 million (FY17/18:
HK$67 million) arising on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and (i) a redlised gain of approximately
HK$43 million (FY17/18: Nil) by disposal of certain listed equities.
An investment advisor was engaged by the Group in July 2018 fo
further strengthen the Group's investment portfolio management.

Movements in the listed equities held by the Group during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as follows:

REEMTA
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—\MBRFE T) RESOHMEBERO_BEL
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31 March 31 March

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

=Z=A=+t—-B =A=t+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At beginning of year F1) 232,722 174,380
Acquisitions g 196,304 117,281
Loss arising on change in fair value N EEEL 2 EIE (42,509) (58,939
Disposals k=3 (158,495) -
At end of year FR 228,022 232,722
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Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the

Group at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Name of Hong Kong listed equities
ERLTRARH

IDG Energy Investment Limited (stock code: 650)
IDGEERREBRAA* (IDG Energy
Investment Limited) (B 345 : 650)

Global Mastermind Capital Limited
[stock code: 905)

BRABRERRL *(Global Mastermind
Capital Limited) (B35 : 905)

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited
[stock code: 376)

ERERMEMARLT (RHORSH:376)

Huanxi Media Group Limited (stock code: 1003)

HEBEEEERAR* (Huanx Media Group
Limited) (4345 1 1003)

Huayi Tencent Enfertainment Company Limited
[stock code: 419)

EERARLARAR (RORK:419)

PacRay International Holdings Limited
[stock code: 1010)

AEEBRERERLT (RHARS:1010)

SuperRobofics Limited (stock code: 817¢)
BABRERAR (RHRE:8176)

Principal activities

TREH

Upstream ol and gas business, ING liquefaction and
exporfing, LNG imporfing, processing and sales,
and ING logistics services, as well as related

energy investment fund management

LiREEE RERAR ([ING ) R{ERED  INGER

MIRBERINGHREH AEABRERREESER
Investment in listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and
in the PRC
RENBERTENLTRFLHAT

Provision of financial services, including securities brokerage,
wealth management and investment, corporate finance
consultancy, ESOP (Employee Stock Ownership Plan]
administration, and investment research.

RUSREBY ARRSEL HEEERRE
TEBEFARY BIRRTUEERRERR-

Media and entertainment related businesses, and provision of
property agency related services

BERRELRBXEURRANERERBRY

(i) Entertainment and media business, and (ii) provision of
offline healthcare and wellness services

(IRERBEESR Ri)RESTRERBLRE-

Design and sales of integrated circuits and semi-conductor
parts, provision of finance lease services, frading of
construction materials and corporate administration and
investment functions

ERERRFERIARIREE RUREAERY -
BHESURDATRRRERE

Sale of beauty products, provision of therapy services and

provision of engineering products and related services

HEXRER RURERBREMIREREARRR
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Fair value as
compared fo Fair value
the consolidated gain/(loss)
Cost of Number of fofal assets of  recognised during
shares ot~ shares held at Fair value af the Group af  the year ended
31-Mar-19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19
REE
R=ZB-h¥ “E-NE
ZA=+-8 =A=t-8
RZB-1E  RZB-hE  RIB-NEF ATEEKEE  LEEERI
ZA=t-B% ZA=t-B ZA=t-BN HKREEAEZ ZBTE
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activities BRBEE  KSENRHHE ATE k& s/ (F8)
ERLTRAER TEEH HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TAT
KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 439) The research and development and manufacture of innovative
ABNBARLE (RHARSH:439) products for future technology businesses, and the
provision of other innovative technology service solutions
RERRRAXBARERFRHEUR
REAMAFRARBRADRER 28,000 10,000 6,500 1% (11,600)
CBK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428) Provision of catering services in Hong Kong
ERERERAT (RGRR:6428) REBRERARY 4,835 25,248 5,908 1% 404
Frontier Services Group Limited (stock code: 500)  The provision of aviation and logistics services,
ERBEEMERDT* (Fronfier Services the provision of online financial market information,
Group Limited) ( BR3%3% : 500) and other direct invesiments
RERBMERDRRE RESLERTHEREZRR
HERRE 5,160 4,000 4,640 1% 2,040)
Wuxi Biologics (Cayman| Inc. The provision of endo-end solufions and services for
ERENBHARAF* (Wuxi Biologics biologics discovery, development and manufacturing to
(Cayman] Inc.) customers involving in biclogics industry
OREENETRNEFRURT MRREEENEN
RIRBRERRBH 4979 60 4,595 1% (384)
Lajin Enfertainment Network Group Limited The business of investment and production of movie and
(stock code: 8172) media confents, and the provision of artist
AEBREEERAT* (Lojin Entertainment management services
Network Group Limited) (B35 : 8172) hEEYRERARZRERBELEE REAEASERE 9,904 23,580 2,924 1% 5,329)
AlA Group Limited (stock code: 1299) The wrifing of life insurance business, providing life insurance,
RARBRERERAR (RERK:1299) accident and health insurance and savings plans throughout
Asia, and distribufing related investment and other financial
services products to ifs customers
EENERREREY RUEAR BHRBERRA
wETH ARDAFFIBEBRERAMERBHER 2,443 32 2,532 1% 89
Swire Pacific Limited ‘A" (stock code: 19) Property, Aviation, Beverages, Marine Services and
AERBBRAFA (RHKH:19) Trading & Industril
WE RE KA BXRENEARER 2,289 25 2,518 1% 229
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (stock code: 16)  Development of and investment in properties for sale and rent,
FRENERRERAT (RHRE:16) hotel operation, felecommunications, transport
infrastructure and logistics.
BRRREMENZIMHERAE LR SEEE ER-
ERERROR- 2,236 17 2,316 1% 80
*EHRES)
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Details of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group at RZTE—NF=ZA=+—H XxEEFENESE

31 March 2018 are as follows: ERBRAGFENT
Fair value as Fair value loss
compared fo  and impaiment
e consolidated  loss recognised
Number of fotal assefs of during the
Cost of shores af shres held o Fair volue of the Group af year ended
31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18
“E-N\F
R-Z-N\§ ZA=+-H
=R=t+-A LLFE
RIB-\E  RIB-\E RITZ-\F QTEELEE BERZ

ZA=t-B&  ZA=t-B ZA=t-BH  GAREEEE DYHERE

Name of Hong Kong listed equiies Principal activities RigA  HEHRHEA NTE 0B RAEEE
EBLTRALE TEEH HK§'000 ‘000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR TR

Available-forsale investments

THHERE
Global Mastermind Holdings Limited Provision and operation of travel business, treasury management
[stock code: 8063) business, money lending business and provision of securities,
RRABREER 27 *(Global Mastermind futures and asset monagement services
Holdings Limited] ( R34%3 : 8063) RUREBRERY HETBER HEXHUR
RERS HEREEEERY 152,700 1,020,000 110,160 18% [34,540)
Global Mastermind Capital Limited Investment in listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and
(stock code: 905) in the PRC
BRABREFR R A*(Global Mastermind RERERERRTENLARFLTAR
Capital Limited) (& 13 : 905) 87,975 195,500 56,695 9% [13,685)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BAFEHAEH 22 BEE
PacRay International Holdings Limited Design and sales of integrated circuits and semi-conductor
[stock code: 1010) parts, provision of finance lease services, trading of
AEERZRARAA (RBRE:1010) construction matericls and corporate administration and
investment functions
SHERRYERIARIREE RUREAERY
ENEAURAATHRRRERH 9,000 5,000 10,000 2% 1,000
KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 439) The research and development and manufacture of innovative
KENEBRAF (RHRHK:439) products for future technology businesses, and the provision of

other innovative technology service solutions
UERRRMEBAFERTRREUR
RELBAFRGRBRATRER 28,000 10,000 18,100 3% 9,900]

* EREE
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EFEHE

Fair value as Fair value loss
compared o and impaiment
the consolidated ~loss recognised
Number of fofal assets of during the
Cost of shares af shares held af Fair value af the Group at year ended
31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18
“EN\E
RZZ-\& =ZA=+-H
=R=t-A R
RZB-NE  RIE-N\E RIE-NF  ATEEREE B®RZ
ZA=t-HAf  ZA=t-B ZA=t-BH  REEEHE RTEER
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activifies BRiRA  HENRHHUE DT pdid: kA EEE
ERLTRAER TEEH HK§'000 '000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TERL TH TERL TEL
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited The provision of financial services, including securities
[stock code: 376) brokerage, wealth management and investment,
ZRSREEARDA (RARE:376) corporate finance consultancy, ESOP (Employee Stock
Ownership Plan] administration, and investment research
RERHEREY BERSLL HEEERRE:
TPEREZHRY BIRRHUESERRENR 19,682 4,126 17,330 3% [2,352)
Frontier Services Group Limited (stock code: 500]  The provision of aviation and logistics services, the provision of
ERFEMEBAT* (Fronfier Services online financial market information, and other direct investments
Group Limited) ( BR3%3% : 500) RERUMERDAESR RESLERTHEREER
HHERRE 5,160 4,000 6,680 1% 1,520
Lajin Enfertainment Network Group Limited The business of investment and production of movie and media
[stock code: 8172) contents, and the provision of arfist management services
HEPREEERAT* (Lojin Entertainment REEFREBAT RERMERY REMABACERY
Network Group Limited) (B35 : 8172) 9,904 23,580 8,253 1% [1,651)
CBK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428) Provision of catering services in Hong Kong
ERERERDLE (RGRR:6428) RERRGERRY 4,835 25,248 5,504 1% 669

The Group had made investments with a short to long ferm perspective
with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified porifolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equiies held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor sentiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company's shares and fundamentals
of an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in
the Group's equity porffolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve ifs performance.
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PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Chinese Health Products

In view of the increasing awareness in health and the aging of
population in Hong Kong, demand for health care products, especially
"Sum Yung” (2E) and dried seafood in Hong
Kong has grown steadily in recent years.

Chinese medicine,

The Group will confinue to invest in the health care business and
to develop its retail business of “Sum Yung” (2%) dried seafood
products and other healthy food products in Hong Kong with an aim
fo broaden its revenue base especially fo the youth generation and
middle class consumers. The Group expects the increasing tourists fo
Hong Kong to have a positive future impact on the refail market of
Hong Kong and the Group's performance on Chinese health products.

Consumer Electronic Products
Childcare Products

The Group adopts a multi-brand and multiproduct strategy. However,
there was no new supply from the Haier brands products following the
confract expiry with Haier in December 2017. As such, the revenue
of childcare products decreased significantly during the Year. Strong
competition in the childcare products market and US-China trade war
which lead to market uncertainties globally and have negative impact
on the consumers’ demand as well as this segment performance. The
Group will maintain our multi-brand and multi-product and to strictly
control cost to cope with this challenge.

OBM Toys

Kid Galaxy will ride on their recent successes thus showcased new
concepts and other innovative product lines af the New York and Hong
Kong toy fairs in the early part of 2019. Early indication from recent
product previews with major customers received encouraging and
posifive responses. However further capifal investments will be required
in continuous product development, engineering, new product moulds
plus additional markefing and promotion costs for the new products
These expenses will continue to affect the contribution to this OBM
segment’s profitability.

TEEEERERERATY —T—
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE

The liquidation of a major toy retail chain stores in the United
States and worldwide had minor impact on Kid Galaxy's sales as
management will have to confinue reducing prices and margins plus
divert our markets in North America fowards clubs, supermarkefs
and infernet sales. With the right products at competitive prices,
management expect these refail channels to continue contributing to our
OBM sales segment for the coming years.

Money Lending

Despite certain uncertainties in the global economy such as the
tightening of US-China trade relationship, the demand for money
lending business remain strong during the Year and the Group's loans
receivables together with accrued inferest receivables increased sharply
to HK$261 million (31 March 2018: HK$35 million), the Group will
continue fo develop this business cautiously by strengthening its credit
policy and risk control policy.

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment sentiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and protectively adjust our portfolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from fime
fo time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriafe.

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's cash and bank balances were
approx. HK$55 million (FY17/18: HK$58 million). The Group's
total bank borrowings and convertible loan notes were approx.
HK$13 million (FY17/18: HK$100 million) and HK$101 million
(FY17/18: Nil|, respectively. Gearing ratio, calculated as the tofal
borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity was approx. 29% as af
31 March 2019 (FY17/18: 37%). As at 31 March 2019, the Group
recorded fotal current assets of approx. HK$588 million (FY17/18:
HK$358 million) and fotal current liabilities of APprox. HK$ 199 million
(FY17/18: HK$325 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the total current assets by the current liabilities, was
approx. 295% (FY17/18: 110%). The Group recorded an increase
in shareholders’ fund from approx. HK$274 million as at 31 March
2018 to a net asset position of approx. HK$393 million as at 31
March 2019. The increase was mainly due fo shares placing during
the Year.
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APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Year. My appreciations go to our
investors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to the
Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and Executive Director

26 June 2019

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

oy

%\1

RE AAZBUREEZRE SREEERE
BETHAKRENERERA BEPHRMARKRE

WHEERNEERB BIARDOHE - N A TR UL
wenkEE TP BEHNREEERRE  ZH

BERBEFEHARENTS -

iR
TERNTEF
—E-AFRAZTAA

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER



Review of Operations
EBOEE

MARKET REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019, North America remained one
of our major export destination for the Group's foy products, with
shipments amounting to approx. HK$173 million compared to approx.
HK$123 million in FY17/18, accounted for approx. 38% (FY17/18:
22%) of the Group's total revenue. The increase in dollar term sales
in North America and Canada were mainly attributable to the higher
OBM orders. Mainland China and Hong Kong account for approx.
HK$271 million compared to approx. HK$437 million in FY17/18,
accounted for approx. 60% (FY17/18: 77%) of the Group's revenue.
The decrease in sales in Mainland China and Hong Kong was mainly
due to decrease in sales of consumer electronic products segments
following the contract expiry with Haier in December 2017. Revenue
to Europe were approx. HK$6 million as compared with approx.
HK$1 million in FY17/18, accounted for approx. 1% (FY17/18:
0.5%) of the Group's revenue.

Revenue by Geographical Segment
For the year ended 31 March
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PRODUCT REVIEW

Chinese Health Products

During the Year, the Chinese health products segment generated
approx. HK$155 million in revenue and segment profit of approx.
HK$2 million compared with HK$134 million and HK$6 million
respectively during the period from 1 July 2017 to 31 March 2018.
As at 31 March 2019, there were 11 (31 March 2018: 11) retfail
shops of Nam Pei Hong.

Consumer Electronic Products

The consumer electronic products segment generated approx. HK$42
million in revenue and a loss before income tax of approx. HK$16
million in FY18/19 compared with HK$292 million and HK$27
million respectively in FY17/18. The segment revenue decreased
significantly as no new supply from the Haier brands products following
the confract expiry with Haier in December 2017. The loss of this
segment is mainly due fo advertising and marketing expenses used in
order to expand the market shares and sfrengthen our customers’ base.

OBM Toys

The OBM toys segment recorded an increase in revenue from approx.
HK$125 million in FY17/18 to approx. HK$184 million in FY18/19,
accounting for approx. 41% of the Group's revenue from continuing
operations. The increase in revenue from the OBM Toys segment was
affributable to enlarged deliveries to America’s membership only retail
warehouse club and largest discount retail chain stores as well as
North America’s largest online retailer.

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER
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INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments business
reporfed segment revenue of approximately HK$43 million (FY17/18:
Nil) and segment loss of approximately HK$2 million (FY17/18:
HK$67 million) which mainly included (i) a loss of approximately
HK$43 million (FY17/18: HK$67 million) arising on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
impairment loss on available for sale investment; and [ii) a realised
gain of approximately HK$43 million [FY17/18: Nil) from disposal of

certain listed equities.

During the Year, the Group developed its porffolio to over 15
[FY17/18: 8) Hong Kong listed equities with an aggregate acquisition
cost of approximately HK$ 196 million (FY17,/18: HK$117 million).

Revenue by Product Type/Business
For the year ended 31 March
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had approx. 130 employees and
confract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters, Macau office,
PRC offices and the U.S. sales office. The number of employees of the
Group varies from time to time depending on production needs and
they are remunerated based on industry practices.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude fo all our longterm business partners for their
continuous support over the past year. | would also like to extend my
appreciation fo our group management and staff for their effort and
dedication, despite another challenging year we were facing.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and Executive Director

26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue from
continuing operations for approx. 19% from approx. HK$561 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approx. HK$452 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019. The decreased was due to the nef
effect of 1] the significant decrease in sales from consumer electronic
products segment from approximately HK$292 million in FY17/18 to
approximately HK$42 million in FY18/19 as a result of the contract
expiry with Haier in December 2017; and (2) the increase in revenue
in the OBM tfoys, money lending and investment in financial instruments
segments.

Cost of goods sold ("COGS”") from continuing operations decreased by
approx. 28% compared to FY17/18. The decrease was affributable
fo the corresponding decrease in revenue as mentioned above during
the Year. The COGS were approx. HK$287 million in FY18/19
compared with approx. HK$400 million in FY17/18

The gross profit increased to approx. HK$165 million for the Year
versus approx. HK$162 million in FY17/18. Gross profit margin
increased to approx. 37% (FY17/18: 29%) because of the higher
gross profit margin contributed from the money lending segment and
the investment in financial insfruments segment.

Other revenue, gains and losses, net from contfinuing operations
for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted fo loss of approx.
HK$47 million, resulting in a decrease of approx. 38% as compared
with the Corresponding Period (FY17/18: loss of HK$76 million).
Other revenue, gains and losses, net mainly included (1] fair value
loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$43
million (FY17/18: HK$11 million); (2) impairment loss on trade and
other receivables of HK$4 million (FY17/18: HK$8 million); and (3)
impairment loss on availableforsale investments of HK$56 million for

the year ended 31 March 2018

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 March 2019 decreased to approx. HK$87 million,
representing a decrease of approx. 23% against approx. HK$113
million in the Corresponding Period. The decrease in selling and
distribution expenses mainly afiributed fo the decrease in advertising
and marketing expenses in the consumer electronic products segment
which is in line with the corresponding decrease in the segment
revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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General and Administrative ("G&A") expenses from continuing
operations for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to approx.
HK$82 million, resulting in a decrease of approx. 5% as compared

with the previous year (FY17,/18: HK$86 million).

The goodwill of the Group was approx. HK$ 1 million as at 31 March
2019 compared with approx. HK$3 million in the Corresponding Year.
The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units ("CGU") of the
OBM ftoys business has been defermined from value in use calculations
by an independent third party valuer based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 2% (FY17/18: 3%), which does not
exceed the longterm growth rate for the indusfr\/ in the corresponding
counfry. Management reassessed the recoverable amount of the CGU
of the OBM toys business as at 31 March 2019 by reference to the
discounted cash flow calculations. As at 31 March 2019, the value
in use of the CGU of the OBM toys business was approximately
HK$ 11 million which is significantly lower than the carrying amount of
approximately HK$24 million. Under the circumstance that the OBM
foys business confinued to record losses in current and prior years,
management was of the opinion that an impairment loss for goodwill of
HK$2.5 million should be recognised. An additional impairment loss of
HK$10 million was allocated to property, plant and equipment.

Finance costs from confinuing operations incurred mainly for convertible
loan notes and bank borrowing for the toy segment during the Year
was approx. HK$Q million as compared with approx. HK$ 1 million in

FY17/18.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THBRR A

Al in all, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of
approx. HK$S5 million in FY18/19 compared with approx. HK$ 186
million in FY1//18.

G&A/Revenue
—RRITBBA

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HIFE

BEmE AKRER -/ LB REESRER

REEBEEOANTRAESE T MR-t/ —N\

MBREREASH—RBNATRBELT

Finance Costs/Revenue
BMERE, WA

For the year ended 31 March
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RESULT OF DISCONTINUED OPERATION

loss for the year from discontinued operation amounted to HK$35
million [FY17/18: HK$84 million), which represents (1) the results of
the OEM Toys segment for the period from 1 April 2018 to 30 January
2019, being the date on which the Disposal Companies ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Company; and (2] gain on disposal of the OEM
Toys segment of HK$ 12 million.

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2019, the non-current assets decreased approx. 58%
to approx. HK$109 million compare with approx. HK$262 million in
the previous year. The decrease in non-current assets was mainly due fo
the net effect of (1) the disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss during the Year; (2] the non-current loan receivables
granted by the Group during the Year; and (3) the decrease in
property, plant and equipment upon the disposal of the OEM Toys
business during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
only authorise purchases in line with sales orders. The decrease in
inventories of approx. 25% compared to the Corresponding Period,
value of inventories decrease from approx. HK$Q6 million as at 31
March 2018 to approx. HK$72 million as at 31 March 2019 as o
result of the disposal of the OEM toy business. Inventories turnover days
from confinuing operations were 89 days compared with 81 days in
the Corresponding Period.
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The trade receivables decrease of approx. 41% as at 31 March 2019
to approx. HK$41 million, compared with approx. HK$70 million
os af 31 March 2018 which was mainly due fo (1) the disposal of
the OEM toy business; and (2) the decrease in the revenue from the
consumer electronic products segment. Debtor turnover days from
continuing operations were 42 days in FY18/19 compared with 30
days in FY17/18. The Management regularly evaluates the Group's
cusfomers, assesses their known financial position and the credit risks.

Cash and bank balance as at 31 March 2019 were approx. HK$55
million, compared with approx. HK$58 million as ot 31 March 2018.
The Group dealt with different revenue and expenditure currencies
during the FY18/19 such as HK$, US$ and RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERE S

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges recorded a
decrease against the Corresponding Period. Trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges were approx. HK$92 million as at 31
March 2019 compared with approx. HK$133 million as at 31 March
2018. The frade payables mainly consisted of payables relating to
material purchases and the trading products. During the Year, creditor
turnover days from continuing operations increased to 59 days from 51
days at the end of the previous year.

Borrowings and convertible loan notes increased to approx. HK$114
million as at 31 March 2019 from approx. HK$100 million as
at 31 March 2018, mainly atiributable o the net effect of (1) the
decrease in the frust receipt and bank loans upon the disposal of the
OEM toy business; and (2) the issuance of the convertible loan notes
by the Company during the Year.
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of HK$698 million 7

Current Ratio

=

=

—hE=ZA=t—RH rEEZEEHE

which was financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and borrowings.  &7<

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in HK$, US$
and RMB and did not have any related hedges for the year ended 31
March 2019. No financial instrument was used for hedging purpose.
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The Group adopted a prudent funding and treasury policy and
managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange rate and inferest rate

on specific transactions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's total borrowings excluding
convertible loan notes amounted to approx. HK$13 million which
was repayable on demand or within one year. All borrowings were
denominated in either RMB (bore interest at a fixed rate) or US$ (bore
interest at floating rate). As at 31 March 2019, the convertible loan
notes issued by the Company amounted to HK$ 101 million which bore
interest at 6% per annum and will be matured two years from the issue
date at their principal amount or can be converted info ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$O.1 per
share of the outstanding principal.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recorded fofal current assefs
of approx. HK$588 million and total current liabilities of approx.
HK$199 million. The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing
the total current assefs by total current liabilities, was approx. 295%.
The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approx.
HK$274 million as at 31 March 2018 to approx. HK$393 million as
at 31 March 2019. The increase was mainly due to shares placing by
the Company during the Year.

Total Assets
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Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did
not have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans [secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or nof), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the
nature of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under
acceptances (other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits,
any morfgages or charges, or other material contingent liabilities
or guarantee at the close of business on 31 March 2019. Foreign
currency amounts have been translated af the approx. exchange rates
prevailing at the close of business on 31 March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERE S

The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the
basis of which certain financial and operational undertakings are
complied with. On behalf of the Board, the Direcfors are of the opinion
that, affer taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash
flow from operations, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
satisfy ifs present requirements for the next twelve months from the date
of this report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.

CONNECTED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIAIRIES AND THE
SALE LOAN

On 14 December 2018, the Group disposed the entire issued share
capifals in its subsidiaries (namely Lung Cheong Asia Holdings Limited,
Kid Galaxy Global Limited and lung Cheong Overseas Corporation,
collectively the “Disposal Companies’) to Shrewd Global Investments
limited (the "Purchaser”] at an aggregate consideration of HK$1 (the
"Disposal”) resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately HK$12
million.

Given the continuous lossmaking position of the Disposal Companies
and ifs subsidiaries (the "Disposal Group”] with net liabilities in recent
financial periods, and the difficulies and uncertainties faced by the
Indonesian factory of the Disposal Group, the Company considers that
the Disposal will enable the Group to improve its financial position and
eliminate any uncertainty arising from the OEM toys business with an
aim fo stabilising the future financial performance of the Group.

As the Purchaser is a connected person at the subsidiary level of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
Disposal also constitutes a connected fransaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the listing Rules. The Disposal was completed
on 30 January 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact

the Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future

performance and how the Group to mitigate these risks is set out

below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and

comprehensive statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced

by the Group, but rather those risks which the Group currently believes

may have a significant impact on the Group's performance and future

prospects.

Principal risks

FTERB

Strategic risk
SRS 1 L B

Description
RE

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and
longerm profitability and/or reputation
of the Group could be adversely
impacted by the failure either to identify
or implement the correct strategy, or fo
react appropriately to changes in the
business environment.

SRS 1 L B2 7% R oK BE 8 Bl 3K B B IE FE
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Mitigating actions
BFRIENE

e Exfensive investment management experience of
the Board.
EZgNREETEZEERR-

® Regularly review on strategy and performance of
each business unit.
EHREA R RBEM 2 REE MR -

® Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
pofential acquisitions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERE ST

Principal risks

TERE

Economic risk
£ R B

Credit risk
ZERE

Market risk
R

Description
RE

Economic risk is the risk of any downtum
in economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
RERBRAXEATFENEEER
MEBEBERE MR EEBERENE
EAREERBOERZE TTTRR -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its
confractual obligations.
FERBRANEMIAZERHRS
HFEREBTHAEHNEMT AEE*
S BER 2 Bk

Market risk is the risk of failure to
maintain the contracts with various global
brands such that the Group may not
be able to sell and increase product
offerings based on these brands.

T 15 [ B /3 K BE 4 4 B X 18 2 BRam R
FH a4 WHBAEEEEXHEE RIE
INZE w2 Emma] & -
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Mitigating actions
FRIEN

Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

FE HAR AT A IR M IR IR AR B AR B IR -

Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on customers before granting
loans.
RELEFRMEZETHREPYHEPETE
EEEFE

Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHERERER R ZEAREEE -

Maintain sfrategic partnerships with existing brands
and develop relationship with new brands.
MREREE R ZERAER BRI &N
MR S IER LR



Principal risks

TERE

Liquidity risk
nBEE AR

Price risk

B E

Exchange risk

PEE 34 LR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Description
b

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

mEE T R 7%$E.5E HE|
B2 B E AR

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and
the value of its holdings of equities.
BEREBRABTERE .W?\&/H\Fﬁ
HERREEZREZSH AR

Exchange risk is the risk that changes
in foreign exchange rates will affect the
Croup's income and the value of its
holdings of assets.

ELRE RS RE $$.u&)\&ﬁﬁﬁ
HEEEBEZINEERZE) 2 ER

THE®RE ST

Mitigating actions
FRIEN

i Regu\or|\/ monitor |Iquidify and statement of
financial position.
EHERADES LI BRRE -

* Maintain appropriate liquidity fo cover
commﬁments
REBBERDE S KA

e Limit ||qU|c||Ty risk exposure by invesfing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
ERERENX A LTREZRIADES
R o

® Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance
in place, or believed to be available before
commifting investment projecis.
EEREABEEMBEREALHE TR IE

® Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address any
portfolio issues promptly.
THERREREAS UNKEIREEMIEE
HE MR-

e Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

REZERZEAD BEBRER -

e Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.
BUERMBERARERREL AR
E,\uJ%LﬂqE'ﬂ RATERERIA (ZZDL
HASMNE & 49 - HME BAME SR AR R 15358 ) ¥ h
%M 5 R o
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Principal risks Description

FTERK AR

People risk People risk is the risk of loss the services
AER R of any directors, senior management and

other key personnel which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group's
businesses.

AFRBREMNES SREEAR
REMEEABKIERBAIEHANE
BRGENEANNTZE Z AR -

legal and regulatory risk legal and regulatory risk is the risk
ERERETRR that a breach of laws and regulations

could lead to litigation, investigations
or disputes, resulting in additional costs
being incurred, civil and/or criminal
proceedings and reputational damage.
ERREERRRERARIIEET
RESIBGRAA - BB AU  EEEINK
X RER/IMNERFREEERSE
Z Rk o

Capital and Financial Risk

Qur capital and financial risk management are set out in the Note 43
and Note 44 1o the financial statements.
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Mitigating actions
BFRIEN

® Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to affract and
refain the employees we need.
REEBF N2 BB RBEANFEBAERNE
BB RS R ERFZAL

® FEnsure that the staff of the Group has the right
working environment to enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their satisfaction
at work.
MRAEEZEIFAEZIERENSE
ITREAAREMEFIEREAREIES
IWIEREE-

=
=

* Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that sufficient
resources being made available fo implement
any required changes.
ERRERACEHNERIBRABZE
RENBREMRELZE-

o Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.

HEERSIERREMBEEALER -

BEXR B ER
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

(a)

(b)

On 19 April 2018, a total of 1,420,000,000 new shares
of the Company were allotted and issued af the placing price
of HK$O.11 per share. The net proceeds from the placing of
approximately HK$ 150 million which were intended to be used
for (i) approximately HK$120 million was infended to be used
on money leading business; and (i) approximately HK$30
million was infended fo be used as general working capital and/
or future investment opportunities. As at 31 March 2019, all net
proceeds were used up as intended. Details of the placing were
set out in the Company's announcements dafed 21 March 2018

and 19 April 2018.

On 8 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Heng Tai Finance limited (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant fo which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe, and the Company has conditionally agreed fo issue
a straight bond (the “Bond”) in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$120 million. On 22 November 2018, all the conditions
precedent in relation fo the right fo convert the principal amount
[or any part(s) thereof) of the Bond into the ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.1 each before the second (2nd) anniversary
of the date of issue of the Bond (the “Conversion Rights”) had
been fulfiled. Accordingly, the Conversion Rights attached to
the Bond have become unconditional and irrevocable. The
net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds of approximately
HK$119.5 million which were intended to be used for i
approximately HK$104.5 million on the money lending business;
and i) approximately HK$15.0 million as general working
capital and/or future investment opportunities. As at 31 March
2019, approximately HK$114.5 million was used up as
infended and approximately HK$10.0 million will be utilised
as infended on the money lending business. As at the dafe of
this announcement, all net proceeds were used up as intended.
Defails of the issue of the Bonds were sef out in the Company’s
announcements dated 8 October 2018, 15 November 2018
and 22 November 2018 and the circular of the Company dated
30 October 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEETLRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group fo manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and profect stakeholders” interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of
policy which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as sef out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securifies [the “Lisfing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Save for the deviation from code A.6.7 which are explained below, in
the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set ouf in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2019.

CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. One non-executive director was absent from the
Company's annual general meeting held on 4 September 2018 and
extraordinary meetings held on 15 November 2018 and 14 January
2019 due fo other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 fo the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Direcfors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2019. To ensure Direcfors’ dealings in the securities
of the Company (the “Securities”] are conducted in accordance with
the Model Code and securiies code of the Company, a Direcfor
is required to notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a writfen
acknowledgement from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the
Securities.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of
the Company and monitoring the performonce of the management,
approving the financial statements and annual budgets. It focuses
on the formulation of business strategy, policy and control. Day-
to-day operations of the Company are delegated to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Group. The Board reviews
and approves key matters affecting the Company’s strategic policies,
finances and shareholders, such as financial statements, dividend
policy and major corporate activities. Decisions of the Board are
communicated fo the Management through Executive Directors who
have attended Board meetings.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
There is no relafionship [including financial, business, family or other
material /relevant relationship) among members of the Board. Their
names and brief biographies are set out on pages 56 to 58 of this
Annual Report.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified industry experfise and bring a wide range of skills
and experience to the Company. One of the Independent Non-
executive Direcfors possesses recognized professional qualifications in
accounting. All Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through
their confribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing one-hird of the Board, are
independent in character and they also meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approx. quarterly intervals, and
additional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access fo all relevant information as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Direcfors as required. There were twenty

five Board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term
of three years. All Directors are subject to refirement by rotation once
every three years and are subject fo re-election in accordance with the
arficles of association of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of ifs
responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company'’s strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up fo the date of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will confinue o be undertaken by other executive members of the
Board, namely Mr. leung Alex, Ms. Lo Ming Wan, Mr. Tse Chi Keung
and Mr. Yuan Huixia, therefore, in the opinion of the Direcfors, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will continue to be properly segregated in the absence of an officer
carrying the tifle of Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees have been
posted on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website
and are available to shareholders upon request.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
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shareholders, the Board, Audit Commitlee, Remuneration Commitee #MMEZE@ NIRERELEE @ EM SR T
and Nomination Committee during the Year are sef out below:
2018
Annual
General
Remuneration Nomination Audit Meeting
Board Committee Committee Committee ("AGM”) EGM
ZB-N\5E
RREFAE
(TRRBF
=g FMzEE REZEE ENEZEE g8l BREBIAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
M. lei Hong Wai THRELE 24/25 1/1 1/1 - 1/1 2/2
(Chairman) (/)
M. leung Alex RERLE 25/25 - - - 1/1 2/2
(Vice Chairman) (1)
Ms. Lo Ming Wan SBHRBLTL 25/25 - - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EIEE: e 24/25 - - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Yuan Huixia 1 REBLEN 12/13 - - - 0/0 0/2
Mr. lee Chan Wah @ ZF@EE L AR 11/11 - - - 1/1 0/0
Non-Executive Director FHTEZE
M:r. Diao Yunfeng NEBLE 2/25 - - - 0/1 0/2
Independent BUFHTES
Non-executive
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen  E{E8 K4 20/25 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lai Hok Lim >}\%}%5E$ 21/25 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2
Mr. lien Wai Hung ERERE 21/25 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2
(1) M. Yuan Huixia was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company (1) RZZE—NF+—ANBREBELXLEZER
on 6 November 2018. RARMEITES -
[2) M. lee Chan Wah resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 2) RZEBE-—NF+—ABERELEFRTAEAD
6 November 2018. AMITES -
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Direcfors fo aftend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year ended
31 March 2019, the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development programmes, such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the Company.

The Direcfors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed fo participating any suitable fraining fo
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

According fo the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
Year under review. The individual training record of each Director for

the year ended 31 March 2019 is summarised below:

Directors’ duties and responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and Regulations
ESCRBREE t¥EER
EH - RAR BB 2B

Reading
materials
i
Executive Directors HITES
M. lei Hong Wai FHRERE (F/E) 4
(Chairman)
Mr. leung Alex (Vice REBKHE (FF/E) v
Chairman)
Ms. Lo Ming Wan SHBLt 4
Mr. Tse Chi Keung A EREE 4
Mr. Yuan Huixia REELE 4
Mr. lee Chan Wah TR S & 4
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Dico Yunfeng ABBEE v
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BRBRLE 4
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REEEE 4
M. lien Wai Hung BEERE v

EEZREEXRE

RHBPHEEIHBEERER ARAEREFD
FHEBERE NERMEHREZNERKEE
NHERBREHEERBEEEAMRIAMEDN
BRATHEZSELERM -BE_T-NLF=A
=t+—BHULFE EFE2RFEZXERAE
WHAERERALABEMRZINFERE R
LREHMBEANR/EFTSFLER 2 ME R ZE-
BREEMEX 2EIRHEHARERE REH -

EENTRIBESRERZBEEMY AHRE
EEEZEIN AR MBI EEZ ML

2k,
BE °

REREFRECELEATUNAARRG 228
2REFERDBETANS AL 2 BETERE
EB-BE-T-NE=A=+—AIFE &
EFHEE 2 @SRRI T -

Business related/Accounting/
Financial/Management or
other professional skills

EXCY:1 Ve St Ve
EESHMEER
Attending Attending
seminars/ Reading seminars/
conferences materials conferences
HEMNE HERSE
a3 R B A R 28
v/ v/ v
v/ v/ v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v/ v
v/ v/ v
v/ v/ v
v/ v/ v
v/ v v
v/ v/ v
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has established a formal and fransparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Note
14 1o the consolidated financial statements.

The details of the five individual with highest emoluments are sef out in
Note 14(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (excluding
directors) by band are set out in Note 14(c) to the consolidated

financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Llim, Mr. Wong Tok
Chuen and Mr. Lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Llei Hong
Wai. Mr. Lai Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The function of the Remuneration Commitiee is fo review and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management. The fees of
the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) are defermined by the Board.

All members of the Remuneration Commitiee met one time during the
year ended 31 March 2019 for a proposal on remuneration packages
and employment confracts for submission to the Board for approval.

The Company adopts a competitive remuneration package for its
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
a performance related basis in order fo atiract, refain and motfivate
falented executives/employees fo strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company. To provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the executives/employees, a share option
scheme was adopted by the Company in 2012. Details of the 2012
share option scheme are set out on pages 51 to 54 of this Annual
Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committiee in 2006. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen
and Mr. Llien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Lei
Hong Wai is the Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee. The function
of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition {including the skills, knowledge and experience] of the
Board on a regular basis and make recommendations fo the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

The Company adopted a policy on board diversity on 25 June 2013.
The review of effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy was conducted
by the Board and dll findings are satisfactory.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary fo complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversif\/. Al appointment will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
conducted an annual review of the structure, size and composition of

the Board and the independence pursuant to code provision A.5.2 of
the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant fo the Listing Rules, an Audit Committee was established on
14 March 2000. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. lien Wai Hung. Mr. Wong Tak Chuen is
the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee. The Chairman of the Audit
Commitiee has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in financial matters.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process (including the preparation of the interim and annual resulss,
internal controls and corporate governance).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Commitiee held
three meetings including the review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 September 2018 before their submission fo the Board and
monitored the infegrity of such consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Audit Committee also had a private meeting with the
independent auditor without the presence of management to discuss
any area of concem. The attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the section headed “Number of Meetings
Attended/Held" of this Report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code

provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, fraining and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the remuneration paid or
payable fo the independent auditor for the audit services amounted to
approx. HK$ 1,880,000 and non-audit services amounted to approx.
HK$474,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements as set out on pages 74 to 236. The sfatement of
the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
sfatements is set out on pages 68 fo /3.

The Directors confirm that, 1o the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any material uncerfainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to confinue as a
going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of internal controls and risk management
which covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such internal controls and risk management. The Board
has delegated such responsibility to the management of the Company.
The management, under the supervision of the Board, has established
an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management

that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit

Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and

experience of sfaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting

function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

(a)

the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant

risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group's
business and operations.

Risk Assessment

Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criferia
developed by the management; and

Considers the impact and consequence on the business
and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment: and

Determines the risk management strategies and infernal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate infernal control processes are in
place;

Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;

and

Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.
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(b)

(d)

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information used within the business or for publication; and to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather

than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group
and endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and internal confrol systems of
the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an infernal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
infernal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing ifs effectiveness.
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The Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Infernal Control Services Limited as ifs risk management and
infernal control review adviser (the “"Adviser’) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and infernal confrol
systems for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018. Such review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed
are under rotation basis. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Board. The Adviser has
reported findings and areas for improvement to the Audit
Committee and management. The Board/Audit Committee are of
the view that there are no material infernal control defeats noted.
All' recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and infernal confrol systems are effective
and adequate.

(e) the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potfential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being mainfained until consistent and timely disclosure
are made in accordance with the Llisting Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designated persons authorised fo act as spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
confrols and risk management functions for the year under review and
up fo the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has
dayfoday knowledge of the Company's affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
new dividend policy. The Company considers the new dividend policy
creates flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend payout rafio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject to the Board's discrefion having regard
fo the following factors:

[a)  the earnings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

(b)  the shareholders’ inferests of the Company;
(c)  the economic outlook;

(d)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company fo ifs shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regu|ofory restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company; and

()l any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, o separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Llisting
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website (www.healthwisehk.com).
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Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies low (2018 Revision as amended) (the “law”]. However,
shareholders are requested to follow Article 72 of the Articles of
Association [the “Arficles”) of the Company. Pursuant to Arficle 72 of
the Articles of the Company, general meetings shall be convened on
the written requisition of any two or more members of the Company,
or on the written requisition of any one member which is a recognised
clearing house, deposited at the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as af the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than onefenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of vofing at general meetings of the Company. Such meeting
shall be held within two months ofter the deposit of such requisition.
If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionisfs
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the fotal
vofing rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held affer the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(For the affention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2548 5575

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders
and other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides transparent, regular and timely
public disclosures to ifs shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

. The Company maintains a corporate website
[www.healthwisehk.com) on which comprehensive information
about the Group, including core business, financial reports,
public announcements, circulars and news of the Group, is
disclosed. Shareholders can obtain corporate communication
electronically via the Company’s website.

e The Company esfablishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, inferim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The respective chairmen of the Board
and Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the
absence of the chairmen of such Committees, another member
of each Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate)
will endeavor o be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.
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e Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

®  Details of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general

meelfing are, where necessary or appropriate, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispatched prior to the date of the
relevant general meeting.

e Al resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting are taken
by poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange's
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company's website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company has established the Investor Relations
Department with designated senior management for maintaining regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company's developments. Enquiries from shareholders and other
stakeholders are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.

Corporate Governance Report
LETARE

s ARABREEEAZMBRHIEERBRRAK
CLREBURZRR EREREHNES-

e HBIBRRAGLEZZEFARARFE (W
VEIGER) N EERRAES B HRIRRK
REBZBEA-

e MNBEERELREEHEBEENMBEARAEER
BUREETARR - RAGERBRE L
AR BI85 13.39(5) 14 T & 70 Bk 32 A 48 b
(www.hkexnews. hk) B2 2 A &) 48 14 o

AN RRABERZIREEBEEF XHEER

IERAAEEEREREREE RO TERETEHRR
mERERFHARBERZ TR - RRNME
e MS BRI T 2 A AT S B ER T b 2 fR 3 -

MEEMNER RREEMAGEHBALAINE
BHRRARRIZEATREFRMH -

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR



Report of the Directors
EFEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are sales of toys, consumer electronic products and
Chinese health products, money lending and investment in financial
instruments.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment information is set out
in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
741075,

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019

is set out in Review of Operations and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 16 1o 31.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will
seek professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, to
ensure fransactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Year are set out in page 78 and Note 36 fo the financial
sfatements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Note 31 fo the financial

statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in Property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 15 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and  responsibilifies,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management
and general stoff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard fo the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company has adopted a share opfion scheme fo provide a
flexible and effective means of incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating fo eligible participants who contribute the success
of the Group. Details of the schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” below and Note 32 to the financial
statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended

31 March 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
29 August 2019 1o Tuesday, 3 September 2019 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
determine the entiflement to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 3 September 2019, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share cerfificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus
Limited, af Llevel 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 28 August 2019.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER

Report of the Directors
EFEERE

ME - BB R RE

ME BELEREBEIEBDFITENMHERERM T
15°

¥ B R

AEBNFIWHERTIALBAR N OFH B
RGEELRBERES SREEERERETHN
BARRBER WHHMEESENERM-

EXZFMOE2ELBRARNOFHFM A
F) By ) 2 BB IR A R AN 5% 18 L b B ) 1 P AR A 7R
MPFMEE R YHESEETE-

ARFDRMA—BEBRE S AEERBRT
ARMBREERNELERNASER2EERMH
SR - BERD - BN (B o R FRT B RBEN T
X [HEREst 8] —BR R B|ARMEES2 -

RBE_ZT-NAF=ZA=+—HILFE HES
EREEAIEB -

EENERDBFER

ARAFE_E-AENAZTIA(EHM)
E_T-AFAA=ZR(EHD)E(EREMXK
BRERNEEMERNDBFERL NIULHHES
TEETRNBEFPEL REERRLERAF
BR-ZZE-—AFANAZRA(BPRRITZF
—NEFEERRBEAGMRNE LREZER
BEEmBEXHERBRARERERANR_-"F—N
FARZTNB(EH=) TFEK=+5 X0
ARBEEEZBRNBFEL Y REEROHA
[RAR U AEBERAER—BNT=%KAE
MpLOR+OE-e

i =] 2 B R
B AR 2 AR BB BRI 18 -



Report of the Directors
EFEERE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEMEHE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and T &RFAAREBRMREBEE—_E—NEFE=A=+—8H
liabilities of the Group for each of the last five years ended 31 March  |FBRRERNREZGEALE BERAE-
2019.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —T-N\F& —E—+F —E-RFE —E—haF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT TET TET THET THET
[Re-presented)
(BEFZEH)
Revenue WA 451,615 561,190 319,221 352,799 389,427
(Loss)/ profit before FRETE BT (BE),/
income tax gl (71,712) (113,415) (263,838) (94,044) 16,957
Income tax credit/[expense) FTg&i#E%,/ (FxX) 1,967 (987) 1,220 106 (10,423)
(loss)/profit for the year  FRREFHELEED
from continuing operations 2 (E518) /& (69,745) (114,402 (262,618) (93,938) 6,534
Loss for the year FARBEREEB
from discontinued pd %
operations (34,667) (83,535) = = =
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN(EE) S &F (104,412) (197,937) (262,618) (93,938 6,534
Attributable to: AT ATREM:
Owners of the Company ~ AREIZHE A (95,316) (186,103) (241,937) (81,324) 17,037
Non-controlling interests FEE R R (9,09¢) (11,834 (20,681) (12,614) (10,503)
(104,412) (197,937) (262,618) (93,938) 6,534
Total assets BEE 697,792 620,172 532,394 741,064 740,189
Total liabilities BERE 304,352 346,022 241,753 179,954 116,952
Total equity AT 393,440 274,150 290,641 561,110 623,237
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, in the opinion of the directors, the
Company has no distributable reserves.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the Year under

review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 September 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share opfion scheme (“the Scheme”).

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose

To provide a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, fo eligible participants
who confribute the success of the Group.

(2) Eligible persons

Any person who is an employee (whether full time or part
fime) holding salaried office or employment under a confract
of employment or service confract or terms of employment
["Contract’) with the Group or is a Director (including executive
and non-executive directors) of the Group or any adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any
member of the Group or any subsidiaries of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)

Maximum number of shares

The scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed by a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 4 September 2018, details of which have
been set out in the circular dated 30 July 2018. Accordingly, the
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 852,130,836, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general
meeting.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and all outstanding options granted and vyet to be
exercised under any other Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from fime to time. No options may be granfed
under the Scheme and no options may be granted under any
other Schemes if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
Subject to specific approval of the shareholders of the Company,
the 10% limit may be refreshed with reference to the date of such
specific approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised during the periods to be defermined
and nofified by the Directors fo the granfees at the time of making
offers to grant share options to them provided that such periods
shall not exceed the period of ten years from the date of offer.

Acceptance of offers

Offers for the grant of share options must be accepted within 21
days affer the offer date. Offers for grant of share options have fo
be accepted together with remittance in favour of the Company

of HK$1.00.
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(7)

(8)

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Direcfors at its discretion, provided that it
shall not be less than the whichever is the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as sfated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the dafe of offer; (ii] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and {iii) the nominal value of the shares. Details
of the scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated

29 August 2012.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force until 14 September 2022,
being the date which falls ten years after the date of adoption of
the Scheme.

Details of the share options movement and outstanding as at 31 March
2019 have been disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company operates the Scheme for 10 years from 14 September
2012 to 14 September 2022 and for the purpose of providing

incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who confribute fo the

success of the Group's operation. Further details of the Scheme are set

out in the circular of the Company date 29 August 2012.

On 24 April 2018, share options of 340,000,000 were granted
by the Company fo the direcfors of the Company at exercise price

HK$0.121 per share.
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The following table lists the defails of movement in the options granted

TRIIAFEARZAHE T ERERHRITE

and outstanding under the Scheme during the Year: BREZEBFE:
Number of share options BREHE
Number of share opfions
BREHA
Weighted
average
Oufstanding Closing price closing price
Oufstanding Granfed Exercised  Concelled/ as of immediately  immediately
Category of osof during during  lopsed during 31 March Exercise before the before
participants 1 April 2018 the period the period the period 2019 price  dote of gront exercise  Date of grant Exercise period
R=F-NE R=F-1& RETE
mA-H FHEA FHER rHEA ZA=t-8 SERLAN  AznETY
SREEH HALTE Rt % EE/&N HA{TE TR AzhE YHE  REAH T8
HKS HKS HKS
B R B
Directors
-
M. Lei Hong Wai - 85,000,000 = - 85,000,000 0.121 0.117 - 24Apil 2018 24 Aprl 2018 -
THELE 23 Apil 2019
“FNF “2-\fBAZtRAEE
MAZTEA ZF-NEEAZT=R
M leung Alex - 85,000,000 = - 85,000,000 0.121 0.117 - 2 Apil 2018 24 Apiil 2018 -
R 23 Apil 2019
—EN\E “E-\(MAZTWAZ
mAZTEA “E-NERAZtT=ER
M. Lo Ming Wan - 85,000,000 = - 85,000,000 0.121 0.117 - 24 Apil 2018 24 Apil 2018 -
CEiEL 23 Apil 2019
“E0F 2 \RBAZTEAE
MAZ+mA “F-NFRA-tER
M:. Tse Chi Keung - 85,000,000 = - 85,000,000 0.121 0.117 - 24Apil 2018 24 Aprl 2018 -
EIEES S 23 Apil 2019
“FNF “2-\fBAZtBAEE
MAZTEA ZF-NEEAZT=R
Totol - 340,000,000 S - 340,000,000
@z

All outstanding share options as at 31 March 2019 have been lapsed
on 23 April 2019.
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DIRECTORS

The Direcfors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up fo the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. leung Alex (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung

Mr. Yuan Huixia (Appointed on 6 November 2018)
Mr. lee Chan Wah [Resigned on 6 November 2018

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Dico Yunfeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

M. Lien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles, the Directors
refiring by rotation at the 2019 AGM are Ms. lo Ming Wan, Mr. Tse
Chi Keung and Mr. Yuan Huixia. They will refire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reelection as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Biographical details of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 51, has over 15 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment and business
development. He is the chairman of the Nomination Commitiee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. lei
is currently the chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of Efernity Investment Limited (“Efernity”), a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the
"Stock Exchange”] under stock code: 764. During the period from 10
April 2014 to 2 September 2015, Mr. lei was the chairman of the
board of directors and an executive director of Huanxi Media Group
Limited ["Huanxi Media"), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange under sfock code: 1003. M. lei was also the
chairman of the board of directors and an executive director of Man
Sang International Limited ("Man Sang”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange under sfock code: 938, during the period
from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018 and 26 June 2015 to 3 April
2018, respectively. In 2002, Mr. lei was a director of The Chamber
of Hong Kong listed Companies limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. leung Alex, aged 40, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000.
Mr. leung had worked in two international accounting firms from
December 2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounfants and the CPA
Australia. He has more than 18 vyears of experience in audifing,
accounting and corporate management as well as in the field of
corporate finance, mergers and acquisition matters, financial and
accounting management, corporate governance and compliance
affairs. He also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. leung is currently an executive director of Affluent
Pariners Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange under sfock code: 1466 and formerly known as Man
Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited). Mr. leung was also an executive
director of Man Sang during the period from 16 October 2014 to 5
November 2018.
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Ms. lo Ming Wan, oged 33, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Instfitute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secrefaries. She has over
10 vyears of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial
matters and financial management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 38, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 12 vyears of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 38, has been admitted as a procticing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of extensive
experience in corporafe management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Doctorate Degree in law, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in law from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People’'s Republic of
China. During the period from 1 August 2016 to 5 November 2018,

Mr. Yuan was an executive director of Man Sang.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Dico Yunfeng, aged 46, obtained his EMBA degree from the
China Europe Infernational Business School in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") and a bachelor degree from the Southeast University of
the PRC.

He was awarded as the "Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Shandong
Province. Mr. Dico joined Haier Group in 1995 and is currently the
vice president of Haier Group, responsible for the development and
management of various emerging segments of Haier Group, including
the global home electric appliances, childcare related products and
intelligent healthcare products, efc.
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Mr. Dico has held a number of senior positions including the director of
overseas markefing management of the Haier Group and the general
manager of Haier Infernational Business Corporation Limited, and under
his leadership, the overseas business of Haier achieved one milestone
after another. Mr. Dico has been responsible for the development
and planning of the home electric appliances business for Haier since
2011, during which he has established an innovative platform for
Haier childcare related products and intelligent healthcare products.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 54, is a fellow member of both Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Associafion of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
management, mergers and acquisitions gained from certain senior
finance related positions in an infernational accounting firm in Hong
Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a company listed in the
United States of America. He is currently the chief financial officer
of a public company in Hong Kong and a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-
executive director of Huanxi Media and Eternity. Mr. Wong was also
an independent non-executive director of Man Sang during the period

from 12 July 2016 to 5 November 2018.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 60, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts (Law)
Degree from the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a
Bachelor of Law Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai was
also an independent nonexecutive director of Man Sang during the

period from 1 December 2016 to 5 November 2018.

Mr. Lien Wai Hung, aged 55, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. M. lien was also the chairman of the board of
direcfors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under sfock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 to 31 July 2018, respectively.
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Company Secretary
Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 33, obtained her Bachelor of Business

Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secrefaries. She has over
10 vyears of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial
matters and financial management.

Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Andy Tze On, aged 52, is responsible for the overall
management of the toy businesses. He is also responsible for
compliance, financier relationship and risk management of the toy
segment. Mr. Wong, Andy Tze On holds a business degree in
accounting from the Curtin University of Technology, Western Australia.
He joined the Group in June 1993. He is a member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Wong, Andy Tze On
was an execufive Director of the Company for the period from August
1997 to September 2014. Mr. Wong currently serves as a committee
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council ("HKTDC")
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Advisory Commitiee and  previously
served as a commitiee member of the HKTDC Toys Advisory Committee

from July 2013 to March 2017.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors have enfered info a service agreement with the
Company for an inifial ferm of three year commencing from the date
of their first appointment and also subject fo the general requirement of
refirement by rofation and re<election at each annual general meeting of
the Company under the Articles of Association. The service agreement
shall confinue unless terminated by either party by giving a written
nofice. Under the agreement, the Executive Directors will receive an
annual fee.

The Non-executive Director has entered info a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing from 27 October
2016 and shall continue unless terminated by either party by giving
a written notice. Under the agreement, the Non-executive Director will
receive an annual fee.

None of the Independent Non-execufive Directors has entered info
written service contract with the Company for a term of three years
which will be automatically renewed for another term of three years
until it is terminated. According to the verbal arrangements, it may
be terminated at any time by the Independent Non-executive Director
giving not less than three months" prior written notice.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant fo the Arficles, every Director shall be enfitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all actions, cosfs,
charges, damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in
relation therefo.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

On 7 August 2018, a cash advance of HK$ 15,000,000 was made
by Twin Success Internafional Llimited, which is beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company) to the Group for financing its shortterm funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest bearing and unsecured. On 22
August 2018, the Group repaid the cash advance to Twin Success
Infernational Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, no fransactions, arrangements and
confracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company's subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which Director of the Company and the Direcfor’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or af any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) has interest in approximately
24.65% of the issued share capital of Eternity Investment Limited
[stock code: 764), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange engaging in sale of financial assefs, property investment,
money lending, and design and sale of jewelry products, through
themselves and their beneficial inferests in Twin Success International
Limited. In addition, Mr. lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of Eternity Investment Limited.
Therefore, Eternity Investment Limited competes with the Group's money
lending business and investment in financial instruments business.

As at 31 March 2019, save as mentioned above, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of each Director, management
shareholder and their respective associate, that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person have or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2019, the inferests of the directors and the chief executive
and their associafes in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company

Name of director Capacity
EEpE 56
M. lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner
FHETE EREAA

(b) Share options
Name of director Capacity
EEpE &4
M. lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner
PR L EnEAA
Mr. leung Alex Beneficial owner
R T HE ERBEAA
Ms. Lo Ming Wan Beneficial owner
Lk ckognn EREAA
Mr. Tse Chi Keung Beneficial owner
WEREE EnEAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief
executive nor their associates had any inferests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations at 31 March 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2019, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had notified

the Company of relevant interests in the
Company.

FERR

issued share capital of the

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of (a)

the Company

Name of shareholder
BRAR

Eternity Finance Group Limited
KIEM B REAR AR

Riche (BVI) Limited
Eternity Investment Limited
KIERBIREBR AR

Nofes:

Capacity
g0

Beneficial owner
EmlEA A

Inferest in a controlled corporation
R EEER

Inferest in a controlled corporation
XL EEE

These Shares were registered in the name of Etemity Finance Group

Limited, @ wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn

is wholly-owned by Eternity Investments limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 764.

(b) Convertible bonds

Name of shareholder
BRAER

Heng Tai Finance Limited

Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited
FRHEEREBEBERAR

(b)

Capacity
514

Beneficial owner

BEaEEAA

Inferest in a controlled corporation
XL E S

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019

=

=

n=

—NEFE=ZA=+—HB ARFARBEIEFK
HEHRPIEIFFECEERRECMABR
THRREREBEARRCHTRAZE@EE
PN/

XAFREBREMEO.I0EBETEBR Z1F
A

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held

BEZE#1T
BEER#E

1,483,728,240

1,483,728,240

1,483,728,240

Kiat -

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of

the Company
EAERARE #1T
BRAEAB DL

17.41%

17.41%

17.41%

ZEBRMUKETBEEEEBRAR ZBERER
H ARiche (BVI) Limitedz 2 & KB A7) iMRiche
(BVI) Limited | KBRS IEEBR AT 2 EHE
KXERBEEERAT ZRMARERAER L

(B REE: 764)

R ES

Number of
convertible
bonds held
BEzZUERR
BEFEE

1,200,000,000

1,200,000,000

Number of
underlying shares

HERDHE

1,200,000,000

1,200,000,000



Nofes:

These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 197.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporation(s) which would require to be recorded in the

register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo secfion 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The following changes were made to the information of the Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up fo the date of this

report:

On 3 April 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai resigned as the chairman and an
executive director of Man Sang Infernational limited ("Man Sang'), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock

code: 938.

On 31 July 2018, Mr. Lien Wai Hung resigned as the chairman and
an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a company listed

on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 8130.

On 1 August 2018, Mr. leung Alex resigned as the group chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Man Sang.

On 5 November 2018, Mr. leung Alex and Mr. Yuan Huixia resigned
as the executive directors of Man Sang.

On 5 November 2018, Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

resigned as the independent non-executive directors of Man Sang.

On 6 November 2018, Mr. Yuan Huixia was appointed as an
executive director of the Company.

On 6 November 2018, Mr. lee Chan Wah resigned as an executive
director of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the
Old Scheme and the Scheme, for cash consideration of any new
shares or securities (including options and warrants) in the Company
convertible info ordinary shares (the “New lssue Securities”), the holders
of the Company's preference shares [the “Preference Shares”) are
entitled to subscribe, or procure subscribers fo subscribe, for all or part
of the New lssue Securities. Any New lIssue Securities not subscribed
for by the holders of Preference Shares may be subscribed for by the
holders of ordinary shares in the Company upon terms and conditions
no more favourable than those offered to the holder of Preference
Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts of service with the Directors or any persons
engaged in the fulime employment of the Group, no confracts
conceming the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered info or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentoge of sales and purchases affributable to the Group's
largest customers and suppliers are as follows:

— the largest customer —BRREF

— five largest customers combined —AREF AR

— the largest supplier —BRANHER

— five largest suppliers combined —hAHERAE

No Direcfors or their associates [as defined in the Listing Rules] and
no shareholders [which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and
external audifor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

At an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) held on 26 May
2017, an ordinary resolution was passed by the independent
shareholders which approved the masfer purchase agreement dated
3 April 2017 entered into between LC Global Holdings Corporation
["LC Clobal"), a subsidiary of the Company, and lung Cheong (BVI]
Holdings Limited which is owned as to 30% by M. leung Chung
Ming and 70% by Mr. leung, Kenneth Yuk Wai who is a son of one
of the Company’s substantial shareholder at the date of the EGM,
Mr. leung Lun, M.H.,
fo, among other matters, the supply of consumer electronic products,

(the “Master Purchase Agreement’) in relation

radio control/wireless products, electronic and plastic toys for a term
up fo 31 March 2020. The proposed annual caps in relation fo the
transactions under the Master Purchase Agreement for the period
commencing from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 and each of the
years ending 31 March 2018, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020
would not exceed HK$66 million, HK$72 million and HK$80 million
respectively.

For FY18/19, purchases under the Master Purchase Agreement
amounted to approx. HK$71.5 million.

On 31 January 2019, M. leung Lun, M.H. ceased to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company but remained as directors of cerfain
subsidiaries of the Company. On 7 May 2019, Mr. leung Lun, M.H.

ceased to be a director of any subsidiary of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing
connected fransactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the

fransactions were enfered into:
(i) In the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

[i)  Either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(i) In accordance with the relevant agreement goveming them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.38 of the listing Rules, the Company’s auditor,
BDO Llimited, was engaged to report on the Company's continuing
connected fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified lefter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been
provided by the Company fo the Stock Exchange.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed fo maintaining, and has maintained good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view
to fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive fo implementing the Group's
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group's business
development and sustainability in the long term.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is commitied fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors to comply with
the laws and regulations regarding environmental profection and to
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as af the lafest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meet the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Llimited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the appointment of BDO Llimited as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practice are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 47 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

26 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS RS

|IBDO

TEEE © +852 2218 8288
{5HE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEFR115E
Jk&HI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
fincorporated in the Cayman Islandls with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company’] and its subsidiaries
(fogether the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 236, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and nofes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibiliies under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “"Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” [the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statfements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Refer to “Impairment loss on financial assets” in summary of significant
accounting policies in Note 4(h)(ii], critical accounting estimates
and judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in Nofe
5lal(vi), disclosure of loans receivable in Notes 24 and 44(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS @ on 1 April 2018. The key change
arising from the adoption is that the Group's credit losses are now
estimated based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model
rather than an incurred loss model.

The Group had significant amounts of loans receivable, before loss
allowance, of HK$265,725,000 as at 31 March 2019, which were

classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis. Based
on the assessment, the balance of impairment loss was approximately

HK$5,109,000 as at 31 March 2019.

The impairment assessment of loans receivable involves significant
management judgements and estimates in the assessment of credit
risk, the uses of models and the choices of inputs in the calculation of
expected credit losses at the reporting date.

We have identified the assessment of credit risk for loans receivable
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the assessments including significant
management judgements and estimation with respect fo the expected
credit losses.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS RS

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment assessment
included, but not limited to, the following procedures:

*  evaluated the methodology used by the Group in performing

impairment assessment;

e challenged the reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
valuation: and

®  engaged auditor's expert to review the valuation work done by
management's expert and check the parameters to external data
sources where available, including default rates provided by
management.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alrernative but o do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagements, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exisfs. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to confinue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw aftention in
our audifor’s report fo the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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®  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying fransactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair

presentation.

e obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Tsz Hung
Practising Certificate No. PO6693

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeRaREMEZEKRER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=ZT—hF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—EF-NF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks TET FET
(Re-presented)
(BHFE7)
Continuing operations FREEEER
Revenue WA ) 6 451,615 561,190
Cost of sales & AR (286,886) (399,530
Gross profit EH 164,729 161,660
Other revenue, gains and losses, net HAWA - s R g 1R F8E 7 (46,524) (75,583)
Selling and disfribution expenses HERDHET N (86,697) (112,810
Ceneral and administrative expenses —MRITHRER (81,736) (85,538
Share of result of an associate DE— B ERREE 19 = (114)
Finance costs B & Al 7R Q (8,839) (317)
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE 16 (2,500) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and Mm% WERREREERE
equipment 15 (10,145) (713)
Loss before income tax Br TSR AT B 18 8(a) (71,712) (113,415)
Income tax credit/(expense) PSR, (%) 10 1,967 (987)
Loss for the year from continuing operations — FRR B FFEL E B 2
& 8B (69,745) (114,402)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued operations F AR B B IER &2
e 8(b) (34,667) (83,535)
Loss for the year FAEIE (104,412) (197,937)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax HRBERE 2 E RS
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EEN P E B i
profit or loss: HE
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings T RIEFE(HIEE 30 - 3,168
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to B 1& A ¢ & B #7725 2
profit or loss: Ba)IEE
Exchange differences arising from MEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE X =58 1,668 (1,650)
Revaluation of availableforsale investments  AIft L ERE 2 Bih = (48,225)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment R A & & & RER
of availableforsale investments E AR = 56,225
Exchange difference reclassified o profit or 77k 85 — I FY &8 2 Al B
loss upon de-registration of a subsidiary BN EERHEZ
ME 5, =5 19 -
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or 7t & — B & A 7] B
loss upon disposal of an associate BENOBERSZ
ME 5, =58 - 1,581
Exchange difference reclassified fo profit or R & MY &8 2 Rl &5
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries BEMOBERSZ
M H =5 35 35,705 =
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRNFRHIAR
net of tax B 2w 37,392 11,099
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKZAE (67,020) (186,838

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FARERAM2EKE R
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZEZTE—hF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ig=s FHET FHET
[Re-presented)
(BFHZ5)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT ALRIEFRER:
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE/ 2PN )
Loss for the year from the continuing FARBFBELEXEB 2
operations B8 (60,649) (102,568
Loss for the year from discontinued FARBERIELEET
operafions 2B (34,667) (83,535)
loss for the year attributable to owners of FAXRBERA
the Company JE16 B 18 (95,316) (186,103
Non-confrolling inferests ER el SN
Loss for the year from the continuing FARBFHBELLEB 2
operations 518 (2,09¢) (11,834)
Loss for the year from discontinued FARBERIEREER
operations ZEE - -
Loss for the year affributable to FRIEERERELEE
non-controlling inferests (9,096) (11,834)
(104,412) (197,937
Total comprehensive income for the year ATALTRIEFEAR
attributable to: PEK B
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIE7 2SN (58,028) (170,592)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (8,992) (16,246)
(67,020) (186,838)
Loss per share atiributable fo owners of REFELEEH 2
the Company from continuing operations ZAN/NSIE Z DN
[E(R B EE
e “EA 12 0.72) (1.48)
centsB A centsi& 1Ll
— Diluted —#E 12 N/AT & A N/ATiE A
Loss per share attributable to owners of KECRUIEEEER 2
the Company from discontinued operations A2 BB AL
FREE
e —EAX 12 (0.41) (1.21)
centsB A centsiS 1Ll
— Diluted —#E 12 N/AT#E A N/ATE A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEeEMBERRE

As at 31 March 2019

R-ZE-NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE REE 15 2,943 86,094
Goodwill GES 16 614 3,114
Infangible assets EWEE 17 5,094 5,094
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEAEBRZ
profit or loss TREE 20 38,905 =
Availableforsale investments AHEERE 21 - 166,855
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIEE E 30 1,870 550
Loans receivable R E R 24 60,000 -
109,426 261,707
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 22 71,740 95,829
Trade and other receivables, FEWE 5 IR E A
deposits and prepayments JEWRIE 2 & M
B FRIE 23 61,901 103,260
Lloans receivable JEURE 3R 24 200,616 35,000
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABGEZ
profit or loss TREE 20 189,117 65,867
Amount due from a related company & — A A B X RIFRIA 25 10,027 -
Tax recoverable A U [ 7% 18 25 158
Pledged bank deposit BHEMRITER 26 - 494
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 26 54,940 57,857
588,366 358,465
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and FET 8 5 IR R At
accrued charges ERRIENEREA 27 92,068 133,213
Borrowings BE 28 13,412 100,391
Amounts due to related companies JEf A B A R FIE 25(b) 89,737 88,290
Tax payable JE &I 3,637 3,276
198,854 325,170
Net current assets REBEEZFE 389,512 33,295
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABAERE 498,938 295,002
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FERBERRE
Asat 31 March 2019 R-ZE—AF=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 41 100,891 -
Provision for long service payment RERG S #E 29 - 5,576
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIRAE 30 4,607 15,276
105,498 20,852
Net assets BEFE 393,440 274,150
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 31 852,131 710,131
Reserves w1 (396,685) (382,544
Equity atfributable to owners of RRRER NEIEER
the Company 455,446 327,587
Non-controlling interests JEERER 33 (62,006) (53,437)
Total equity R 393,440 274,150
On behalf of the directors REREZE

Lei Hong Wai
FHE

Director

EFE

Tse Chi Keung
=k
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEEDERE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILFE

Converfible land and
loannoes-  Exchange  Invesiment  buildings Afrbutable fo Nor-
Share Share Share equy  flctuotion  revaluation  revaluation Other  Accumulated  owners of the  controlling
capitl ~ premium  opfion reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ Company inferests Totol
TER
EXEE-  EXR®  REER t#RETE 527
Bk RGEE BRERE  ERRE #E BE ek EHEE  EHER  ERAEG  FERER @it
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKE000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKFOOD  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tt T T ThT TiEn TiEn T Fitn Fitn Tt T T
[Note 31) [Note 32) [Note 30)
(H3x31) (H332) (Hi30)
At Arl 2017 RZE-t£mA-A 591776 276,018 3237 S (54,881) (8,000] 49993 [261) (530473 327409 (36,768 290,641
Exctionge diferences arising on franslafion
of foreign operaions - - - - 2762 - - - - 2,762 4412 1,650
Exchange differences reclossfied fo proft A
of loss upon disposal of an associote ENAREREL
EXER = = = = 1,581 = = S = 1581 = 1,581
Revaluation of availabledorsale invesimens EfARLERE - - - - - 48,229) - - - 48,225) S (48,225
Reclassification djustment upon impairment R HERERER
of availableforsale investments ENAEER - - - - - 56,225 - - - 56,225 - 56,225
Suplus on revaluation of land and buidings THRETERLE = = = = = = 3168 = = 3168 = 3,168
Loss for he year FRER S S - - - - - - [186,103) {186,103 (11,834) (197937
Totol comprehensive income for he year FREANRES = = = - 4343 8,000 3,168 - (186,103 [170.592) [16,246)  {186,838)
Issuance of new shares, net of transaction cost BITHRG MBRARE 118,355 52415 - - - - - - - 170,770 - 70,770
lopse of share opfion BRIEAR - - 3,237) - - - - - 3,237 - - -
Acquisiion of subsidiaries (Note 34)
. . . . . . . . . . 2y )
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=f=1-H 710,131 328,433 = S 50,938) = 53,161 (261 713,339 327,587 53,437) 274150
Exctionge diferences arising on fianslafion
of foreign operaions = = = = 1,564 = = = = 1,564 104 1,668
Exchange diffeences reclossfed fo proft
or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries
S & & & 35,705 o S S S 35,705 = 35,705
Exchonge difference reclossfied fo profi orloss 7
upon deregsfiafion of o subsidiory = = = = 19 = = = = 19 = 19
Loss for the year FREE S S S = = S S S 95,316 95,316 9,006 (104,412
Totol comprehensive income for he year FR2ENEEE - - - - 37,288 - - - 95,316 (58,028) 8.992) 67,020)
Issuance convertble loan notes BOUARENEE - - - 19,835 - - - - - 19,835 - 19,835
Issuance of new shares, B
net of transaction cost NBRZHRA 142,000 8,733 - - - - - - - 150,733 - 50,733
Recogniton of equityseffed shorebase payment ~ BRNEREENRAA
ERHAR = = 15,742 = = = = = = 15,742 = 15,742
Devegistafion of o subsidiory HH-EHEAA - - - - - - - - 423) 423) 423 -
Transfer of resenves pon disposal of subsidiories L ENBARRERERE S S = = = = 53,161] 21 52900 - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
Zh=t-R 852,131 337,166 15,742 19,835 (13,250 o S - (756,178 455 446 62,006] 393,440

Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 36.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GeBaRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Operating activities mEEK
Loss before income tax K B8 %5 Bl E 18 (71,712 (113,415)
Loss before tax from discontinued REDRIEEEER 2
operations M F5 i E 18 (34,667) (81,289)
(106,379 (194,704)
Adjustments for: BLLATIEE %
Interest income F B A 7 (553) (20)
Inferest expenses MEFRX Q 11,559 3,451
Share of result of an associate D —FEE S N B A 19 - 114
Depreciation of property, Mm% BEIREITE
plant and equipment 15 4,153 18,934
Amortisation of infangible assets B & EEH 17 - 1,125
Impairment loss on invenfories FEREEE 8 8,008 1,857
Impairment loss on frade and FE UL 5 BR 3R N H A i L
other receivables and loans receivable RN EWE KR EEE 7 8,614 9,015
Impairment loss on availablefor-sale AHEERERERE
investments 7 — 56,225
Write-off of property, plant and equipment — #SE#1 3 - B R &% 8 = 2,381
Write-off of intangible assets WEHELEE 8 = 3,055
Impairment loss on goodwill e EEE 16 2,500 -
Impairment loss on property, M WE KR EREEE
plant and equipment 15 10,145 26,324
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BB RREZ
plant and equipment B8 7 126 5
loss on de-registration of a subsidiary T —FENEBARER 7 19 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEEERARAZIZ
af fair value through profit or loss NFEFABRSES R
recognised as revenue B E s (2,840) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB ARz W 8(b) (11,620) (474)
loss on disposal of an associate HE—HEE QR ZEBE 7 = 1,298
Equitysetiled share-based payment AR m i E AR 1D R AT &Y
expenses NEAX 7 15,742 =
Addition fo provision for long service payment £ HA Bk 5 & 1 48 38 N 29 - 1,131
Fair value loss on financial assets BRAFEEAER
at fair value through profit or loss, net ERMEEZ AT EEEFRE 7 42,509 10,714
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIELEES 2 W 7 (2,410) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEBeRER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE=ZT—hF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
Operating cash flows LEEREEAZ
before working capital changes FER e RE (27,427) (59,569
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TE (), R/ (2,801) 3,709
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other JEUT B 5 BR 3% N H b FE IR
receivables, deposits and prepayments PR RE RIENFKIA
B () 6,233 (63,402)
Increase in loans receivable FEUE FRIE N (230,725) (35,000)
(Increase)/decrease in amount FEW—RI B RE N T8
due from a related company (3#m),/md (10,027) 14,796
Increase in trade and BB SRR EM
other payables and accrued charges JET RIE K R E R
# 0 63,268 38,269
Increase in amounts due fo related companies & 1< A B3 2~ 7] 5K IE I A0 1,447 21,520
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERAFTEFABRZZ
through profit or loss ERMEE (196,304) (76,581)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZATFEFAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMNMENE 168,335 =
Cash used in operations CEXEFAZES (228,001) (156,258
Interest received B A B 553 20
Net cash used in operating activities RETEFMAZRESFE (227,448) (156,238
Investing activities REED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB W% - H/E K& # 15 (7,112) (6,310)
Purchase of infangible assets BEERTLEE 17 = (198
Purchase of availableforsale investments BEAHEERE - (40,700)
Decrease/ (increase) in pledged bank HIHRITFR
deposit B () 494 (133)
Cash inflows from acquisition of WE—FRBLARZ
a subsidiary, nef HE R AFRE 34 = 9,502
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—RBERRZ
FriS 308 - 6,690
Cash and bank balance disposed of KEHEHBARZ
from disposal of subsidiaries &3 & RIRITHE 35 (2,860) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMAZRESFE (9,478) (31,149

m China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEABeRER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZEZTE—hF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Financing activities METD
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, BTEBRATERIA
net of fransaction costs in connection (& BEBEITRO
with issuances of shares RGKA) 31 150,733 170,770
Proceeds from issue of BITAIRERER
convertible loan notes Fr{S 3k I8 41 120,000
Inferest paid BEAFE 42 (3,799) (3,451)
Proceeds from borrowings EEFT1SFIE 42 5,612 52,248
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 42 (41,281) (15,419)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEESEENE £ 2R & FHE 231,265 204,148
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%f’%
cash equivalents W) INFE (5,661) 16,761
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ MEEZR# 8 2 & 2,744 2,991
Cash and cash equivalents FHARAESRREZEY
at beginning of year 57,857 32,356
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBEERREZEY 54,940 52,108
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReERRESEEWERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 26 54,940 57,857
Bank overdrafts RITE X 28 = (5,749)
54,940 52,108

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

—E-AF=A=+—H

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

China Healthwise Holdings limited A BI%S e RIZR A R A
A (the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands,
and the principal place of business of the Company is at Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. Its subsidiaries
(fogether with the Company referred to as the “Group”] are
principally engaged in sale of toys, consumer electronic products
and Chinese health products, money lending business and
invesiment in financial instruments.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Nofe 18
fo the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective
on 1 April 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 1, Firstime
Adoption of Hong Kong

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 20142016 Cycle
Financial Reporting Standards
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment

Transactions
HKFRS @ Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Foreign Currency Transactions and

HK(IFRIC)=nt 22

Advance Consideration
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 1, Firsttime Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes fo standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
fo HKFRS 1, Firstime Adoptfion of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, removing fransition provision
exemptions relafing fo accounting periods that had already
passed and were therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the periods to which the transition
provision exemptions related have passed.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-setfled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net sefflement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
that changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-setiled to equity-settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement

of Share-Based Payment Transactions — Confinved

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have any
cash-seffled share-based payment transaction and has no
share-based payment transaction with net sefflement features
for withholding tox.

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments

(il

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS @ replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting
for financial instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3] hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 April
2018 has resulted in changes in accounting policies
of the Group and the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The impact, net of fax, of transiion to HKFRS @ on
the opening balance of reserves, accumulated losses
and non-controlling interests ("NCI”) as of 1 April
2018, if any, was not significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

(il

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

HKFRS @ carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss [“FVTPL") where the amount of change
in fair value atiributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS @ retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assefs of held to maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and availableforsale financial
assets. The adopfion of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group's accounting policies related to
financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.
The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification
and measurement of financial assefs is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

1 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continued

(il

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS
15), an entity shall, af initial recognition, measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs.
A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial assets
at amortised cost (“amortised cost”); [ii) financial
assefs at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI"); or liii) financial assets at FVTPL.
The classification of financial assets under HKFRS @
is generally based on two criteria: (i) the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and [ii) its contractual cash flow characteristics (the
so|e|y payments of principo| and inferest criterion,
also known as the “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9,
embedded derivatives are no longer required to be
separated from a host financial asset. Instead, the
hybrid financial instrument is assessed as a whole for
the classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Confinved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

(il

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has not
been designated as at FVTPL:

. It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assefs in order fo
collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dafes to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

e |t is held within a business model whose
objective is to be achieved by both collecting
confractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

e The confractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irevocably elect
fo present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investmentby-investment basis. All other
financial assefs not classified at amortised cost or
FVOCI as described above are classified as financial
assets af FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements fo be measured af amortised
cost or FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved — 4z
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective () BRAAHERETEBUHBRE
on 1 April 2018 - Confinved EH-R=-E—-N\FNHBE—HH
REM—#&
HKFRS @ - Financial Instruments — Continved BAUERELERFR —em T A~

T AN ERE—E

=
=5

(il Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

The following accounting policies would be applied
to the Group's financial assefs as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVOCI (equity

investments)

FVOCI (debt

instruments)

Financial assets at FVTPL is
subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assefs at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using
the effective inferest rate method.
Inferest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments ot FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Dividend
income s recognised in profit or
loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss.
Other nef gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified o profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

(il

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

As of 1 April 2018, certain investments in
listed equity investments were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assefs at FVTPL when initially applying HKFRS
Q. As a result, financial assets with a fair value
of HK$166,855,000 were reclassified from
availablefor-sale financial assets at fair value to
financial assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continued

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments — Continved

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS @ for
each class of the Group's financial assets as af 1

April 2018

Original classification

Financial assets under HKAS 39
BEEBEER
SREE EI0REEER

Availablefor-sale investments Availablefor-sale

2. EMER
P E

(a)

New classification as ot 1 April 2018

J?’]’%i&
2R -

Rl RIETEBUBRSE

A ([ER

BEH-R-F-N\FWA-BH
RER—#&
FREVBRELERNFESR-—SMTA—
i ZBTRZTERE—E

TERBAR-_FT—-NFOA—
B -AEEEESREERES
Bt ERIEIORR A ER
AIRRBEREV B RELERF
SEEVETRT B -

Carrying amount  Carrying amount

as at 1 April 2018

(at fair value)
HREERE AERE (ZRTE)
Financial assets at fair value FVTPL
through profit o loss
BAFEFAEBRZEREE BAFEFARR

Trade receivables

[LETETA

Other receivables and deposits
Hih SR iR

Loans receivable

ERER

Pledged bank deposit
EEMRITER

Cash and cash equivalents

BeRReFED

loan and receivables

BR KRR

Loan and receivables

BR KRR

Loan and receivables

ERRENRE

Loan and receivables

ERREYHRE

Loan and receivables

B R EWUR
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under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9

BEEBET REEBRE

ERIE39%% REERER

BREFBHE R-E-N§ R-E-NF

2R mA—HH mA—AH

HOSE I E BB REE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FTAET

FVTPL 166,855 166,855

BAFEFTAEBR
FVTPL 65,867 65,867
BAFEFAER

Amortised cost 70,431 70,431
B

Amortised cost 23,841 23,841
B

Amortised cost 35,000 35,000
B

Amortised cost 494 494
B

Amortised cost 57,857 57,857

B A



Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Confinved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS @ has changed the Group's
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39
“incurred loss model” to the “expected credit loss
["ECL") model”. HKFRS @ requires the Group fo
recognise ECls for trade receivables, financial assets
at amortised cost, and debt investment at FVOC]
earlier than HKAS 39. Pledged bank deposit, cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECL model
but the impairment is immaterial for the current
period.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are measured
12-month EClLs:

these are the ECLs that result from possible default

on either of the following bases: (1)

events within the 12 months affer the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continued

(i)

Impairment of financial assets — Continved
Measurement of EClLs

ECls are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects fo receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation fo the assets’ original effective

interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS @ simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECls. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debfors and the economic
environment.

For other financial assets, the ECls are based on the
12-month ECls. The 12-month ECLs is the portion
of the lifetime ECls that results from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECls. When defermining whether the credit
risk of a financial assef has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group's historical experience and  informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

fii]

Impairment of financial assets — Continved
Measurement of ECLs — Continued

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1] the borrower is unlikely to pay ifs credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group fo actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than Q0

days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Lloss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

31 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continued

fii)  Impairment of financial assets — Continved

Impact of the ECL model

(a)

Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS @ simplified approach to measure
ECLs which adopts lifetime ECLs for all trade
receivables. To measure the ECLls, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. There was no significant change
in loss allowance for trade receivables upon
the transition to HKFRS @ as of 1 April 2018
Applying the ECL model resulted in the
recognition of ECls of HK$3,505,000 for
trade receivables for the year ended 31 March
2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continved

fii]

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets — Continved

Impact of the ECL model — Continved

(b)

Impairment of other financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group's other financial assets at amortised
cost include loans receivables and other
receivables. Applying ECL model did not result
in the recognition of significant ECL for loans
receivables on 1 April 2018 but ECLs of
HK$5,109,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019. No additional loss allowance for other
receivables was recognised on 1 April 2018
and for the year ended 31 March 2019 as
the amount was not significant.

As a result, the impact of the new HKFRS 9

impairment model did not result in significant
additional impairment allowance for Group's
financial assefs as of 1 April 2018.

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS @ has no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply hedge
accounting in its hedging relationships.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

1 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS @ — Financial Instruments — Continued

(iv)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in
HKFRS 9@ such that HKFRS @ was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new ECL rules are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018
This means that differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9@ are recognised in
accumulated losses and reserves as af 1 April 2018
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018
does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS @ but
rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed
at the date of initial application of HKFRS @ (the

"DIA"):

o The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held:;

e The designation and revocation of previous
designations of cerfain financial assefs and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

e The designation of cerfain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit
risk at the DIA, then the Group has assumed that the
credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly
since its initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Confracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interprefations. HKFRS 15
has established a fivesstep model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entilled in
exchange for transferring goods or services fo a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method without practical expedients. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 15 as on adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at the date of initial application (that
is, 1 April 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2018 annual financial statements has not
been restated.

The impact, net of tax, of transition to HKFRS 15 on the
opening balances of accumulated losses and NCl as at 1
April 2018, if any, was not significant.

There was no material impact of adopting HKFRS 15 on
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019, and its consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, its consolidated
statement of changes in equity and its consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March

2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

1 March 2019

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective

—NF=R=+—H

on 1 April 2018 - Continved

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers —

Continved

(a)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the

nature of the changes fo previous accounting policies in

relation to the Group's goods are set out below:

Product
Em

Toys, consumer
electronic products
and Chinese health

products

A HER
E&%EDD&
RERE R

Nature of the goods, satisfaction
of performance obligations and
payment terms

EmzitE BTRORKERG
RIRTR

Customers obtain confrol of

the foys or products when the
goods are delivered to and

have been accepted. Revenue

is thus recognised upon when

the cusfomers accepted the toys

or products. There is generally
only one performance obligation.
Invoices are usually payable within

30 days.

EPREMmRMREZ ARG
A HE AR HI4E - Bt A
REPEMMAREREER -
BHOBRKREER B -EFE—
BRR=tHAEN AREELHE
HEFRENEE-

RMEE
| E

1 %% W & ﬁMWE%
ZR]) &

R EETEERERE
ERH-R=-B-\FHA-BH
REN &

BB REERE K -FSAH
WA —4

'l

+

MEBETHRRARBBEAREER
MBEETRRESH L H BRI
LI

Nature of change in accounting policy and impact on 1 April

2018

R-B-N\FRA-HERBREBIMERY

Impact

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the Group's

accounting policies.

E/
ga

LR R
RERTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2018 - Continved

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
fransition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group had not previously
adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its
first, year.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The interprefation provides guidance on defermining the
date of the transaction for determining an exchange rate
fo use for fransactions that involve advance consideration
paid or received in a foreign currency and the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
interprefations specifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of defermining the exchange rafe to use
on inifial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income [or part thereof] is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not paid or received
advance consideration in a foreign currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

1 March 2019

—NF=R=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted

The foHowing new/revised HKFRSs, pofenﬁo”y relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not vyet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group's current infention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.
HKFRS 16 leases'
HK(IFRIC}nt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS @

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Compensation'
Amendments to Definition of Material?

Amendments to Amendments to Definition of a Business?

HKAS 3
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
fo HKFRSs Combinations'

20152017 Cycle

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
fo HKFRSs Taxes'
20152017 Cycle

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
fo HKFRSs Costs'
20152017 Cycle
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MBI
1 March 2019 —E-NE=A=1+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. M EBHMERELERD ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted -
Continved

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January

2020

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17, leases, and relafed interprefations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee fo
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required fo
recognise a rightof-use assef representing ifs right fo use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and inferest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability info a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the rightofuse asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option fo
extend the lease, or fo exercise an opfion fo terminate the
lease. This accounting freatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS

17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

2.

—E-AF=A=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") - Confinved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted -
Continved

HKFRS 16 — leases — Continved

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$11,632,000. Of
these commitments, approximately HK$1,081,000 relate
to shortterm leases and HK$253,000 to low value leases
which will both be recognised on a straightline basis as
expense in profit or loss.

HK(IFRICHNt 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the interpretfation, the entity shall determine whether
fo consider each uncertain fax freatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related information
when making those examinations. If the entity determines it
is probable that the tax oufhorif\/ will accept an uncertain
tax freatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred fax in line with its tax filings. If the enfity
defermines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the
defermination of tax is reflected using either the “most likely
amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted -
Continved

Amendments to HKFRS @ — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI if specified conditions are met — instead

of at FVTPL.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Definition of Material

and HKAS 8 — Amendments to

The amendments c|orify the definition of material and
align the definition used across the standards. The new
definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably
be expected tfo inflience decisions made by the primary
users.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

2.

—NF=R=+—H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted -
Continved

Amendments to HKAS 3 — Amendments to Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify
that for an infegrated set of acfivities and assets fo be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that fogether significantly
confribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed fo create oufputs. The amendmenfs remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and confinue fo produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
confribute fo the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narmowed the definition of outputs fo focus on
goods or services provided fo customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and infroduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of
a business obtains confrol over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the previously
held equity interest should therefore be remeasured fo its

acquisition date fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and not early adopted -
Continved

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes fo standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with the
fransactions that generated the distributable profits, either
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which remains
outstanding dfter the related qualifying asset is ready for
its infended use or sale would become part of the funds
an enfity borrows generally and therefore included in the
general pool.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

31 March 2019

3.

—E-AF=A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"] and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for land and buildings
and financial assets at FVTPL, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries.
Infercompany fransactions and balances between group
companies fogether with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. VWhere necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assefs acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity inferest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisitiondate fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a Tronsocﬁon»by—fransocﬁon basis, to measure
the NCI that represents a present ownership inferest in the
subsidiary either af fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
cosfs incurred are expensed. All other NCI are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related cosfs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation -
Continved

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only fo the exfent that they arise from
new information obfained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date] about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments fo confingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained inferest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assefs (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling inferest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relafion to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
inferests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such NCl's share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such NCI even if this results in those NCI having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(b)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an investee
it all three of the following elements are present: power
over the invesfee, exposure, or rights, fo variable returns
from the investee, and the ability fo use its power to affect
those variable refurns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company's stafement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stafed at cost less impairment loss,
it any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entfity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power fo
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are inifially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share
of the postacquisition change in the associate’s net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's inferest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and ifs associates are recognised only fo the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting
from these fransactions is eliminated against the carrying
value of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(c)

(d)

Associates — Continved

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group's share of the idenfifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assefs.

In the Compon\/'s statement of financial position, inferest
in an associafe is carried af cost less impairment losses,
it any. The result of the associate is accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any NCI in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equily interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, affer re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured af cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment fesfing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assefs that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assefs or groups of assefs. A cash-generating
unit fo which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount with
its recoverable amount [Notfe 4(r)), and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(d)

Goodwill - Continved

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated fo the unit first, and then
to the other assefs of the unit prorata on the basis of the
carrying amount fo each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset's carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Owneroccupied leasehold land and buildings are stated
at valuation less accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Increases in value arising
on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in value arising
on revaluation are first offset against increases on earlier
valuations in respect of the same property and thereafter
recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent increases are
recognised in profit or loss up to the amount previously
charged and thereafter to the properties revaluation

reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
from the properties revaluation reserve to refained eamings.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

()

Property, plant and equipment — Confinved

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes ifs
purchase price and the costs directly affributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separafe assef, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as fo
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straightline
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:
Buildings 20 vyears
leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 5-20 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 vyears

Furniture, fixtures and 2-5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Moulds 2-5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and ifs carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(f)

(9)

Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership fo lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assefs at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. lease payments are
analysed between capital and inferest. The inferest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed fo the lessor.

The tofal rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
lease term. lease incentives received are recognised as an
infegrated part of the fotal rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially af cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
for infangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straightline method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
amortisation:

Trademarks Indefinite

Patents 5-10 years

TEEEERERERATY —T—

1 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

4. TEETHER-#

(f)

(9)

HE

REEGRFREFEERZBARED
ek mHEE T AEA AZBEE
WOBAMERE -MAEMEEY
AR EHE-

AEBER/EEA
REREHERENEERATFENK
(MBEIEE ) ZEBEENFKHREY)
THRASEE -HEEEAEIIFR
if’TﬂEﬁﬁ?ﬂ%*ﬁHﬁﬂK&ﬂg il
SREHRERR ?DBT&J%?]I
_:aﬁ\J?%fﬂi%EﬁEl’J {IEl & 5 Bl #B >
BARE D& Jﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂjﬁ/\%%ﬁ%o

RECEHERNNESHRBENEE

A A E SRR 1B a5 R - BT AR
MEERE {’E%ﬁ@fﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁ’ﬂf\ﬂ
DERN—MoEHERHER -

BEE (BRI

BB 2 BB E T IRARANTER -
RERERRR EAEARAEAFEH
YR B E R ARR R AT 5H R AT A
MEBEK EABARAERFEH
RETEEBEDIREGHAERSE
HNEREEGFREF BVEER
A {50 R B R 4 5 o B BH R S O R
BEAEIRMATEER -

AR E#E 2 AIERFERIT

[EkE R
Eol AE+F
N/ ZEB-NFR 113



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) — Continved

Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at

cost less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An infangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when

no future economic benefits are expected from use or

disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of

an intangible asset, measured as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

assef, are recognised in profit or loss when the assef is

derecognised.

(i)

Infernally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

An intangible asset arising from development
expenditure on an individual project is recognised
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

e it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

®  adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

e there is an infention to complete and sell the
product;

e the Group is able to sell the product; and

e sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capifalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not safisfying the above
criferia and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(9) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) — Continved

(i)

Impairment

Intangible assefs with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an assef
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and infangible assets not yet available for
use are fested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that They may be
impaired. Intangible assefs are fested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (Note 4(r)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried af a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is freated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.

(h) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset [unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured af fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
fransaction costs that are directly attributable fo ifs
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is inifially measured
at the fransaction price.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(i)

Financial assets — Continved

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assefs are recognised on the frade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits o purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when defermining whether
their cash flows are so|e\y payment of prindpo| and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories info which
the Group classifies its debt instrumenfs:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of confractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and inferest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(i)

Financial assets — Continved
Debt instruments — Continued

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and inferest, are measured af
FVOCI. Debt investments af FVOCI are subsequently
measured af fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified fo profit

or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assefs held for trading, financial assets designated
upon inifial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assefs are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near ferm. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assefs with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
imespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated af FVTPL
on inifial recognition if doing so eliminates, or

significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

—E-AF=A=+—H

from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(i)

(i)

Financial assets — Continved

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irevocably elect
fo present subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at FVOCI are measured af
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are notf reclassified
fo profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as at FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVOCI. The ECls are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECls: these are ECls that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLls is the maximum contractual period

over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECls are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation fo the

assets’ original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets — Confinued

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS @ simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECls. The Group has esfablished a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debfors and the economic
environment.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost are
subject fo impairment under the general approach
and The\/ are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECls except for frade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition

Stage 1 -

and for which the loss allowance
is measured af an amount equal to

12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since inifial recognition but that are
not creditimpaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured af an amount equal fo
lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 —

Financial assetfs that are
credit-impaired at the reporting
date [but that are not purchased

or originated creditimpaired) and

Stage 3 -

for which the loss allowance is
measured af an amount equal fo
lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

1 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018)

(i)

— Continved
Impairment loss on financial assets — Continued

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forwardHooking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
creditimpaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group fo actfions such as realising
security [if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than Q0 days past due.

Inferest income on creditimpaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non creditimpaired financial assefs interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018)

(i)

— Continved
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured af
fair value and financial liabilities ot amortised costs
are initio”\/ measured at fair value, net of direcﬂ\/
aftributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon inifial recognition as af FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a confract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid confract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of
the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(i)

Financial liabilities — Continved

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVIPL if the following criteria are
met:

[)  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent freatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis;

[i)  the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

i) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
aft FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the stafement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, cerfain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured af
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018)

(i)

(iv)

— Continved
Financial liabilities — Continved

Financial liabilities at amortised cost — Continved

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notfes issued by the Group that
contain the host liability component, conversion
option component and other embedded derivatives
components (such as early redemption option] which
are not closely related to the host liability component
are classified separately into their respective items
on inifial recognition. Conversion option that will be
seffled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument. Derivatives embedded in host
contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
it their economic characteristics and risks are nof
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contract are not held for trading or designated

as at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the loan notes into
equity is included in equity (convertible loan notes
equity reserve).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(iv)

(v)

Convertible loan notes — Continved

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the optfion to convert
the |iobi|H\/ component info ordinor\/ shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible loan notes
equity reserve unfil the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
loan notfes equity reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised af the expiry dates, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will be
released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss
is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
optfion.

Transaction costs that relate fo the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged direcily to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating inferest income
or inferest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) - Continved

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded af the proceeds received, net of direct issue
Ccosfs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
confractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
fo the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS

9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
fo a creditor to sefile a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the dafe the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—NF=R=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)

The Group has applied HKFRS @ refrospectively, but has

elected not to restate comparative information. Accordingly,

the comparative financial information provided continued fo

be accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous

accounting policies.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assefs at FVTPL
are initially measured at fair value and all other
financial assefs are initially measured at fair value
plus fransaction costs that are directly affributable to
the acquisition of the financial assefs. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a frade datfe basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a confract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concermned.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assefs include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent fo initial recognition, financial assets af
FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)  Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018)

(i)

— Continved
Financial assets — Continved

Financial assets at FVTPL — Continved

loans and receivables

These assefs are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services fo cusfomers
[rade debtors), and also incorporate other types
of confractual monetary assef. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Available-forsale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assefs
that are designated as availableforsale or are not
included in other categories of financial assefs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetfary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For availableforsale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an acfive market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be setiled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) - Continved

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assefs

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial assef is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° signiﬁcom financial difficuh\/ of the debfor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

®  granfing concession fo a debfor because of

debtor’s financial difficulty;

e it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective inferest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)  Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) - Continved

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets — Continved
For loans and receivables — Continved
for available-forsale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value consfitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on availableforsale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring affer the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For availableforsale equity investment, any increase
in fair volue subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For availableforsale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rafe of return
for @ similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is
not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) - Continved

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured af
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
affributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon inifial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
frading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a confract confains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of
the embedded derivative is prohibited.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019

4. FTEETHER-#

ERMIA(BE=Z2-N\H=A
=t-HEAZERERE) #

(i)

(iii)

TRAE

BFREELZBN AEEY
HeRMBBEETOR -BATE
AABRENERABNIER
FERTE - Mz #HR A AR
TREB AR FELIR
ELCEREBIERAFTE-

BAFEGARZ T B E &

BAVEFABENERAE
BEFEEESRABRIY
BRABEESEAFEFAR
mZEMAE

TREBEEMAEHLESRSAEN
MEE ADERKEEER 1T
ETA(BRBIBARNTET
BN BEARKEER HHE
EERERE R TRARBRIN 55
FEBEREMNABERGETR®

7
e

E-DANEBRE —BAXREZR
BARTET A BHAERAH
AERET/REAFEFTAR
SNERAE RIFZBRARXT
AT eBEFERSRINER
ARTEMEBTEIFE AR
AN A BF o



Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)  Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018)

(i)

— Continved
Financial liabilities — Continved

Financial liabilities at FVTPL — Continved

Financial liabiliies may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent freatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or |iii] the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent fo initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, cerfain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured af
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) - Continved

(iv)

v)

fvi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating inferest income
or inferest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipfs or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cosfs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
confractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
fo the financial assef expire or when the financial
asset has been fransferred and the fransfer meets the
criferia for derecognition in accordance with HKAS

39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues ifs own equity instruments
fo a creditor fo seffle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured af their fair value on the dafe the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories fo their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
firstin first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
cosfs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is fransferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales faxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the confract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be fransferred over time or at a point in time. Confrol of
the goods or service is transferred over fime if the Group's

performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
confrols as the Group performs; or

®  does not creafe an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over fime,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress fowards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in fime when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—NF=R=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(k)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018) - Continved

When the confract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services fo the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rafe
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception./Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that confract includes
the interest expense accreted on the confract liability under
the effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a confract with a cusfomer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. The Group recognises such cosfs (e.g. sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects fo recover these
cosfs. The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The Group applies the practical expedient
of expensing all incremental costs to obtain a confract if
these cosfs would otherwise have been fully amortised to
profit or loss within one year.

() Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in fime when control of the assef is transferred
fo the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(i) Inferest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding af the applicable interest rate.

liij Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on trading
investment on a frade date basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sales of goods.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

()  Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership fo the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Income from other services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred

fax.

Current fax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expeded manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or seftled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(m)

(n)

Income taxes — Continved

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able fo control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions enfered into by group enfities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate [the “functional
currency”’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
fransactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetfary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated
af the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the sefflement of monetary
items, and on the franslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(n)

Foreign currency — Continved

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are franslated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) af the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(affributed fo minority inferests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group enfifies’
separate financial statements on the translation of longterm
monetary itfems forming part of the Group's net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified fo
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal
are reclassified fo profit or loss as part of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are freated as assefs and
liabilities of that foreign operation and franslated at the
rate of exchange prevoi|ing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign

exchonge reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits
(] Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be setfled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(i)  Defined contribution refirement plan

Confributions to defined contribution refirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

i)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
refirement benefit schemes. A defined confribution plan is
a refirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays
contributions, on a mandatory, contfractual or voluntary
basis, info a separate entity. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or
state/trustee-administered funds. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
It has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
confributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The confributions are recognised as employment cosfs when
they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesfing
fully in the contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(a)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the dafe of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
within equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken
info account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected fo vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesfing period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored info
the fair value of the options granted. As long as all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
imespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure
fo achieve a market vesting condifion.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phanfom share optfion scheme
which is defermined to be a cashsettled share-based
payment fransaction with employees. An opfion pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking info account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than
cash payments) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 March 2019

4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(r)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indicafion that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previous|y
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

®  properly, plant and equipment;
° intangible assefs with definite useful lives; and
° interests in subsidiaries.

If the recoverable amount [i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimafed to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced fo ifs recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation decrease under

that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is freated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the assets or cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating unit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an oufflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be esfimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

[i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.
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4.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

()  Related parties — Confinved

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity [or an associate or joint venture
of o member of a group of which the other
entity is @ member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other enfity is an associate of the third

entity;

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)li) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the enfity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

()  Related parties — Confinved

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected fo influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

i)  dependents of that person or that person's spouse or
domestic pariner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, esfimafes and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on hisforical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

—E-AF=A=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(i)

(i)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

The Group's management (the “Management”)
determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This esfimate is based on
the hisforical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assefs that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives; actual
residual volues may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation expense in the future periods.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Management estimates the trademarks have
indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
these intangibles are expected to provide cash
flows and these intellectual property rights can be
renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and
the products are continuing in the market.

The estimated useful lives of the patents were made
by the Management with reference fo the legal limits
on the use of the assefs and the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of intangible assefs. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations,
changed customer behavior and competitor actions
in response fo indusiry cycles.

The Management will increase the amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated useful lives, or will recognise impairment
loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

() Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of nonfinancial assets (including goodwill)

In defermining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset or a CGU can be supported by
the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use of the CGU. The value in use calculation is
based on the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the confinued use
of the asset or CGU, or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions fo be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by the Management to defermine the level
of impairment, including the discount rafes or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially offect the net present value used in
the impairment fest.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of invenfories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These esfimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer faste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. The Management reassesses
the estimations at the end of each reporting period.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(v)  Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is inifially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected fo deferiorate over the next year which
can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rafes are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among hisforical
observed default rates and ECls is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive to changes
in circumstances. The Group's historical credit
loss experience may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECls on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in Note 44(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

() Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(vi)

(vii)

Provision for ECLs on loans receivable and other
receivables

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the probability of default on a loan receivable or
other receivable has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the loans receivable or other receivables as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the receivables as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable
information including historical and forwardHooking
information which is available without undue cost or
effort.

The Group calculates ECLs allowance for loans
receivable and other receivables based on the
estimated probability of default of counterparties with
similar credit rafings, with adjustment to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriafe.

The assessment of impairment for loans receivable
and other receivables involves significant
management judgements and estimates in the
assessment of credit risk, the uses of models and the
choices of inputs in the calculation of ECLls af the
reporting dafe. The information about the ECls on
the Group's loans receivable and other receivables is

disclosed in Note 44(a).

Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds over 20% of voting rights
(but not over 50%) and the Group does not exercise
significant influence, the investment is freated as

financial assets at FVTPL. Details are given in Note
20.
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31 March 2019

5.

—E-AF=A=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statement, other key sources of estimation

uncerfainty that have a significant risk of resuling a material

adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within next financial year are as follows:

(i

(i)

Impairment of goodwill

Defermining whether goodwill and intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors fo estimate the future cash flows
expected fo arise from the cash-generating unit and o
suitable discount rafe in order to calculate the present
value.

Fair vo\ue measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group's financial stafements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and nondfinancial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in defermining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation fechnique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy” ) :

e level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

e level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019

5. BERSRMEEI RAE AR AT
BEMZEEREFE-—#

(b) fEFHFREEM ZEERIR

SRt S B RREMEBOAREZE
BN BEBEBERN T - RFREZE
ENMABRAEELEAFEZEKR
Rl E AT N EEE 2 EZRR
LIRS

)  AERE

ErTRERENEERGRE
BAGMHACEIEREZRS
ELEBENZEREE -FEER
BEREFAMGFEIRES
ELBNLERTRERELL
RRBFERE ATHERE

i) 2AFEFT=E
RASEHBREAIN T ZH
FEERBBERAFEAER
R

rEETRIFEREERA
B2 AFEFERATENAT
SLABREBEIEE - ARE
ERFEFEZHEINRER
BERNEEZHIERZAER
KFEDBARBH ([RFERE
&)

« F-E:R-EEAER
W52 B8 CREHE)

. FoR TEEZEER
CEL T S EE R
B

o FZE:FAUBRZUR(H
MBI



Notes to the Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continved

(i)

Fair value measurement — Continved

The classification of an itfem info the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

e  Revalued land and buildings — Property, plant
and equipment (Note 15);

° Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 20)
For more detailed information in relation to the fair

volue measurement of the items above, please refer
fo the applicable notes.
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MR ERIE
31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group's revenue from ifs principal activities for

6. WMARDE®RE
ERREEERE

=]
BEEBEEZWEN

the year is as follows: LU
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
[Re-presented)
(EFE5)
Continuing operations FEgE
Revenue from contracts with customers within REBUKRELEREI15%
the scope of HKFRS 15: BERNZEFEHRA:
Trading of g5
— OBM toys —BEmERETA 183,848 124,908
— Consumer elecfronic products —HERETFES 41,811 291,683
— Chinese health products — R ERER 154,660 134,433
— Others —HAfth 5,153 8,778
385,472 559,802
Revenue from other sources: Hfth 2R 5=
— Money lending business —REE 23,258 1,388
— Investment in financial instruments —-REsHMIA 42,885 -
66,143 1,388
451,615 561,190
Discontinued operations BRige
Revenue from contracts with customers within NERBMKREZEA
the scope of HKFRS 15: FISHEEAZ
EEEHKA:
- OEM toys — R EREETT A 79,061 121,358
530,676 682,548

MaE: AKRBECEBRARDEZERERR
B ISR EERFE 155  RIF UL T 0%
HREMTEEIAETRIERELE SR

RERIE 8RB

Note: The Group has inifially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is
not restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved 6. WAR D EPERE &

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EFEXAWABHMA

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E-NFZB=t+-HLEFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operafions
RIE
BRLEER RExK
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM toys products products Others Totdl  OEM toys Totol
BAMmME HER FRE
Segments Gk REGE EYEm  TERER Hi #x WERA @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TR TER TR TER TER TR

Types of goods EmAL
Trading of g5
= Toys & 183,848 = = = 183,848 79061 262,909
~ Consumer electronic producs —HEBETER = 41,811 = = 41,811 = 41,811
- Chinese health products -HERER - - 154,660 - 154,660 - 154,660
- Others -£ft = = = 5,153 5,153 - 5,153
Total 5t 183,848 41811 154,660 5153 385472 79,061 464,533
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=t-ALEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FJ
FEREEH RExK
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM foys products products Others Totdl  OEM foys Total
BERE HEE ERE
Segments pig:] HEWAE BYER TERESR it @ HERA H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL T T TAL THL T
Geographical market HE MG
- United States of America and
Canada -ZEARMER 172,998 S S = 172,998 13,440 186,438
~ Europe (Nofe] —BUM (H3E) 6,083 = = = 6,083 29,252 35,335
- China —HE = 41811 = 5,153 46,964 3,163 50,127
- Australia —&M 625 = = = 625 1,581 2,206
- Jopan -B& = = = - = 18,975 18,975
- Hong Kong -&% 2,987 = 154,660 - 157,647 12 157,659
- Korea ~8H = = = - = 3,162 3,162
- Indonesia iz - - - - - 1,768 1,768
- Others —-Hfth 1,155 S = S 1,155 7,708 8,863
Total st 183,848 41811 154,660 5,158 385,472 79061 464,533
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 March 2019 —Z—hE=F=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
— Confinved

Note:The products are first exported to one of the European
countries (the “Shipping Port Countries”) and then disfributed
to different European countries by the customers. The
information as to where the products are finally shipped
is unavailable and the cost of obtaining such information
would be excessive. The directors are of the opinion that
disclosing the identities of the Shipping Port Countries is

undesirable as such disclosure might be misleading.

6. WMARDEH®RE —#

=3
7=}

BEFEHNBABHME -4

fisl: ERaiNEZ—BNEXR([REBO
BZR]) BEERBTPDHETREBIMNE
R-EmREEMTEZTAENBNER
BERSEESERENZRARE-
EZRR REREEOBERENBT
AE RAZEMBEANREELRE -

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E-NE=R=Tt-HLFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
FREERE LE e
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM toys products products Others Toldl  OEM foys Total
BAmME HEE R
Segments 28 REFE EYER  PERER Hif @i  HERA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL Fign ThEL FhEL ThT ThEL FiEn
Timing of revenue recognition LN
- At @ point in fime “RE-RRHH 183,848 41811 154,660 5158 385,472 79,061 464,533
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NE=A=1-HLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
K1k
BREEXR Rexn
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM foys products producs Others Totdl  OEM foys Total
BAEmE HEE R&E
Segments ik HETE  BYEm  TERER i #x  HERA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TEL TER TR TEL TR
Soles channels/market or fype of
customers HERE/MHEAEPEY
~ Refail /individual cusiomers -ZE/AARF - - 107,729 - 107,729 - 107729
- Wholesale/corporate cusiomers -H%/CEEF 183,848 41,811 46,931 5,153 277743 79,061 356,804
Total &t 183,848 41811 154,660 5153 385,472 79,061 464,533
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

The Group determines ifs operating segments based on the
reporfs reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the
"CODM”| that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and requires different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable
segments:

Continuing operations

OBM toys: sale of own-brand toys

e Consumer electronic products: sale of consumer electronic
products

e Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products
®  Money lending business: granting loans

O Investment in financial instruments: investing in financial
instruments

Discontinued operations

e OEM toys: manufacturing and sale of original equipment
manufacturing foys

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
cusfomers. There were no infersegment sales in current and prior
years. Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated fo
the operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segments’ profit or loss that is used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

The Group disposed of the OEM toys segment during the year
fo match its business strategy and focus changes. The CODM
considered the necessity of reporting the OEM foys segment
separafely under discontinued operations in accordance with

HKFRS 5.

With the changes in the structure and composition of the
reportable segments, cerfain comparative figures in the segment
information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been
re-presented to conform with current year's presentation.

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER

6.

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

WARDEHRE =
AEERBEHEREBLAREE ([ARBL
REE])FFEMBNELSREE Y RE
B HIEE DR

AEBBERNEANHRED ML - S DEHBULE
B RHARER  FEHENR R RS -
AT M ERNEEEEATREDBE

T
THEE A

FEREXEL
s BEAMBREA:-BAMEITAR
=

e HEFETEM HERETERH
&=

o REREM: PEREMKEE
s MEXRH:REHER

ERIEREEL
s REBREVAE RREBERENAHR
ERIHE

2 ERALTEINEEE P I8 Z WA - A F
EREBEFEMENBEHEE- AR QA
WA R R AEFELERREFNA
DERBEEA 2 D E N KEEFEAR

B EDEELEDE -

AEBRFALERRBHRETAD B
NEHEBEREE R EHEHACA - 5FE
ERRERBRBLERBRBVHREE
AIESSHN R IR L XA T B ERRR
BEUETTA D &R -

SRTRED PRBRER 2 EY BE—
T N\E=A=t—BILEEZHBAN
ETUBRBEDEI AGARFE 2R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 March 2019 —Z—hAE=HF=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 6. W AR D EPIReE &

(a) Segment revenue and results (o) DEBAREE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_F-NF=ZA=T—-HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BRI
RERERY BEXH

Consumer Chinese Money  Invesment Reportable

electronic health lending in financial segment

OBM foys products products business  instruments Others fofll ~ OEM toys Totol

BRRRE HER R RESR THEDH R

BEmE  ETER R  HEEXH I8 Hit @ HEni Fh
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000
TiEn TEx THx THx TiEn TEx THx THET TiEn

Revenue fo external customers IEBEPBA 183,848 41,811 154,660 23,258 42,885 5,153 451,615 79,061 530,676
Segment (loss)/profit before BEEHAD 3
income fox (B8)/ &7 (24926)  (15,785) 1733 7971 [1,85) (3375 (36237)  (34,667)  [70,904)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Re-presented) HEZZ-N\F=ZA=+—RHLFE
(EFZ5)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B&I
BEREEH BERH
Consumer Chinese Money  Invesiment
electronic healih lending  in financial Reporiable
OBM toys producs products business ~ instruments Others ~ segment folol ~ OEM foys Total
BAEME HER hER REcR AREND R
NEWAE FTTER R REXH IA £t @ REnA @it

HK§000  HK$'000  HKE000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKF000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TATL TR TR TR THTL TR TR

Revenue fo external cusiomers MBRRIRA 124,908 291,683 134,433 1,388 = 8,778 561,190 121,358 682,548
Segment {loss|/profit before BEAERAAH
income fox (B18) /&l [3,754) [27,038) 6,279 1,300 [67,184) [7,292) (97,689) (81,289) (178,978
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

6. WMARDEHE =

Segment revenue and results — Continved (o) PHBMAREE £
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
[Re-presented)
(BEHZE7))
Reportable segment loss AR E S EEE (36,237) (97,689
Segment loss from disconfinued operations KRB B &I EEK 2
5 EE (34,667) 81,289)
(70,904) (178,978
Unallocated interest income Ko B F) BUA 121 8
Exchange losses, net ME K E518 - HEE = (49)
Share of result of an associate SR —MEEE R T EE = (114)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—EBE AR ZEE - (1,298)
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIELEESF K& 2,410 =
Unallocated finance costs Ko B g & Bk AN (7,760) -
Unallocated corporate expenses RABARIRAXL
— Staff costs —BIRAK (23,145) (5,189
— legal and professional fee —FEENREEER (5,220) (5,210)
— Consultancy service expense — B REH X - (3,862)
~ Others — b (1,881 (12)
Consolidated loss before income tax BrATIS T ATAR G B 1B (106,379) (194,704)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and

6. WMARDEHRE =

b) ZEMEERER

ATRAEERRENHMEERAR

liabilities by reportable segment: 2T
2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
[Re-presented)
(BFE5))
Segment assets DEEE
OBM toys BAmEREITA 73,392 55,772
OEM toys [discontinued operations) RERERIEITA
(BRIEEEHER) - 106,995
Consumer electronic products HBREETESR 6,928 63,359
Chinese health products Fh (R 2 5 90,479 102,110
Money lending business REEES 284,379 51,187
Investment in financial instruments KEemT A 231,990 232,722
Segment assets DEEE 687,168 612,145
Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRREEEY 9,821 7,081
— Other receivables, deposits and —HEMEWFIE  RE M
prepayments AN FRIA 485 413
— Others —HAth 318 533
Consolidated total assets REBERE 697,792 620,172
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Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Coniinved 6. W AR D EPIReE &

(b) Segment assets and liabilities — Continved b) PHEEHEAERE &
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
[Re-presented)
(BFZE5)
Segment liabilities DEBE
OBM toys BAmEREITA 110,608 55,383
OEM 1oys (discontinued operations) R EREITA
(BRI EET) - 162,187
Consumer electronic products HBHEETESR 55,520 05,276
Chinese health products ARG 7,139 11,434
Money lending business BEEE S 1,158 73
Others Eith 22,329 20,447
Segment liabilities NEEE 196,754 344,800
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBERAIEE
— Convertible loan notes — AR EREE 100,891 =
— Others —HAth 6,707 1,222
Consolidated total liabilities e BERR 304,352 346,022
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MR
31 March 2019 —Z—hAE=HF=+—H

i

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Coniinved 6. WARDIBME =

(c) Other segment information included in segment ) PBEERIHBEEZHMD B
results or segment assets &8
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE-NF=ZA=Z+—-BHLEFE
Disconfinued
Continuing operations operctions
BAL
RABERY BExH
Consumer Chinese Money ~ Investment Reportable
electronic health lending i financial segment
OBM foys products products business  instruments Others Unallocated folol  OEMtoys Total
RARR HER TER RE& TREDH R&fE

HERE  ETER R  HEXE  ERIA ity RAR 4y  BEn Eh
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§000  HK§'000
TEn TR TR TR TR TR TR TEn TEn TEn

Bank interest income RHSHA - - () (427) - - (121) (551) 2 (553)
Inerest expenses flEfH% 700 352 2 - - 6 7,760 8,839 2,720 11,559
Income fox creclit fiEiES (192 - [918) - - - (857) (1,967) - (1.967)
Depreciafion of propert % BERRERE

plont and equipment 2987 - 1,157 - - - - 4144 9 4153
Impaiment loss on property, % BERARRESR

plant and equipment 10,145 - - - - - - 10,145 - 10,145
mpaiiment loss on inventories FEREBE - 8,008 - - - - - 8,008 = 8,008
mpaiiment loss on loans receivable  ENEFHEEE - - - 5,109 - - - 5,109 - 5,109
mpairment loss on frade and EURAESREDEY

oher receivables FEHEBE 3,505 - - - - - - 3,505 - 3,505
Gain on disposal of subsiciories ~ HEMBAT 2z - - - - - - - - (1620 (11,620
Fair value loss on finoncial assets

af FYTPL, net

- - - - 42,509 - - 42,509 - 42,509

Addiions fo proper, RENE HR RS

plant and equipment 6,360 - 247 - - - - 6,607 50 7112
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

(c) Other segment information included in segment

results or segment assets — Confinved

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Re-presented)

31 March 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

6. WMARDEHRE =

(c)

ITHEENSTBEEZH M D B

ﬁ*ﬂ'—uﬁ»g
HE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—HILFE

(EHFZ7))
Discontinued
Coninuing operafions operations
BAL
BEGEER fexy
Consumer Chinese Money — Investment Reporiable
gleciionic heclh lending ~ in financial segment
OBM foys producls producs business ~~ inshumels Other  Unallocoled ool OEMoys Tolol
BEmi HEE hER %E TREHD R
gEnh  BTER BR  HERE  SRIA b AR i HERA &3t
HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEn i T T i T T Fhr i T
Bonk inferest income EGEELON - - 2 - - - 8) (10 (10 (20
Inerest expenses fBRX 317 - - - - - - 37 3,134 3451
Income fox expense FRRAX 803 83 - - - 101 - 087 2246 3,233
Share of result of on associote HME-HBENIRE = S S S S S 114 114 = 114
Depreciation of propert % BERRENE
plont and equipment 2619 745 732 - - - - 4,09 14,838 18,934
Amorsafion of intangible assefs BRAERS - 654 - - - 471 - 1,125 - 1,125
Impairment loss on propert, n% RRRRE
plont and equipment HEEE = 422 & S S 291 S 713 25611 26,324
Wiie off of properly, % BRREENE
plont and equipment = 1,393 = = = 988 = 2,381 = 2,381
Wit off of intangible assefs BRAERS - 2,591 - - - 464 - 3,05 - 3,055
Impairment loss on cvallobleforsle A ERERERE
invesiments - - - - 56,225 - - 56,225 - 56,225
Impairment loss on invenfories FEREBR = 1857 = = = = = 1857 - 1857
Impairment loss on frade and EUEHEHRAL
oher receivables ERGEZRERR - 713 403 - - 7284 - 8,400 615 9,015
Gain on disposal of a subsidiry HE-RNBLTZ K& - 474) - - - - - 474) - [474)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE-HBENF R - - - - - - 1,298 1298 - 1298
Fair value loss on financial assefs BATEARRL
of FVIPL, net SRAEY
NTERETE = = = - 10,714 - - 10714 - 10714
Addifons fo prope, TENE REREE
plont and equipment 3734 448 2,308 = 8 = = 6,490 1529 8,019
Additons fo infangible asses REENEE - 198 5,004 - - - - 5292 - 5292
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31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 6. W AR D EP3ReE &

ERAASERBEEMNEMEHLRE
ERMEIZIE D B2 WA RIER

(d) Geographical information (d)

Information about the Group's revenue and non-current
assefs by geographical region, according to the location

which the product is shipped and the location of assets, is

as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BEERNMT

BE-ZE—-hWEFE=ZA=+—HLEE

Non-current

Revenue assets
WA kRBEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Note (i)
(B &E(i)
Continuing operations BEEEER

United States of America and Canada EEEMER 172,998 2,037
Europe (Note {ii)) BOM B R (i) ) 6,083 =
China F 46,964 =
Australia SEM 625 —
Hong Kong (Note (i) A (My=E(i) 223,790 6,614
Indonesia ENfe 1,155 =
451,615 8,651

Discontinued operations ERIEREER
United States of America and Canada EBRMME KX 13,440 =
Europe (Note {ii)) BOM (B =ELii)) 29,252 =
China i 3,163 =
Australia SEM 1,581 =
Japan H A 18,975 -
Hong Kong 0 12 -
Korea B e 3,162 -
Indonesia Elfe 1,768 =
Others Efth 7,708 =
79,061 -
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6.

Geographical information — Confinved

Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved 6.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Re-presented)

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

WARDEHRE =
(d HEER -2
Bz N\F=Z=A=Z=+—"HILFE

(BFZE5])
Non-current
Revenue assets
WA FMBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FET
(Note (i)
(HIEEN)
Continuing operations BEKEXEYR

United States of America and Canada EEEIMER 123,205 11,583
Europe (Note {ii)) BOM (B R (i) ) 1,209 -
China s 300,461 125
Hong Kong (Note (iii)) & (M =E(ii) 136,146 7,281
Others HAith 169 -
561,190 18,989

Discontinued operations ERIEREER
United States of America and Canada EEEIMNER 24,099 -
Europe (Note {ii)) BOM (B R (i) ) 24,478 -
China s 5,526 -
Australia SEM 3,487 -
Japan SN 29,520 -
Hong Kong B 161 =
Korea [AEY 4,202 -
Indonesia e 13,038 75,313
Others HAh 16,847 -
121,358 /75,313
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME
31 March 2019 —Z—AF=A=+—H

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

(d)

()

Geographical information - Continved

Notes:
(i) Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments

[i) ~ The products are first exported to one of the Shipping
Port Countries and then distributed to different European
countries by the customers. The information as fo where
the products are finally shipped is unavailable and the cost
of obtaining such information would be excessive. The
directors are of the opinion that disclosing the identities of
the Shipping Port Counfries is undesirable as such disclosure
might be misleading.

(i) Revenue from interest income, dividend income and sale of
financial instruments are disclosed by location of operations.
Information on major customers:

None of the external customers contributed 10% or more
of the Group's revenue during the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: Nil.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

OTHER REVENUE, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. BEMEWA - -WsmRkEE FHE
2019 2018
=E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
[Re-presented)
(BFZE5)
Continuing operations FEREEY
Bank interest income RITH B A 551 10
Fair value loss on financial assets BERAFEHFABER eREEL
at FVTPL, et AT ERBEFE (42,509) (10,714)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & KB A Rz W - 474
loss on de-egistration of a subsidiary HEE— MR A REE (19) -
Cain on deemed disposal of bonds BIELEESF WS 2,410 =
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MBLE QR ZEE - (1,298)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE MEEREEE
plant and equipment (12¢) (5)
Impairment loss on availableforsale AHEERERERE
investments - (56,225)
Impairment loss on loans receivable FEWE 2 REEE (5,109) -
Impairment loss on trade and EWE SRR R E AR GRIE
other receivables EEE (3,505) (8,400)
Exchange losses, net M W 1E - R R (100) (152)
Others Etb 1,883 727
(46,524) (75,583
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Bank interest income |RITH B A 2 10
Impairment loss on frade and FEUE 5 IR B SR H M E Y RIE 2
other receivables REEE - 615)
Exchange losses, net P 5 BI85 8 (1,313) (2,409
Others Hb 94 867
(1,217) (2,147)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR ERIE
31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H
8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

(a)

8. FRFTEGBIAIEIR

Continuing operations (o) HELEXH
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRATSTHATEBRTEIR To&EER
(EhiE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
[Re-presented)
(EFE5)
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEERAE 278,878 397,673
Impairment loss on inventories FEREEE 8,008 1,857
Costs of invenfories recognised HBRB/FAX 2 FERA
ds expenses 286,886 399,530
Auditor's remuneration Z SR BN & 2,354 1,790
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEBITE
equipment 4,144 4,096
Amortisation of infangible assets B E - 1,125
Write-off of property, plant and ER S €
equipment - 2,381
Write-off of infangible assets BB E M = 3,055
Employee costs (excluding directors’ BEXE(TEEEEHE)
emoluments) (Note 13) (HH5E13) 54,778 126,640
Directors” emoluments (Note 14) EEWS (M:E14) 25,691 1,080
Equity-settled share-based payment AR 4 E DA D A ETR K
expenses B X 15,742 =
Research and development costs TR (FTA—R K
[included in general and THER)
administrative expenses) 10,209 11,039
Operating lease payments recognised as Tt #) 5 132 & 5 X &9
expenses in respect of properties KEHENR 20,421 20,956
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8.

Notes to the Financial Statements

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX - Confinved

(b) Discontinued operations

On 14 December 2018, the Group entered into sale
and purchase agreements to dispose of the entire equity
interests in its subsidiaries (namely lung Cheong Asia
Holdings Limited, Kid Galaxy Global Limited and lung
Cheong Overseas Corporation, collectively the “Disposal
Companies”). The disposal was completed on 30 January
2019, the date on which the control of the Disposal
Companies and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”),
which engaged in manufacturing and sale of OEM toys
passed to the acquirer. The sales, results and net assets of
the Disposal Group were as follows:

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

8. BRITSHBAIBE »#
b) B @

RZZE-NF+ZA+HA x&EH
RAIVEEHE WHEHME QA
Lung Cheong Asia Holdings Limited * Kid
Calaxy Clobal limited % lung Cheong
Overseas Corporation (£t 78 [ £ & 2
ARk ER FHELER T
—hF—-—A=+HB(AMEERAF R
MEAR (HEEE] EREKE
HEMARENHE)NEH EEE
TREANER)THK - HEEEAH
S RERBEEFENT:

Period from
1 April Year
2018 to ended
30 January 31 March
2019 2018
B=Z-—N\F
A—HZ HE
—E-NEF —E-N\F
—RA=+H =A=+—H
i EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 79,061 121,358
Expenses 2 (125,348) (202,647)
Loss before gain on disposal of operations Bk Hi & 48 & 2 75 i &5 K&
and income fax TSt plEE (46,287) (81,289
Gain on disposal of operations HERZEXBE 11,620 =
Loss before income tax from discontinued BRI B B 4R 1 & & %7
operations TSt plEE (34,667) (81,289
Income tax expense FIB A X = (2,246)
Loss for the period/year from B/ FANREBERIEEED
discontinued operations o) g (34,667) (83,535)
Operating cash flows KERERE 19,814 (13,290
Investing cash flows KEREME (505) (1,568)
Financing cash flows MERERE (13,244) 8,345
Total cash flows BIMERE (6,065) 6,513)
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MR ERME

31 March 2019

8.

—E-AF=A=+—H

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX - Confinved

(b)

Discontinued operations — Confinved

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group af the date of complefion of the disposal
are disclosed in Note 35.

Reclassification of exchange difference to profit or loss of
HK$35,705,000 were recognised upon the disposal of
the Disposal Group, being the proceeds of disposal less
the carrying amount of the Disposal Group's net liabilities.
As a result, a gain of HK$11,620,000 was recognised.
No tax charge or credit arose from the disposal.

For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations, the
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related nofes have
been re-presented as if the operations discontinued during
the year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period.

FINANCE COSTS

8. BRATEHAIEIE #

(b)

CRIEEERE &

RHEEFETK AR ZAMHEREDN
BENAENREERH FESSHE -

REERMLERERERISEL =
MEFOBEEREZ=THEBEL B
T T T (BN & A5 SR8 R % A
EEEREFEKREE) Bt Wa
—T-AART_BETCDE®R-F
AL ELTEELHEERKER -

REIERIEREXEBMS &AL
iRt Ea kAt ERER RIEH
MEDKEHZ2S BMFRDRIE
REXBRLEBRRENHE &R L.

Q. BB

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Total interest expenses for financial liabilities I 3E#Z A FEFT AEBZ 2
that are not at FVTPL: TRABENSRAXERE:
Continuing operations REREXER
Interests on borrowings EERE 1,079 317
Interest on convertible loan notes (Note) MR EREEFE (M) 7,760 -
8,839 317
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Inferest on borrowings BENS 2,720 3,134
11,559 3,451

Note: For the year ended 31 March 2019, interest on convertible

loan notes included inferest expense of HK$ 1,157,000 for
the straight bonds [Notfe 41).
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10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Notes to the Financial Statements

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the Company’s

subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the current and prior years as The\/

either did not derive any assessable profits or had estimated tax

losses brought forward to offset against the estimated assessable

profits.

No enterprise income tax has been provided as the Company's

subsidiaries in the PRC and did not derive any assessable profits

for the current and prior years arising from the PRC.

The amount of income fax (credit]/expense in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

10. FR% (%) BX

HRAFER LFEARTANEEHMBA
B REE T ERBREHN - IR EB GG
T TR B 1R A SR SH A S FE AR s A1) - Rt 3 R
R FRREL T BN SRR -

HRARRNPEMBRARANANFE R E
FEIWAREETAERBGEHN - B W RH
ZERAFHERMEHEE-

ReBakAte2mBaERAZMEHR (K
%) /HAXeREE:

represents:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHERT THETT
[Re-presented)
(EF275)
Continuing operations FREREXER
Deferred tax BRI IR
— current year —REE (1,967) 392
— attributable to decrease in tax rate —ERERH R D - 595
Income tax (credit)/expense Frigfi (e), Bk (1,967) 087
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Deferred tax RIERIR
— current year —RFE — 2,246
Income tax expense PS5 B 2 - 2,246

PEEEREERERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME

1 March 2019 —hWF=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE - Continved 10. A8 (E®) BX-#

FAMGHR (BER) AxBEFABRENIE

The income tox (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled
fo the loss before income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

fEERER 2B HATERHRAT -

2019 2018
—E2-hEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT
Continuing operations BEKEXR
Loss before income tax BrET1S TR &S 18 (71,712) (113,415)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax RERBE( ZF—\F:
rate (2018: 16.5% BHZHABR)HEYHE (11,833) (18,713)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HMrREEEE L WB AT
operating in other jurisdictions TRRE 2 Z 8 (2,254) (2,553)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BANIRBANREZE
for tax purposes (7,674) (4006)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEAHAORE T E
for tax purposes 16,550 19,878
Effect on opening deferred tax balances 38 PR A SO A i B IR AE B IR
resulting from a decrease in applicable BT E
tax rate - 595
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERMEEBEEOREZE 6,641 3,519
Utilisation of tax losses previously not PRBEARERRIARRE
recognised (391) (8606)
Others Hith (3,006 467)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frigfi (%) Fx (1,967) 087
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Loss before income tax B ET1S A B 18 (34,667) (81,289
Tax calculated af the applicable tax RERABRE( ZT—-/\F:
rafe (2018: 16.5%) BAZTARER)GTEZRIEA (5,720) (13,413)
Effect of o||FferenT tax rates of subsidiaries HitahERE R & & 2 M B A A
operating in other jurisdictions TRAME & (1,758) (3,181)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEBFA R E T E
for tax purposes 1,554 Q774
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERREEEOREZE 5,924 9,066
Income tax expense TS 15 B XX — 2,246
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12.

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 35 40 R PR

1 March 2019 —NWF=ZA=+—H
DIVIDENDS 11. RE
The directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the EFETEBERNBEE_ZE-NLF=H
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). =t+—BLFEZAMNKRE (ZE—N\F:
) e
LOSS PER SHARE 12. BRE#E
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)\F
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Continuing operations FEEEXER
Basic loss per share BREAREE (0.72) (1.48)
Diluted loss per share (Note) FREESE (W) N/ATE A N/ATiE A
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Basic loss per share BRELREE (0.41) (1.271)
Diluted loss per share (Note) SREEEE (W) N/ATE A N/ATiE A

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of

ZNYN ﬂ%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ@%%

the Company is based on the following data: TEURFTE:
2019 2018
—B-NF — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TAET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARG ESREREER 2
the Company from continuing operations, RRRER ANFELS
used in the basic loss per share calculation B & FEHK 2 FNEE (60,649) (102,568
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AN ESRERERZ
the Company from discontinued operations, ~ZANARI#EA AFE(LE 421E
used in the basic loss per share calculation & & 2% 2 F NEE (34,667) (83,535)
2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
Number of shares RHEER
Weighted average number of ordinary R ESREREE 2
shares for the purposes of basic loss BN T8 A
per share 8,451,280,603 6,908,687,715

Note: No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended 31
March 2019 as the effect of all potential ordinary shares from
share options granted and convertible loan notes issued during the
year is antidilutive, No diluted loss per share is presented for the
year ended 31 March 2018 as the Company has no potential
ordinary shares at that date.

TEEEERERERATY —T—

it :

REBEZE-Z-NF=ZA=+—BLFE K
RERBFASRKEBRERSETARAER
EREBRNAEEEER xﬂ&ﬁ& EZ- 8
A E2NSEHETER-BE_F /\
FZA=+—HALEFE ARZAELR
BT mAR Eﬁ@’[?ﬁi%ﬁlJ%%%EﬁE ©
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M HRME

31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H

13. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs [excluding directors’ emoluments) comprise:

13. BEMA

BERA (TREEEME)BHE:

2019 2018

—E—-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Wages and salaries TERE® 49,131 110,865

Shortterm non-monefary benefits MHFEEBEF 4,287 10,394
Contributions on defined contribution TEREEFRIKRESF B 2 7R

refirement plans 1,360 5,381

54,778 126,640

14. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable

14 EEREREBEAEZHE

(o) EEME

ENEREMNARRARES 2B EEEL

to the directors of the Company are as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Directors’ fee EFWe 4,101 1,080
Other emoluments: Em e -
Basic salaries, bonus, housing and EAXEFe Tt -EEK
other allowances and benefits in kind Eq)ZBE R BN = 5,810 -
Provident fund scheme contributions NESFTE 2 7K 38 -
Equity-setiled share-based payment LA 22 45 B DARR A /B B0
expenses [Nofe (a)) MR (BE5E(a)) 15,742 -
25,691 1,080

[a)  These amounts represent the estimated value of share (a)
options granfed to the directors under the Company's

share option scheme. The value of these share opfions is

measured according to the accounting policies for share-
based payments as set out in Note 4(g). Further details of

the options granted are set out in Note 32.

[b)  No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the (b)
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year.
No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the

years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERRME
31 March 2019 —ZE—-hE=A=+—H

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 14. EEREHREEBEAEYHME »~
EMOLUMENTS - Confinved

(a) Directors” emoluments — Continved (o) EEME &
The emolument of each director for the year ended HE-ZT-NF=-A=1+—HILFE"
31 March 2019 is sef out below: BUEEZMEHIWT
Housing

and other Equity-settled

allowances Provident  share-based

Basic salaries  and benefits  fund scheme payment
Name of director E=pR Fees and bonus inkind  confributions expenses Total

EERHM DY 510

EXFe RER DLREH#Z URDAER
e REA BUF 3 HARMAX a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors HiTES
M. Lei Hong Wai THERLE 2,210 - - - 3,935 6,145
Mr. leung Alex REBLHE 120 1,844 - 8 3,936 5,908
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BRHRL 120 736 - 12 3,936 4,804
Mr. Tse Chi Keung #HERTE 120 2,856 - 18 3,935 6,929
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REERA
[appointed on & November 2018) (R=Z-N\F
+—RAAREZME) 979 374 - - - 1,353
Mr. lee Chan Wah FRERE
[resigned on 6 November 2018] (RZB-N\F
+—-AXBEE) 72 - - - - 72
Non-executive director FHTES
M. Dico Yunfeng 1RERE 120 - - - - 120
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REREE 120 - - - - 120
M. Lien Wai Hung BERELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Tok Chuen BEREAE 120 - - - - 120
4101 5,810 - 38 15,742 25,691
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M HRME

31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS - Continved

(a)

—E-AF=A=+—H

14 EEREREEAEZHE »

Directors’ emoluments — Continved ) EEMe-—#
The emolument of each director for the year ended HE_ZT—)\F=A=1+—HILFE"
31 March 2018 is set out below: BUEEFZHMEHIWT
Housing
and other Equityseffled
allowances Provident sharebased
Bosic salaries ~ and benefits  fund scheme poyment
Name of director BEpg Fees and bonus inkind  confribufions expenses Totcl
EERA WEREER
9. BRE  NESHEC WRHAER
ik 2 RiItA ENFls #h AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART THART THART THART THT
Executive directors YrES
M. lei Hong Wi FRERE 120 = = = = 120
Mr. leung Alex REB R 120 S S S S 120
Ms. lo Ming Wan L e 120 = = = = 120
Mr. Tse Chi Keung AEREE 120 S = = = 120
Mr. lee Chan Wah FRERE (RZF-N
[resigned on 6 November 2018) F+-AAHEL) 120 - - - - 120
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. Diao Yunfeng BB R 120 = = = - 120
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERTHE 120 S S S S 120
Mr. Lien Wai Hung ERERE 120 = = = = 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERRE 120 = = = = 120
1,080 > 5 5 5 1,080
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS - Continved

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Four direcfors whose emoluments are disclosed in the
analysis presenfed above were among the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2019. During the year ended
31 March 2018, none of the directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in the analysis presented above were among
the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group. The emoluments payable fo the remaining one

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

14 EEREREEAEZHE »

b) EUBESHFMAL

BE_T-NF=A=+—HBItF
B-MREEzZHMER EX2IAE
BRuSeEHFMA LTz MR RE-
BE_T—)/\F=RA=1+—HILFE"
AEEAfURSHFMALHHEAL
REF EMeC RN EX2INZ0M
THRE-FARNTHT (=T
—N\F: A RSFMA LIS

(2018: five) highest paid individual during the year are as N
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Basic salaries, bonus, housing and EXEFHe i EER
other allowances and benefits in kind Ha 2 REYH = 1,900 5,856
Provident fund scheme contributions NESFE 2 H7R - 211
1,900 6,067
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MR
31 March 2019 —Z—hE=F=+—H

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 14. EERESHREBAESMES ~#
EMOLUMENTS - Confinved

(b) Five highest paid individuals - Continved b) EUERSHFMAL-Z
The emoluments paid or payable 1o the above individuals ERSERM E AT ZFHBMAFIAT
were within the following bands: HEA:
2019 2018
—B-NhF —E-N\F
No. of No. of
Individuals Individuals
AB AE
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 —BAEE—AEITE
—BRTEET - 5
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 —BET&EZ—ETE
—HEBT 1 =
(c) Senior management’s emolument ) EREBEEBABZME
The emoluments paid or payable to the senior management ENRENSREBAE (TREE
(excluding directors| were within the following bands: R)ZHMENFATHRR:
2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
No. of No. of
Individuals Individuals
AB AE
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 L t+BZE—ELE
—BEETT 1 =
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 —BBZTETE
—BATEETL - 1
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31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BENKE

Furniture,
Land and Leasehold Plantand ~ fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
K- RXEBR
TiRET HENERE HERESR B AE HA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FEL TAT FAL FET FHT
At 31 March 2017 RZF—+F=A=1+—-H
Cost or valuation A EE 77,484 1,341 57,661 24,905 1,153 25,284 187,828
Accumulated impairment ZETRE - - [1,337) (20) 167 16,646) (8,064
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (3,254) (948 (26,069) [14,630) [631) 9,556) 155,088)
Net book value BEFE 74,230 393 30,255 10,255 461 9,082 124,676
Net book amount af 1 Apiil 2017 RZE—+ENA-AZEEFE 74,230 393 30,255 10,255 461 9,082 124,676
Acquired through business BREBAGNE (Wz34)
combination (Note 34) o 604 S 1,105 S S 1,709
Additions RE S 521 894 1,137 110 3,648 6,310
Provision for impairment RERE - (183 (19,324 (6,419) 1398 - 126,324
Disposals HeE - - - 19) - - 15)
Depreciation charge EXH (1,507) [354) (10,032) (4,155) (163) (2,723 [18,934)
Surplus on revaluation EftiEE 4,224 - - - - - 4,224
Wite off HisH - S (529) = S (1,852) (2,381
Exchange difference ELER (1,634) [316) (1,264) [404) (10) 447 (3,181)
Nef book value ot 31 March 2018~ R=Z—-\=A=+—-RH2
FHFE 75313 665 - 1,514 - 8,602 86,094
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1+-AH
Cost or valuation A EE 80,074 2,241 54,797 23,124 1,273 15,548 177,057
Accumulated impairment 2EtRE - (183) (20,190) (6,705) 477) - 127,555
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (4,761) 1,393 (34,607) [14,905) [796) 16,946) 63,408
Net book value BEFE 75,313 665 S 1,514 S 8,602 86,004
Net book amount af 1 Apiil 2018 RZZ-N\EMA-BZEAEFE 75,313 665 S 1,514 S 8,602 86,004
Disposed through disposal RAHEMBARMLE
of subsidiaries 173,378 - (991) - - - 74,369
Additions RE S 65 419 551 S 6,077 7112
Provision for impairment BERE - - - - - (10,145) [10,145)
Disposals HeE - - - [126) - - [126)
Depreciofion charge EXH S (499) S 1667) S (2,987 (4,153
Surplus on revaluation EfhEE S S S = = S =
Wite off s S = = = = = =
Exchange difference ERLER (1,935) [104) 572 [252) - 249 (1,470)
Nef book value at 31 March 2019 R=Z—-n&=A=+—-RHZ
FHFE S 127 & 1,020 S 1,796 2,943
At 31 March 2019 R=F-NF=A=1-B
Cost or valuation A EE S 2,242 = 6,247 288 21,677 30,454
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE = [177) - [401) [205) (10,145) [10,922)
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE - (1,944) - (4,826) 83) 9,736) 116,589
Net book value BEFE = 127 = 1,020 > 1,796 2,943
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31 March 2019

—E-AF=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Confinved

Notes:

(al

(b)

(c)

(d)

The land and buildings represented a freehold land and certain
factories situated in Indonesia, which was disposed of on 30
January 2019 (Note 35).

As at 31 March 2018, borrowings of HK$13,597,000 were
secured by the Group's land and buildings.

As at 31 March 2019, fixture and equipment with carrying
amount of HK$449,000 (2018: HK$574,000) were pledged fo
secure designated banking facility and borrowing (Note 28).

The Group's land and buildings were revalued at 31 March
2018. Valuation was made on the basis of open market value
carried out by Andreas Parlindungan Siregar Property Appraisers &
Consultants [KJPP), an independent firm of chartered surveyors. The
surplus on revaluation, net of applicable deferred income taxes,
was credited fo land and buildings revaluation reserve.

The fair value of land and buildings was a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balance is provided below.

15. ME-BERRE -2

B &E :

(al

(b)

(c)

(d)

THRBFEURENEZKAEEL R
EFmE ER-ZT—NF—A=+AH
& (ME35) -

WZZE-NF=ZA=+—-H &
—T=ZAA+tABLTETIAAEEZ
T REFEERA -

RZZT—NF=ZA=+—H8 KEEA
M+mEEAFET(ZE-N\F A+t
BOTEL) ZEKBERRBEER UAE
ERITRE MEERHEER (HFE28)

AEBZLHWEBFR-_ZE—-N\F=A
=t+—RAE/H-HENRARMEREE
TH - B — [ FF R 8% 32 2 AlAndreas
Parlindungan  Siregar Property Appraisers &
Consultants (KIPP)#ETT - E G IE{E (1K E A
BB Bt AL R FE M FH
e

THEREBFZAFEAEZREEEATF
B2 - HUORBERAFELEHZHES
FanT e

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value] EA#I# 84 (B =R E MR FE) 75,313 74,230
Disposal HE (73,378) =
Depreciation charge for the year FARWELH - (1,507)
Surplus on revaluation HIHIEE = 4,224
Exchange difference E N ZE%E (1,935) (1,634)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value)  BAFR# & (F =R FHERTFE) - 75,313
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Confinved

Notes: — Continved

(d)

(e)

— Continved

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of land held for own use
of HK$50,750,000 was estimated using market comparison
approach. Fair values are based on prices for recent market
fransactions in similar properties with significant adjustments for
differences in the location or condition of the Group's properties.
These adjustments are based on unobservable inputs.

Significant unobservable inputs Range

[Discount)/premium on quality of properties (10%) - 15%

Higher premiums or discounts for the quality Range of the Group's
properties compared fo recent sales will result in correspondingly
higher or lower fair values.

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of buildings held for own
use of HK$24,563,000 was estimated using cost approach.
Fair values are based on cost of consfruction for same utilities and
capacity, less depreciation.

There were no changes fo the valuation techniques during the
periods. The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their
actual use.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no transfers
info or out of level 3 or any other level. The Group's policy is o
recognise fransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

As at 31 March 2018, the Management reassessed the fair value
of the land and buildings by reference to the property market
information and was of the opinion that the fair value of the land
and buildings does not materiality differ from its carrying amount.

The carrying amount of the revalued land and buildings as at
31 March 2018 would have been HK$18,811,000, had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

15. ME-BERRE -2

WisE: —4&

(d)

(e)

—/E

RZZBE-N\F=ZA=+—HB #HEEAZ
THOAFERTELTREETHER
WIS L BOE MR - R FETER T BB
MENTIERHER LRERNEEYE
MR ERMRRZRIELRERRHE - FB
BDERTABRZH8E-

ERTUEEZHE gE
SYEERE (FE) HE (10%) - 15%

SR SR B W) 5 2 60 (2] S B 3K S L AP
1R 28 ERITEE XSGR A FERRE
Ho3E pN R A o

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—B HEEEAZ
BFOAFE-_TOALATAEB=TAETL
TERRAERE - ATEDERRASE R
FIRIR 2 R AR ELFH

HIA 2 fhE R M EE & 8 - R FEF
ENRELAMEREERERERMER &
R RERGEE -

REBEE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—HILFE"
5B = AR AT (T Eo A A ) I A AR E
AEBENBRERNBERRIFERES
AR B RS T IARERR

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H BEBELKZ
EMEMBEREFIHLHEETZA

FE YR/ LHMEEFT 2 AFEERLR
EELIFEERER-

IR AR REH T E R RFHREBBEAR -

RZBE-NF=ZA=+—B ERfLHR
ByzEmEERR—TNANT—E—T
BITe
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—NF=R=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Confinved

Notes: — Continved

(f

tel]

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group suspended
manufacturing activities in consumer electronic products segment
and commercial kitchen products segment, mainly due to the
termination of eligibility of the segments to use the patents since
April 2018. Write off of HK$2,381,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2018 as part of general and
administrative expenses included in profit or loss fo write down
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment to its recoverable
amount.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as the Group continued
to record losses for OBM toys segment, the Management
considered there was indication for impairment for the nondinancial
assets in this segment, representing property, plant and equipment

of HK$12,182,000 (2018: HK$101,637,000).

The recoverable amount of CGUs was based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the Management covering a
8 14%)

Other key assumption for the value in use calculation relates to

five-year period, and pretax discount rate of 19% (201

the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
the Management's expectations for the market development. The
growth rafe used fo extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year
period is 2% (2018: 3%), which do not exceed the longferm
growth rate for the indusiry in the corresponding country. The
Management believes that any reasonable and possible change
in any of this assumption would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount fo exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Accordingly,
impairment loss in the aggregate of HK$10,145,000 (2018
HK$26,324,000] was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss by the above-mentioned
segment in the current and prior years was set out in Note 6(c).
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MBI
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16. GOODWILL 16. B8
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Cost 2%

At the beginning of the year REA) 105,293 94,636

Acquired through business acquisition BBEBWEIUS (H17E34)

(Note 34) - 614
Exchange difference ME H, 2= 2R (9,303) 10,043
At 31 March R=BA=+—H 95,990 105,293
Accumulated impairment 2R E
At the beginning of the year RE 102,179 92,136
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRRERREEE (M3E«)

(Note (c)) 2,500 -
Exchange difference ME H =58 (9,303) 10,043
At 31 March R=A=+—H 95,376 102,179
At 31 March: R=A=+—8:

Cost BN 95,990 105,293

Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (95,376) (102,179)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 614 3,114
Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at BRERAMHNE HENRERSRRE
acquisition, to the cash-generating units ("CGUs") that are TEHAR B ARV IRSEEBEM ([1]
expected fo benefit from that business combination. For the SEABEM]) -MBERHAME  BmERKA
purpose of impairment testing, cost of goodwill is allocated to NRECHNCBEEEESBMNT
CGUs identified as follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

OBM toys (Note (al)) BEREREITA (HiE(a) — 2,500
Chinese health products (Note (b)) P REE @ (MIEE(b)) 614 614
614 3,114

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER 179
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—E-AF=A=+—H

16. GOODW/ILL - Continved

Notes:

(a)

OBM toys

The recoverable amount of the CGU of OBM toys has been
determined from value in use calculations by an independent third
party valver, APAC Appraisal and Consuliing Limited ("Valuer”)
based on cash flow projection from formally approved budget
covering a fiveyear period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 2% (2018: 3%), which does not exceed the
longferm growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country.

The key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are as
follows:

16. B8 -#

B &E :

(a)

BEmBRETA
BEmBRENAZREELBM A
EEEIEBYE =N HEMEAGBER
BRARAR (MHEM]DREKRAEL
AR ERFRRNBRENRSREE
AREREEETAEE - B AFH
MBRSRENERGT FEMEEREE
ANZ(ZFE-NFBHZZ)HE Z
BEXTEAARBRRKITEANRIZER
% o

AEEABERERAZI2MRAT:

2019 2018

—B-NhF —E-N\F

Discount rate B 19% 14%

Growth rate within the five-year period REHRNERE 10% 10%
The discount rate used is pretax and reflect specific risks relating PR RERTAI IR X I RRAARIER

to the relevant CGU.

The operating margin and growth rate within the five-year period
have been based on past experience.

The Management reassessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU of OBM toys as at 31 March 2019 by reference fo the
discounted cash flow calculations with the above estimations. As
at 31 March 2019, the value in use of the CGU of OBM foys is
HK$11,000,000 which is significantly lower than the carrying
amount of HK$23,645,000.

Accordingly, the Management was of the opinion that a full
impairment loss for goodwill of HK$2,500,000 should be
recognised. The remaining shortfall of HK$10,145,000 was
recognised as impairment loss under property, plant and equipment
as disclosed in Note 15(g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16. GOODWILL - Continved

Notes: — Continved

(b)

Chinese health products

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Chinese health products
has been determined from value in use calculations based on cash
flow projection from formally approved budget covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the fiveyear period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 2% (2018:
0%), which does not exceed the longferm growth rate for the
industry in the corresponding country.

Discount rate I8 &
Growth rate within the five-year period AEPAGEE

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

16. B8 -4#

WisE: —4&

(b)

TERER

MERER ASCELBMHNARE SRR
TIRBR B E IEA M ERRERFHRE
ENReRERAREREESHETEE
E-BEAFHMNREEREEMMHT
BMEEREES 2 - (ZE—-N\F:8A
DZE)VHEE ZERETEBERERT
FAMRMERE-

2019 2018
—B-nFE —TN\F
14% 16%

5% 5%

The discount rate used is pre-fax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.

The operating margin and growth rate within the five-year period
have been based on past experience.

The Management reassessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU of Chinese health products as at 31 March 2019 by
reference to the discounted cash flow calculations with the above
estimations and was of the opinion that no impairment loss should
be recognised on its goodwill and trademarks as the recoverable
amount of the CGU of Chinese health products exceeds fo its
carrying amount.

FrRHTIRE A AT AR X - I R R AR RE IR
TELBEMEENEERR -

BRFME R BN RETR BB
MR -

RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H EBREZZE
KALMEFSHZTRRSREEMTP
ERRRZBRSELSBMOHAIWESHE
WRBANPERERZRASELFEMN
Ao eREEREREE WEARER
B EERREMRESSE-

HESEREERERAT —T— )\ —E-NFH 181
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—E-AF=A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B EE

Patents Trademarks Total
Eo GlEa et
(Note [a)) (Note (b))
(Hf&E(a)) (HEE(b))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET

Cost: PR -

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tF=A=1+—H 10,685 = 10,685

Acquired through business acquisition & B % H UK IBES (KI7E34)

(Note 34 S 5,094 5,094
Additions N 198 = 198
Write off g (11,443 = (11,443)
Exchange difference bE X E R 560 = 560
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=ZA=+—HBRK

31 March 2019 ZT-NF=RA=+—H = 5,094 5,094
Amortisation and impairment: H3E MORE |
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FWMA—H 6,901 S 6,901
Charge for the year FAHER 1,125 S 1,125
Write off €] (8,388) - (8,388
Exchange difference P ERE 362 = 362
At 31 March 2018 and RZZE-NF=ZRA=+—-HR

31 March 2019 “E-NF=RA=+—H = = =
Net book value: fRmEFE:

At 31 March 2018 and RZE-NF=A=T—BEK

31 March 2019 —E-NF=A=1+—H = 5,094 5,094
Notes: BT -

(o)  Due to the termination of eligibility of consumer electronic ) BZE—/N\FHARBREBEEEFE®
products segment and commercial kitchen products DEMREBEREEMSD FEERN R
segment to use the patents since April 2018. Write off of BREL-ME-"BAZTRERTAET
HK$3,055,000 was recognised during the year ended RBE_Z—\F=Z=A=1+T—HILF
31 March 2018 as part of general and administrative EHRB—MRTHRERAN &2
expenses included in profit or loss to write down the FPAER BT B E S REEM
carrying amount of the intangible assets fo its recoverable WEE AT YO EEE -
amount.

(b)  The useful lives of trademarks, which were acquired b) HEBELEEREZE_Z—N\F=

through the acquisition of the Group's Chinese health
products business during the year ended 31 March 2018,
are esfimated by the Management fo be indefinite as the
trademarks are renewable af insignificant cost at the option
of the Group. Details of the impairment assessment are set

out in Note 16(b).
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

A 35 40 R PR

—E-hAhF=A=1+—H

18. R B AR 2

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Name of company

AR

Shares held directly:
EREAZRG:

LC Global Holdings Corporation
LC Global Holdings Corporation

Future Empire Limited (“Future Empire”)

Future Empire Limited ( [Future Empire |)

Ace Season Holdings Limited
Ace Season Holdings Limited

New Mind {Hong Kong) Limited
el (FR)ERRA

Shares/investments held indirectly:

BEsEzRE,/RE:
PT. Lung Cheong Brothers Industrial*
PT. Lung Cheong Brothers Indusfrial*

Kid Galaxy Global Limited*
Kid Galaxy Global Limited*

Kid Galoxy Corporation
Kid Galaxy Corporation

lung Cheong Asia Holdings Limited*
Lung Cheong Asia Holdings Limited*

lung Cheong Overseas Corporation*
Lung Cheong Overseas Corporation*

Kid Galaxy Inc.
Kid Galaxy Inc.

LC Technology Limited*
EEMRBRAR*

Kid Galoxy Limited
Kid Galaxy Limited

Place of incorporation
and operations

B ES

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong
B0

Republic of Indonesia
HERRSE AN

Brifish Virgin Islands

Brifish Virgin Islands

Brifish Virgin Islands

Brifish Virgin Islands

United States of America
EHBARE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong

!

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
IMERFEE

Ordinary US$50,001
EiBRS0,001% T

Ordinary US$50,000
&M 50,000% T

Ordinary US$1,000
L@ ,000% T

Ordinary HK$1
LERIET

Rupich 150,000,000,000
150,000,000,000E1E /&

Ordinary US$2
EBR2ET

Ordinary US$11
TRRIET

Ordinary US$50,001
TERS50,001%TT

Ordinary U5$50,000
EEMR50,000% T

Ordinary US$100,010
E®R100,010%

Ordinary HK$30,010,000
LFAR30,010,000% T

Ordinary HK$10,010,000
LFAR10,010,000% T

PEEEREERERAR

RZEBE—NE;_ZT-—NF=ZA=+—8"

RRARZMBRBFEBENT

Effective percentage holding

ERIERAAL
2019 2018
—g-nE -5
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 -
- 100

- 100

- 100
100 100
- 100

- 100
100 100
- 100
100 100

—E-N\ZE-NER

Nature of business

FHRME

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding and invesfing in
financial instruments

REZRRRELRIA

Invesiment holding

REZR

Invesiment holding

REZR

Manufacture of toys and electronic
products
MARETERKE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Trading of toys
nEES

Trading of toys
HEYE)

Trading of toys and electronic
producis
DARETERES

Trading of foys
nEES
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continved

Name of company

AREH

Shares/investments held indirectly:

BEREZRG/RE:

Haier Healthwise Company Limited

BRERREEERAT

Ulira Classic Investments Limited
Ulra Classic Investments Limited

Good Cheer Global Limited
|"Good Cheer'|

Good Cheer Global limited
([Good Cheer])

Keytime Global Limited
Keytime Global Limited

Future Empire Limited
Future Empire Limited

Noton Limited
Notton Limited

Era Creation Technology Limited

BIBMRAERAT

Qingdao Qasis Intelligent Health
Technology Company Limited

EERMERBEARAR

Qindoo Ruidi Gas Appliances
Manufacturing Limited
["Qingdao Ruidi")

EEREMRARERRAF
([E8¥mal)

Qingdao Haier Ruidi Kitchen

Appliances & Engineering Company

Limited ("Haier Ruidi’)

EEERREFATIRARAR
(Ns@meEl)

—ET-hF=A=+—H

Place of incorporation
and operations

MR E R

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Island

Hong Kong
BR

British Virgin Islands

RRABRES
Hong Kong

BR

British Virgin Islands
RRABRES
Hong Kong

BR

PRC

F

PRC

FE

PRC

0

18. RIMB AR 2w —#

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

BRTRE/
HmERFEE

Ordinary HK$1
LTERIBT

Ordinary US$1
LERIET

Ordinary HK$1
LEBIAET
Ordinary US$1
TRRIET

Ordinary HK$1
EBRIETT

Ordinary US$1
ERRIET

Ordinary HK$1
EBRIETT

Ordinary US$10,000,000
*3EA%10,000,000% T

Ordinary RMB30,000,000

ERRARE
30,000,0007c

Ordinary RMB30,000,000

ERRARY
30,000,0007T

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019

Effective percentage holding

BERBRADL
2019 2018
“E-NFE —ZT)\F
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Nature of business

EBME

Invesiment holding

REER

Invesiment holding

REEKR
Money lending business

REXH

Investment holding

RERBR

Investment holding

RERBR

Investment holding

RO

Investment holding

RERBR

Trading of consumer electronic and
childeare products

HERETREEERED

Research, development,
manufacturing & sales of
commercial & domesfic gas
cooking appliances

i RERHEBRRRAMR
RER

Research and development,
production, sales and
installation of commercial
kitchen related equipment and
accessories

M AR HERZEBAR
FEHEBEREREN



Name of company

AFEER

Shares/investments held indirectly:

BESEZRG,/RE:

Sichuan Vi Fang Kitchen Equipment

Company Limited {"Sichuan Yi Fang’)

mShBEEREARAT
(rm%sl)

RN ZERRBRAA
["Shenzhen Oasis”)

RGN ERRBRAR
(DRIAZM )

RINBIZEERRBERAF

["Shenzhen Brillante"|

RINBI LG ERRERAF
(MRYIBLR])

FEENEREEHEARAR
("Oasis Shanghai’)

FEENEREEHEBRAR
(MM LiE])

RN ERMBEBRRE

RIFHE R ERERAT

NPH Holdings Limited

NPH Holdings Limited

Poo Yuk Loong Limited
REERBRAF

N P H Sino-Meditech Limited
BT ERAERDF

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Confinved

Place of incorporation
and operafions

B ES

PRC

PRC

HE
PRC
FE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

BVI
RBERAREE

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BA

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

A 35 40 R PR

—E-hAhF=A=1+—H

18. RMB AR 2w —#

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERTRE/
SMERFE

Ordinary RMB16,000,000

ERRARS
16,000,0007T

Ordinary RMB5,000,000

ERRARE
5,000,0007t

Ordinary RMB2,000,000

LR AR2,000,0007

Ordinary RMBS5,000,000

ERRARS
5,000,0007c

Ordinary RMB5,000,000
LTBERARE
5,000,0007T

Ordinary U5$50,000
L i@MR50,000% T

Ordinary HKD350,000
I EAR350,000%8 7T

Ordinary HKD2
EBR2ET

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER

Effective percentage holding

BERBREDL
2019 2018
“E-NE —ZT)\F
59,976 59,976
51 51
51 51
51 51
51 51
100 100
100 100
100 100

Nature of business

EBME

Research and development,
production, sales and
installation of commercial
kitchen related equipment and
accessories

e EE HERREBRR
EHEEREREMN

Trading of consumer electronic
products
HEEBTEME S

Research and development,
markefing and distribution of
childeare products

e EHEIHEYRERER

Trading of consumer electronic
products

HERETEMES

Trading of consumer electronic

products
HERETEMES

Invesiment holding
REER

Investment holdings

BRI

Investment holdings

BRI
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continved

19.

Name of company

AREH

Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs

Company Limited ["Nam Pei Hong')
BILT2ERMERAR ([MLT))

Geumsamwon (Korea) Company Limited

BE (BE)BARAR

Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen)
Company Limited

REERR(RINEBERAR

Most Trade Enterprises Limited
BELRERAA

*

—E-AF=A=+—H

Place of incorporation
and operations

MR E R

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
F

Hong Kong
BA

Disposed during the year [Note 35).

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

18. RIMB AR 2w —#

Particulars of
issued share capital/

registered capital ~ Effecfive percentage holding

ERTRE/
SMESFE EREREIL

2019 2018

“E-NFE —ZT)\F

Ordinary HKD1,200,000 100 100
E3®R1,200,000% 7T

Ordinary HKD1 100 100
TRRIET

Ordinary RMB350,000 100 100
EBRARK350,0007

Ordinary HKD20,000 - 70
EmAk20,000/ T

Nature of business

EBME

Trading of Chinese health products
RERRRES

Trading of Chinese health products
RERRRES

Trading of Chinese health products
RERERES

Trading of Chinese hedlt products
RERERES

* BRERLE (FES) ©
19 R—BBE QT 2 ExH

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

DG EERE

Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:

Name of associate

BENRAR

EBHBIREFKRBERAT
("Goodaymart Water")

EERARAIBEFKREERAR
(TR RIEXEME])

Form of business sfructure  Place of incorporation

ERERER

Corporation

>
e

REBZBERRFHIBTNOT

Percentage of
ownership inferest

SE A 3L i 2 FEERZEIL
2019 2018
“E-hE ZT-N\F
PRC - =
R - _

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019

Place of operation and
principle activity

REHERTERY

Wholesaling and refailing,
installation and mainfenance
of water purification equipment
and accessories and provision
of relevant aftersales services in
PRC

RPERERTE RRRES
KRB REM AR IR 48
BERRS



19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - Continved

On 31 August 2017, the Group disposed of all of the 49%
equity interest in Goodaymart Water at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$8,271,000, resulting in a net loss on disposal
of approximately HK$1,298,000. The disposal of Goodaymart
Water was completed on 4 December 2017. Upon completion
of the disposal, Goodaymart ceased to be classified as an

associate.

The summarised financial information in respect of the associate

is set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

10 RA—HBEQRT 2w

RZE—+FENR=+—B KTEEUR
EREVN\NB-_TLtE-—TETHLERR
Bk ZEETES 2O+ LB &5
HEBRFERN—B-_Th&N\TFTET-
HERRIBEKREBER _—_T—tF+_-AM
Bl -REEFETKE B RIEKRE
PR - il NI

BERAZHBANBENT -

2018

Goodaymart Water H BIEKFRE —T-N\F
HK$'000

FET

Non-current assets IEMENEE -
Current assets mEEE -
Current liabilities mEaE =
Non-current, liabilities IETEARE -
Net assets BEFE =
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBS(hHENREEFE =
2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FET

Revenue for the year FREKA 545
Loss for the year FREER (232)
Group's share of result of the associate for the year FREAEB DG E QRIS (114)

hESRREERERAT —T—)\ /2 -NER 187
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. RAFEH AEZ>SRMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — MEE ETERARE S —
at fair value /NS S =

— Non-current portion (Note (al) —IEmBH D (FIFE) 38,905

— Current portion (Note (b)) —mEE D (HEb)) 189,117 65,867

listed equity securities are stated at fair value. Fair value of listed FHRABESFRAFETR EHRAE

equity securities is determined based on quoted bid prices in the ZRFETIRBI AT RERERE -

Stock Exchange.

Notes: B &E -

(@) At 31 March 2019, the non-current portion of the Group's (a) F:?*ﬂ¢7ﬂ5+*5 CREEZIE
financial assets at FVTPL represented 28% interest in Global ANTPEFANBRZSREEFTBIT S A
Mastermind Capital Limited ("GMC") (2018: 28% interest in REKBEREBRAR (REKBIRE])
GMC and 24% interest in Global Masfermind Holdings Limited ZEOZ-_T/\BE(ZZT—N\F IR
["GMH")) at the closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange on RBREZBDZ Z+ N\ RIRE KB
year end date. SEERAR(REABEER)2ES

Z T HRAE) IR RN AR
WK HEFHE -
The Group's inferests in these companies are not classified as MR AEEESESER LW B TMERE
subsidiaries or associates as the Group does not have the power gEELH .ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ? HRBREFES
to control or significantly influence to participate in their operating HZERNANEE RV BHE Sﬂ$'¥ .
and financing policies, evidenced by lack of any direct or indirect EAEZ% RAMERT T HELME L
involvement at board level. NS
(b)  The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as b BHRBRAEFDEZREMALEMEA

they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in near term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed fogether and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of shorterm profittaking.
Changes in their fair values are recognised in profit or loss [Note

7).
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21.

22.

Notes to the Financial Statements

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity securities — at fair value

— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLT

RAESZ A TFE

21.

MR ERMEE
31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H
AHHERE
2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
— 166,855

As of 1 April 2018, certain investment in listed equity investment
were reclassified from availablefor-sale financial assets to
financial assefs at FVTPL when initially applying HKFRS 9. As a
result, financial assets with a fair value of HK$166,855,000
were reclassified from availableforsale investments to financial

assefs at FVTPL (Note 20).

BE_Z-)/\FHA-H EERERE
AU BREERBEORE BT EHRAEKR
ECEAHLESREEESN D EERR
FEFABGZEREE Rt 2FER
—RBARTRENTRAELATERLZERE
ECAAHHEREENDBRERATE
FABRRZERMEE (H:E20) -

INVENTORIES 22. 78
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R K - 10,816
Work-in-progress EE = 4,701
Finished goods BURY 71,740 80,312
71,740 95,829

During the year ended 31 March 2019, impairment loss of
HK$8,008,000 (2018: HK$1,857,000) against the carrying

value of raw materials and finished goods was made.

Balance of HK$19,643,000 (2018: HK$11,900,000) was
pledged to secure designated banking facility and borrowing
(Note 28) as at 31 March 2019.

RBZ_Z-NWF=A=+—RHLEE"

BMEBENBENTAET(ZZT—N\F:
—BNTREELTERT) ERERMHE REK
an < FR T {E ¥ 8K -

RZEBE-NANF=ZA=+—-—H &R
—THAAERTOHE=TET(ZZ—N\F:
—T—BATEET) EREMAEREER
TTRERMEE (KFE28) 2R -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND  23. FEUK B 5 BE 2k |2 H b & Uy =X 18 -

PREPAYMENTS RERFANNRE
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, deposits FEWE 5 Rk I LA REMROR ~ i & KR Fa A
and prepayments are as follows: FIBZBREENT
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables JEUE R 40,941 70,431
Other receivables H b W GRIE
— Deposits and other receivables — & M E bW FRIE 10,860 23,841
— Prepayments — AR IR 10,100 8,988
61,901 103,260
[a) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, nef of (o) FBRRERHEREERNHEZREHRLN
allowance for doubtful debts, based on invoice date as of BREAMCZERE SRR RO
the end of reporting period, is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
090 days ZEN+H 38,184 61,951
91-180 days h+—HZ—&BN\+H 934 5,882
181-365 days —@BNt+—HZ=ZBAA1+HH 167 1,019
Over 365 days W=—ENTHH 1,656 1,579
40,941 70,431

The Group's sales are on letter of credit or open account
terms. Credit terms are reviewed on a regular basis. The
normal frade terms include letter of credit, deposits before
shipments and credit period ranging from 30 to Q0 days
(2018: 30 to 90 days) but business partners with sfrong
financial backgrounds may be offered longer credit terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS - Continved

24.

(b)

[c)

As at 31 March 2018, included in other receivables of
HK$9,520,000 was amounts due from NCI, which were
unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand. The

amount was fully setfled during the year ended 31 March
2019.

As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables of
HK$29,450,000 (2018: HK$12,493,000) were
pledged to secure designated banking facility and
borrowing (Notfe 28).

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The carrying amount of loans receivable from money lending

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

23. BWE Z R R H B FOR -
BERBANRE-#

(b

(c)

R-ZE-NF=ZA=1+—HB iAH
KRB Z NBEA T —BETIE
Yo IF 12 B #E 2 00R B R - A
BREREREE - ZEBEORER
“E-NAF=A=T+T-RIEFEERH
Lo

R-ZE-NF=A=1+—B EKE=E
FER-_THhEO+AEBET (=T
—N\EF: T -AETAE=THET)
SEMAERERTREREERR
(Bff£28) -

24. RWERK
A S A R A B SR M

business of the Group was as follows: LIJNE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THETT

Loans receivable arising from money BREEBEL 2 EBKRER

lending business 265,725 35,000
less: impairment B ORE (5,109) =
260,616 35,000

As at 31 March 2019, the loans receivable are unsecured,

interestbearing at fixed rates ranging from 8%-15% per annum

(2018: 8%).

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H BEERRE
B ZREEFMNENFADZINEBNZ
TR(ZZE-NAF:BAIZ/)E-
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE - Continved 24. B ER &
The maturity profile of the loans receivable, nef of impairment loss FRERNHERREANFTAIHAZ
recognised, if any, af the end of the reporting period, analysed FIRHIR 8 5 e 2 BB R (F0 5k B HERR
by the remaining period to its contracted maturity, is as follows: BEE (WmE) )T :

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Within 1 year —FRK 200,616 35,000

Over 1 year B—F 60,000 =

260,616 35,000

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES 25. FEUWR Bt B RE A R 1E

(a) Amounts due from related company (o) FEWEBRERRRE
Maximum balances
As at As af outstanding during
31 March 31 March the year ended 31 March
2019 2018 BE=ZA=t-HLEE
i i AMEBREEH
“E-NFE  —EN\F 2019 2018

=A=t—H =A=+—H —E-hE “E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx FET THT FEL
Company controlled by a close RANE-EHEARN
family member of a director of —REBNEREHH
a subsidiary of the Company AT
LC Technology lid EENHBERAT 10,027 - 10,027 -
(b)  Amounts due from/to related companies are unsecured, (b) MY FENABERRREAEER -
inferestree and repayable on demand. RERBREREE-
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26.

27.

Notes to the Financial Statements
MBI
31 March 2019 —Z—AF=A=+—H

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/CASH AND CASH 26. BiE#HRTEZ HERESE

EQUIVALENTS (=7
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Cash and bank balances 8% MIRTTHE 68 54,940 58,351
less: pledged bank deposit o B EIRITER = (494)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 54,940 57,857
Cash and cash equivalents represent the bank balances and BekBReFEYWERRESHRITERA
cash which earn interest on floating rates based on daily bank EIRF MR R RITAEBRNE S - R1T
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the bank balances and EBRAIRE ZREAEEENFEES-
cash approximate fo their fair value.
Pledged bank deposit represents the Group's bank deposit RZZE-NF=ZA=+—RH BERRTHF
pledged to secure designated banking facility and borrowing REANEEEAAMEEERTREREE
(Note 28) as at 31 March 2018. (MFFE28) ER 2 IBITHER
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 27. BN EZRAREMENRIER
CHARGES st & A
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TATT
Trade payables e E 5 BRK 39,305 69,527
Other payables and accrued charges Htt AR ERTE A 52,763 63,686
92,068 133,213
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade BEERAE R-E—hhER_T—-N\FE=H
payables, other payables and accrued charges approximate their =t—B ENEZERF EAENRIER
fair value as at 31 March 2019 and 2018. A ERZRRERREAFERE-
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31 March 2019

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

28.

—E-AF=A=+—H

CHARGES - Continved

Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following
ageing analysis, based on invoice dates, as of the end of

reporting period:

EEtER -2

27 BENESRIAREMEANRER

BEREHRR FFARNEZRFNENE
RILBER A RES AT :

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
0-90 days TEA+H 10,597 50,530
91-180 days N+—BZ—8NT+H 11,661 3,739
181-365 days —EBNt+—HZE=ZA/,THH 1,777 392
Over 365 days m=—HNNTHEH 15,270 14,866
39,305 69,527

BORROWINGS 28. & &
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E2-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank loans — secured (Note (b)) IRITER— BB (F:E(b)) 11,700 15,648
— unsecured (Note (c)) — R (KY5E()) - 42,620
11,700 58,268
Bank overdraft — secured [Note (b)) RITE S —BHEE (HMI5Eb)) - 5,749
Trust receipt loans — secured (Nofe (b)) ERBEER-GET (b)) = 11,366
Other loans — unsecured (Note (d)) H b E R — & (MaE(d)) 1,712 25,008
13,412 100,391

China Healthwise Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. BORROWINGS - Continved

(a)

(b)

(c)

As at 31 March 2019, except the borrowings of HK$ 1,712,000
were inferestbearing at fixed rate of 5.6% per annum, other
borrowings were inferestbearing at prime lending rate of banks in
United States plus 1% per annum (2018: except the borowings
of HK$13,597,000 were inferestbearing at fixed rate of 13%
per annum, other borrowings were interestbearing at variable rafe
ranging from LIBOR plus 2.2% to LBOR plus 3.25% per annum).

As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's borrowings and

banking facilities are secured by the following:

(i) Pledge of a subsidiaries’ fixtures and equipment,
inventories and trade receivables with carrying values of
HK$449,000, HK$19,643,000 and HK$29,450,000

respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, cerfain of the Group's borrowings and

banking facilities were secured by the following:

(i) legal charge over the Group’s land and buildings
situated in Republic of Indonesia, with carrying value of

HK$75,313,000.

(i) Pledge of a subsidiaries’ fixiures and equipment, inventories,
trade receivables and bank deposits with carrying values of
HK$574,000, HK$11,900,000, HK$12,493,000 and
HK$494,000 respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, the unsecured bank borrowing was
guaranteed by the Company and subsidiaries.

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

28. BE-#

@ RZEBE-HAhF=ZA=+—H" 'K
—BEt-B-_TETNEERSF
MEBDZRHANGEI EfpfE
ERXBERITREERNXMEF
REDZ—FARB(ZFE-—N\F K
—T=ZAATABLTETNREER
BIEFMETD 2+ =5 8450 HAh
EERN FRBRTRAERESMFF
REDZ_H_ERIABTRARRE
MENEBRD 2 =B _ A2 FEF =X

TR e

b) RZZT—AF=ZA=+—H A&EH
ETEERBITRENTY A EKR
bl

) EA-—FBHBEIAAER@E
DHAENtTEEBEATET
—TABARTHEE=TELR
“ThEmt+RAERBTZKE
ke FEREKE SRR

RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H0 Xx5H
ETEERBITRENTYAXER
3

il AEEERHERLTRE=1—
BE-TRETURAERAD X
MB <z 30 KB FREEMRT

i HER-—BHELTEEE
SABETLEMT BT
—F-AA+EBET-
—FoENTABSFELR
M+ A BN EERR
B EE R S ERRRS
BRe

() RZE-NF=ZA=+—RH \EEHF
RITEERARFNMBARER-
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28.

29.

BORROWINGS - Continved

(d)  Asat 31 March 2019 and 2018, the other loans are unsecured,
inferestfree and repayable on demand.

e)  As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total banking facilities
of approximately HK$34,500,000 (2018: HK$93,105,000) of
which HK$22,800,000 (2018: HK$17,722,000) had not been

utilised.

(f) At 31 March 2019, all borrowings of HK$13,412,000 (2018
HK$100,391,000) are scheduled to be repaid within one year

or on demand and classified as current liabilities.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

28. {68 -4
d R-F-AER_FT-N\F=H
=t—H HthERAEER 258
NARBRER-

(f

RZE—NF=ZA=+—H0 Fx5H
FERTHELABH=-TEEARATE
BL(ZE—N\F ATF=ZE5—18
AFBT) HbP-_F_BHN+EHE
T(ZE—N\F: —FtBHE+=_8
ZFBTT)MAEA-

R_ZBE-hF=A=+—B AR
E-—F=ZgO+—EB=-FTET(=%
—NF:—EBE=FThE-—FET)H
R—AFHIZERKEE IHEAER
Hak-

20 REIRBZBAE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

At beginning of year F7) 5,576 4,559
Addition 0 - 1,131
Elimination on disposal & B 588 (5,453 -

Exchange difference ME N ZEXE (123) (114)
At end of year FiR - 5,576

The amounts represented the provision for long service payment
for the Group’s employees in Hong Kong and Indonesia. It
is regulated by the labour law in Hong Kong and Indonesia
respectively.
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30. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to the Financial Statements

The movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities during the
year, without taking info consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

A1 April 2017

Charge fo profit or loss
Effect of change in tax rate
Exchange difference

RZE—+tFMHA—H
= ErtasRillcy
REgazp 2

ME 3 = HE

MR ERMEE
31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

30. IEIEFIIE
FREEHEEEREEBD (THEF
— B EA R A RIS (107) ) T -

At 31 March 2018
Charge to profit or loss
Exchange difference

R-_E—N\F=ZA=+—H
RiIBzH HBR
MEN =%

At 31 March 2019

R-ZE—NEFE=A=+—H

RERIBEE:

Cumulative
tax losses Others Total

25t
BEEE Hih et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTAT FAT
1,396 2,384 3,780
(251) (2,387) (2,638)
(595) - (595)
- 3
550 - 550
1,110 - 1,110
210 - 210
1,870 - 1,870
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—E-AF=A=+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX - Continved

30. IEEBIE =

Deferred tax liabilities: EEFIEAE:
Revaluation
of land and  Convertible
buildings loan notes  Trademarks Total
TR GIE:T:
BFEM BERE )= et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFMA—H 13,363 = = 13,363
Acquired through business BBEBAIUE - = 840 840
acquisiion (Note 34) (P3E34)
Charge to other comprehensive R E Ath 2 E Mz H 1Bk 1,056 - - 1,056
income
Exchange difference BE X ZH 17 - - 17
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=ZA=+—8H 14,436 - 840 15,276
Elimination through disposal of i 18 & i B 2 B $ 85 (14,436) - - (14,4306)
subsidiaries (Note 35) (P3E35)
Charge fo other equity T EL A 4 5 P OB - 4,624 - 4,624
Charge to profit or loss REZP G - (857) - (857)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H = 3,767 840 4,607
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31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

30. DEFERRED TAX - Continved

Note: Tax effect relating fo revaluation of land and buildings

30. IEERIE 4

M ARt METELRZREZE

2018
—ZE-)N\F
Before-tax Tox Net-of
amount expense fax amount
MREIAI 2R TIER X R ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
ltem that will not be B rEERH»EEERZN
reclassified to profit or loss: BH:
Surplus on revaluation of land T RIEF B (HILE
and buildings (4,224) 1,056 (3,168)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the

UTARMBREZSM S NREEHRELS

presentation of financial reporting purposes: ERDAT :

2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THIT
Deferred tax assets RIETH IR B E 1,870 550
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIBAE (4,607) (15,276)
2,737) (14,726)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: WERRNA T EEERREERIES E
2019 2018
—E—-hF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT
Deductible temporary differences AR B B 2= B 46,260 40,634
Unused tax losses REATIEEE 242,240 362,683
288,500 403,317
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1 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX - Continved

Deferred tax assets are recognised for estimated tax losses

30.

carry forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profits are probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred tax assefs in respect of estimated
losses amounting to approximately HK$242,240,000 (2018
HK$362,683,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. As at 31 March 2019, all tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely except for the amounts of
approximately HK$42,120,000 (2018: HK$26,525,000)
which will expire from 2024 to 2038 (2018: 2023 to 2037)
and HK$118,051,000 (2018: HK$200,249,000) which may
be carried forward for a period of five years from their respective
year of origination.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31.

EEBIIE 2

EERBEEDREEBHREGH SR
RO A] BEEE A 2 FE AR W an ) B2 3R T L P 45

B2AARBABRFEER AEEALER
A AR DA S R R RR A 2 fh AT B 1B

HWZEENFZETEEBL(ZZE—N
F:ZBAFZEATN\B=FET)ER

BERERBEEE- R _ZE-—NF=ZA=+—
B BRAONT_B—+=_8ET(=F—
F_TRAAT-BRETERT)SR_-F
“HFEE_ZE=)\FHE(ZE-N\F:

o= _ZE=+FHBE)ERK
—EB—FNEZEREB—TFTAEL(ZE—N
FZEETEENTEL)AIRERH
ZEAFERFTAFTHEANEEN  TENR
TR ] PR HR A 8e -
g A<

Authorised

HE

Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

BREETEEZERZ
TRRITEETEEE LR EREBEZH - BIzBER
Number of Number of
Shares shares
RAHE gng |
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TEn Tk FTET
A1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—+tFMA—H"
and 1 April 2019 “Z-\¥=H=1+-H
k=Z-NEFMA—H 40 4000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Increased during the year F R - - 5,000,000 500,000
At 31 March 2019 —2-hFZA=f—H 40 4000 15000000 1,500,000
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL - Continved

Notes to the Financial Statements

MIGWEMEE
1 March 2019 —hE=A=+—H
N
Issued and fully paid
BRTRAR

Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREETEERZ
TRRTEETEEELR SREEZSY-SHEIZLZER
Number of Number of
shares shares
RAHE RHOEAE
US$'000 '000 HK$'000
TErn T FET
At 1 April 2017 %:?—timﬂ H = = 5917758 591,776
Issue of shares upon subscription [Note [a)) R REEEE1TRH
(Fi&E(a)) = - 363,636 36,364
Issuance of new shares upon placing R &R ETHRD
(Note (b)) (FI5E(b) = S 819,014 81,991
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=ZR=1+—H - - 7,101,308 710,131
Issuance of new shares upon placing R &R EITHRD
(Note (c)) (HzE() = S 1,420,000 142,000

At 31 March 2019 R-E-N&=A=+—H - - 8,521,308 852,131

Notes: MI5E -

(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2018, 363,636,363 new @) BHEZZ-—NF=ZA=Z=+—HLEE-
ordinary shares of par value of HK$O.1 each were issued at —EBAFTF=ZBAT=ZEAT=ZBA~T
subscription price of HK$0.165 per share to the then independent E&tﬂxﬁﬁi@ﬁ BT EBERIE
third party of the Company at a proceed of HK$60,000,000, net BREEZTH —ANABTETTFAR
of issuing expense directly attributable to the subscription, of which Al ?F"-? E% BWBELE=7 IERESTEE

(b)

HK$36,364,000 was credited to share capital and the remaining
balance of HK$23,636,000 was credited to the share premium

account.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 819,914,000 new
ordinary shares of par value of HK$O.1 each were issued at
placing price of HK$0.14 per share fo the then independent third
parties of the Company at a proceed of HK$110,770,000, net
of issuing expense directly attributable to the placing, of which
HK$81,991,000 was credited to share capital and the remaining
balance of HK$28,779,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

TEEEREERERAT —F

(b)

T(HGRABERBEHERTRAI) HFP
=STRB=ZTREETELDFARE:
MBTEB - T =BT TELE
SEABRDEERK -

BE_ZTZ-N\F=ZA=T—-HILFE"
NE-—ThEAT - BRTREREE
TH BT EBRREREEET
BB TETTARRERNELS
=HOFBEREBE-—E-TFTEL+LEE
T(HBRESEREREETR) HP
NT—BATABE-TEIEFARE:
M TEB - TABLETEBEALTELE
AR 4 B R -

—\/=BNEH
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MR

31 March 2019

31.

32.

—E-AF=A=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL - Continved

Note: — Continved

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2019, 1,420,000,000 new
ordinary shares of par value of HK$O.1 each were issued at
placing price of HK$O.11 per share to the then independent
third parties of the Company at a proceed of approximately
HK$150,733,000, net of issuing expense directly attributable
to the placing, of which HK$142,000,000 was credited to
share capifal and the remaining balance of HK$8,733,000 was
credifed fo premium account.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share opfion scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's
operation. The Scheme, which was adopted by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders on 14 September 2012, constitutes
a share opfion scheme govemed by Chapter 17 of the lisfting
Rules.

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised af any time
during the periods fo be defermined and notified by the directors
of the Company fo the grantees at the time of making offers o
grant share options fo them, provided that such periods shall
not exceed the period of ten years from the date of grant. The
scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed pursuant o
a shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 4 September 2018 (the "AGM”). The
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 852,130,836, representing 10% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM, 4
September 2018. The subscription price for the shares under
the Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors at its
discrefion, provided that it shall not less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares stafed in the daily quotation sheets of
Stock Exchange on the date of grant and {ii] the average closing
price of the shares stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheefs for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of share options. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable for each of the share options granted.
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32.

N

MisE: —4&

) REBE_T-AFZA=+—BLFE"
TR - TEREREETH BT
LTRREGREEESTE ——BTEITT
ARBEEHNBLE=T MEREARD
—RATZEL+=8=TET(HKRES
BEEREEETRX) AT -—ROT B8
BLEFARE M TESKNABLT=
BE=THETOF ARMDEER-

B EESH

ARREBET-ABRESE ([5HE]) 8
ERHARNEBZEBRABERZAER
SRERHRBIRE R _FT—_F
NATOEABREREBEBRERRR &
X ETRRE T EEEE 2 BT S -

RIEFTE BREJAARAESEELE
FARARZEZRDBRERSNSARAZ
HIRR ARER 1T - IE XA TS HBARH A
HIEG T F -8z RELRERE
ARAMNZF-N\FAAEBRITZBE
BEAg ((RRBFAG]) BBz A
BRRBRERTAEM -GTETAHEEITZ
BROBEERAN\EAT-_A—T=8%F
NB=TAB HERNBRRBFAEAH
(M —Z—-N\FAAMB)ARFZETE
BEAZBD 2T FEETZBRNAEE
KHEZETRIFEE ETFERIRE
AEIR B X AT A RER T2 B T
BRNZZERLBREASMAEZLEA
KB FT & A RE RIS Z By FH K
EMERZBRE - ERZEBNEREAX
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continved

On 24 April 2018, a total of 340,000,000 share options were
granted by the Company fo the directors of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.121 per share and immediately vested.

Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2019 was HK$0.046 per option.
The fair value of share options at grant date is assessed by an
independent third party qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) using a
binomial option-pricing model that takes info account the exercise
price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution (where
material), the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the
risk free interest rate for the term of the option and the correlations
and volafilities of the peer group companies.

Options are granted for a nominal consideration of HK$1 per
grantee and vest immediately at grant date. The options are
exercisable for a period of one year from grant date.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
March 2019 included:

Grant date X HE

Expiry date fEim B 8

Share price at grant date RERE B2 RE
Exercise price 1TIE(E

Expected volatility TRHK B

Life of share options BIREHIR
Expected dividend yield )RRl S
Riskfree interest rate £ L M

A 35 40 R PR
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32. BRESTE-2

RIZ-N\FOA-_+HEA ARFEAR
AEERHEH=R E?F’%P%Hﬂ%@ 1718
BEREBRBHZTH —— BT RAEREE-

ERHBRENFE

RBE-E-—NAF=ZA=+—HILFE"
E&ﬁ%k%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mﬂﬂﬁ FE
BEHEBRETHT N NETT  BIRERE
FRHNAFEABYFE = FTAERHE
B ([MA{ERD ] ) (58 — a8 e (B AR AL RTAS
A RITEE BREHR #EEE
(MBEX) B BHORERBERS
R TEEAE AR IE B EIAR B R ES R - B AR AE
HERAMNERRFAEALBRZREE QTN
RS ER

BREDASRARAZERE-ALTR
BRI EEBZARE - BRE 8RS
B —FRTTE-

REBEE-_FT-NF=ZA=T—BLFEE
BHBRENEEGAREEE:

2019

—ZE-hF

24 April 2018
—N\FmA=+mHAH
23 April 2019
—hWEmA=Z+=H
HK$0.117
TEH——HBT
HK$0.121

Te—— 3T
108%
AoZ2—BZEN

1 vear

—

0%

AOZE

1.47%

ERaprdat 11

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continved

Fair value of options granted — Continved

32. IBRAERTE-#

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
(based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any

CERHBREATE - Z

8 A AR R 08 T BN SL R IR (AR IR B X
BORSRHR)EE XRALREMSH

expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available BRI AR FOR IR TR BN LA R -
information.
Exercise Outstanding Forfeited Outstanding Graned lopsed Outstanding
price ot during af during during af
Grantee Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.42017 the year 31.3.2018 the year the year 31.3.2019
R=2-t% R=2-N% R=2-1%
mA-A =ZA=t-8 ZA=t-8
ARA RHEH fgid SRITEE HARTE ERER HRTE ERRI EREX HRTE
HK
-
Category |
Bl
- Directors and senior management13.5.2014 13.5.2015 10 12.5.2017
[Note i) 0.87 4,157,600 4,157,600) = = = =
-EFRARERE (W) -T-DFRATZA “F-EFREATZHE
“E2-t£RATZA
2442018 244201810 23.4.2019 0.121 = = = 340,000,000 = 340,000,000
“2-\¥EMA-tmA “E2-\§MA-tHmAZE
“F-N\FMAZT=R
Category Il
B :
- Employees 13.5.2014 13.5.201510 12.5.2017 087 3,488,000 (3,488,000) = = = =
-[E8 “2-BERATER “Z-EFREATZHE
ZB-t£RATZA
Category [l
il
- Consultants (Note ] 13.5.2014 13.5.2015 10 12.5.2017 0.87 3,620,000 3,620,000) = = = =
—RR (M) “E-RmERATER “Z-RFREATZHE
“2-tFRATCA
Total for all categories
2EERIRR 11,265,600 (11,265,600) = 340,000,000 = 340,000,000
Exercisable of the end of
the year
FXRITEE 11,265,600 = 340,000,000
I I I
Weighted average
exercise price
mEFITEE HK$0.87 7 S HK$1.121 7
I I I
Weighted overage remaining
confractual life at the end of
the year
FERNETHRBANE 0.12 years N/AREA 0.16 years &
Note: BsE -

() The Group granted share options fo the directors and senior
management as an award of their confribution fo the Group in

pass years.

(i)  The Group granted share options fo the consuliants in return for

their provision of management consultancy services to the Group.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019
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32.

S

Notes to the Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continved

Share-based payment expenses of HK$15,742,000 was
recognised for the years ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil)
in relation to share options granted by the Company. During the

year ended 31 March 2019, no shares of options were lapsed
(2018: 11,265,600) and no option (2018: Nil) was exercised.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 51% owned
by the Group, Qasis Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
51% owned by the Group and Sichuan Yi Fang, 59.976%
owned by the Group have material NCI.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Oasis
Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary and Sichuan Yi Fang,
before intra-group elimination are presented below:

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER

32.
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AEBRBE-TE—NF=-A=+—81t
FERARRRL ZERERRARD A
AR TRAY—TREEETEE=-TE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2019 —ZE—hAF=A=+—H

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - Continved

33. FiEERER ~

2019 2018
—E—-hF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Shenzhen Oasis and RINFEMNREZEHE AT
its wholly-owned subsidiary
Revenue WA - 765
Loss for the year FAEE (2,814) (874)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEKELREE (2,773) (6,114)
Loss allocated to NCI DT ER 2 BB (1,379) (431)
Tofal comprehensive income allocated to NCI 55 Bt T 3E 12 i i 2
22 EREEE (1,359) 2,997)
Cash flow used in operating activities KEEEMACRERE 9 (35)
Net cash outflow e FaR 9 (35)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E2-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
As at 31 March R=BA=+—H
Non-current assets FERBEE = 2,500
Current assets RBEE 650 2,203
Current liabilities RBaE (57,781) (54,233)
Net liabilities BEFRE (57,131) (49,530)
Accumulated NCI EETIEfE AR i 25 (27,994) (26,635)
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - Continved

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

33. FiERELS 2

BB m TR
—E-hF=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Oasis Shanghai and BNEBRAEZENBEAR
its wholly-owned subsidiary
Revenue WA 45,573 318,849
Loss for the year FAEE (15,749) (19,714)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEEKEREE (15,692) (23,482)
Loss allocated to NCI DR TIEERER 2 BB (7,717) (9,660)
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI 73 Bt F 3E 1% e i 2 2
2HEW BT (7,689) (11,5006)
Cash flow generated from/(used in) LEEBETE S (FTA) 2
operating activities RenE 3,351 (5,020)
Cash flow used in investing activities REBHMAZHEERE = (647)
Cash flow used in financing activities METHMAZREME (1,712) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow] WERA Crd) 78 1,639 (5,667)
2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
As at 31 March R=BA=+—H
Non-current assets ERENEEE - -
Current assets MBEE 5,800 83,983
Current liabilities nEaE (64,300) (126,791)
Net liabilities B8 EFE (58,500) (42,808)
Accumulated NC| BT TR E S (28,665) (20,976

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - Continved

—E-AF=A=+—H

33. FiEERER ~

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sichuan Yi Fang M2 T
Revenue A - =
Loss for the year FAEE = (4,852)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZE WA 140 (4,352)
Loss allocated to NCI DT IR 2 18 - (1,742)
Tofal comprehensive income allocated to NCI 73 Bt T 3E 1= fe i 2 2
2HE WA 56 (1,742)
Cash flow used in operating activities REZBAAZRERE = (494)
Net cash outflow WML FaE - (494)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
As at 31 March R=B=+—H
Non-current assets ERENEE 330 321
Current assets RBNEE 3,094 3,014
Current liabilities VeI =R (16,781) (16,832)
Net liabilities BEFE (13,357) (13,497)
Accumulated NC| RETIEIERR (5,347) (5,402)

China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

34. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On 30 June 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capifal of Ace Season Holdings Llimited
["Ace Season’), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the assignment of shareholder’s loan owed by
Ace Season 1o the vendor on completion at consideration of

HK$85,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).

Ace Season and its subsidiaries (the “Ace Season Group”)
are principally engaged in the sales of Chinese and other
pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and dried
seafood products to wholesaler and refailer in Hong Kong. The
Acquisition was made with the aims fo enhance the Group's
exposure in developing Chinese health products business in
Hong Kong.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
business acquisition completed during the year ended 31 March
2018, and the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
the Ace Season Group as af the dafe of acquisition:

MR ERMEE
31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

34. XBWE

RZE—+EFNA=Z+H ARAFTK
W #EAce Season Holdings Limited ([Ace
Season |+ —FAI PR SR B 4 B R B B RE A 2
WARDEHEBTRAREZEN TX
& Ace SeasonBEREHHIRREN  RER
NFrhE&ET ([WESEE]) -

Ace SeasonR EMI B AR A (#1 [Ace
SeasonE B ) FZRBAREMABH K
TERHEPHELAMBEER REM-
ABRERBEGR WESHEESAEH
REAERPEREDEBREBE S

“Zs

& o
=

TERBABE-_E—N\F=ZA=+—81t
FEMRCTEREBBEIAORE  UER
I 88 H HAAce Seasonfs B H) 0] 3% Bl & & K
BEMAFEE:

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) WE BB KRS (HiE15) 1,709
Intangible assets (Note 17) EmREE (H[E17) 5,094
Inventories FE 52,185
Trade and other receivables BUCE 5 BR 3k N H i fE W 5RIE 11,425
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREFEY 19,502
Trade and other payables FET B 5 IR R H A0 50E (5,112)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30 FIEFRIEEFE (MTFE30) (840)
Amount due fo holding company JERHERR R B FRIE (92,724)
Total identifiable net liabilities AR EEFE (8,761)
NC] IS 423
Assignment of the shareholder’s loan BERRER 92,724
The fair value of consideration transfer EEREMATE
— Cash —-Re 85,000
Goodwill (Note 16) 2R (EE16) 614

FESEREERERAT —T— )T EH
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34.

—E-AF=A=+—H

BUSINESS ACQUISITION - Continved

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

34, £ WE-—#

EARE—HNRBARCEERES T
T

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration HeRE (85,000

Cash consideration paid as BEFEFRSZ

a deposit in prior year offEeRE 75,000

Cash and bank balances acquired CWBER© MRITHERR 19,502
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEHHREREN

included in cash flows from investing activities R& RIE & FE YR AFE 9,502

The fair value of frade and other receivables is approximately
HK$11,425,000. None of these receivables have been
impaired and it is expected that the full confractual amounts can
be collected.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment is approximately

HK$1,709,000.

The fair value of intangible assets is approximately

HK$5,094,000.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$340,000 have
been charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive

income for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group has recognised NCI af its proportionate share of nef
assets.

The goodwill of HK$614,000, which is not deductible for tax
purposes, comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the acquired
business with the existing operation of the Group.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As referred to in Note 8(b), on 30 January 2019, the Group
disposed of the Disposal Group which engaged in manufacturing
and sale of OEM toys. The net liabilities of OEM toys segment at

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

35. HEHBLQF

A 35 40 R PR

—E-hAhF=A=1+—H

P EES(bIATI - R —FE—NF—A=+H"
AEEHERSERREBRETARERH
ENHESRE - RREVETASBRHE

the date of disposal were as follows: HHZzBEFEMNT:
30 January
2019
—F-hEF
—A=+H
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment Y- BERFE 74,369
Inventories FE 18,882
Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayment  FEUE 5 AR 5% K2 L 8 U 50 I8
Re RENFKIE 31,621
Cash and cash equivalents BeME2EEY 2,861
Tax recoverable A B 7 18 555
Trade and other payables & B 5 BRI EAth & 5 5K 1B (109,866)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (51,310)
Deferred tax liabilities REMIBEE (14,436)
Net liabilities BfEFHE (47,324)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss BB EGTZELER 35,705
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in loss HEWE ARz e (FFA
for the year from discontinued operations FaEmkHEMEPERRRZ
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ERIEREEB2FAEIR)
other comprehensive income 11,620
Total consideration BRE 1
Satisfied by: B :
Cash & 1
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHERAFH:
Cash consideration BERE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of Tt &3 & RIRITHEEH (2,861)
(2,860)

TEERERRERARAT T/ =

T-hEH
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36.

—E-AF=A=+—H

RESERVES
The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are set out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies Llaw (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Arficles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able fo pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment fransactions in Note
4(g) to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible loan notfes equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan notes relafing o
the equity component (i.e. opfion o convert the debt into share
capifal)

Warrant reserve
Warrant reserve represents the amount of proceeds on issue of
warrants.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy sef out in Note 4(n) fo the financial
statements.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018/2019
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36. RESERVES - Continved
The Group — Continved

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve represents change in fair values of
availableforsale financial assets.

land and buildings revaluation reserve

Lland and buildings revaluation reserve represents the cumulative
net change in the fair value of land and buildings held at the end
of reporting period and are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 4(e) fo the financial statements.

Accumulated losses

It represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in

profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
MBI
31 March 2019 —Z—AF=A=+—H
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36. RESERVES - Continved 36. =
The Company ¥ NN
Convertible
Share loan  Investment
Share option  nofes equify  revaluation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRREER
RERES REEf
ROEE BRRERE it it RiEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TAT
At T April 2017 RZE-tENA-H 363,319 3,237 = (8,000) (660,292) (301,736)
Loss for the year FRER S = = - (195,030 {195,030)
Revaluation of availableforsale HEMERE 2 EfR
invesiments = = = (48,225) = (48,225)
Reclassification adjustment upon RAfHERERER
impairment of availableforsale ENHBRE
invesiments - - - 56,225 - 56,225
Issuance of new shares, BOEkRG
net of transaction cost (BRRFHKA) 52415 - - - - 52415
lapse of share options BRIELN - 13,237) - - 3,237 -
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NE
ZR=t-H 415734 = = = (852,085) (436,351
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (80,230) (80,230)
Revaluation of availableforsale HEMERE 2 Ef
investments - - - - - -
Equity-setfled share-based payment INEREE RN A
expense ARONTREY - 15,742 - - - 15,742
Issuance of new shares, BOERG
net of fransaction cost (HBRRFHKA) 8,733 - - - - 8,733
Insurance of converfible loan nofes BFIUARERZE - - 19,835 - - 19,835
At 31 March 2019 R-B-NE
ZR=t-H 424, 467 15,742 19,835 = (932,315 (472,271)
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37. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019
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—E-hAhF=A=1+—H

37. ER AR I BRI R

POSITION
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M e THET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2= 18 442,751 131,809
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEHABRZ
TREE 38,905 -
Availableforsale investments AEHERE = 143,095
481,656 274,904
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FENRIA 476 406
Tox recoverable A Y B 18 9 9
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBEEZEED 5,619 151
6,104 566
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued charges B & 1~ KT8 K &5 & 3,242 1,690
Net current assets/(liabilities) FBEE/(BE)FHE 2,862 (1,124)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRESEE 484,518 273,780
Non-Current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible loan notes AR ERERE 41 100,891 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE 3,767 -
104,658 S
Net assets EEZRE 379,860 273,780
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 31 852,131 710,131
Reserves {1 36 (472,271) (436,351)
el 8 379,860 273,780
On behalf of the directors RERES
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
TR =R
Director Director
EE EZ

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR
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38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material

confingent liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

At the reporfing date, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

38. JAREE

39. &iE
SERERR

R-B-NEFR-_ZB-N\F=A=+—8"
AREESEEAKARAB-

RBEHR  RETAIRELLBEOEN 2
ARZEEENRERENT :

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The Group as lessee AEBEREBAA

Not later than one year TBiE—F 9,350 6,983

Later than one year but not later than BB —FELREF
five years 2,282 2,393
11,632 Q,376

The Group leases a number of shops and office premises under
operating lease arrangements. The lease terms are ranging from
one fo three years (2018: one to five years).

Cerfain leasing arrangements have been subject to confingent
rent by reference to monthly revenue throughout the leasing

—N\F:—FERF)-

periods. The minimum guaranteed rental has been used to HEHeRE-

calculate the above commitments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had fransactions and balances with
related parties, some of which are also deemed to be connected
parties pursuant to the Listing Rules. Besides, fransactions between
the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

(a) During the year, the Group enfered info the following
material transactions with related parties:

Types of transaction

REE|R

Related party relationship
FHEALHE

Companies controlled by a close Purchase (Note)
family member of a director of a subsidiary
of the Company

HAAR—ENBRAR—REEZ
RIS 2 ZHE AR

BE (M)

Companies controlled by a close Service expense
family member of a director of a subsidiary
of the Company

HAAR—ENBAR—REEZ
MR B 2 Z R AR

AR5 5 32

Companies controlled by a close Rental expense
family member of a director of a subsidiary
of the Company

HARA—ENBAR—REEZ
MRS 2 2R A

ikanbd

Companies controlled by a close

family member of a director of a subsidiary  costs
of the Company
HARA—ENBAR —REEZ fft B RN

BT 2 Z B AR

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR

40.

Research and developments

A 35 40 R PR

31 March 2019 —ZE—AF=A=+—H

BFHEALRS

FR-ANEECEBBEAL (B0 TRE
FARAKELSBEREALETRIRE
ERAERR - UESN A DB R EH B A F 2
MR ZEREGEE ARK S WERAHE
M

FRAAEEEEREALIIZINAT

(a)
BEARS:
Transaction amount
REeH

2019 2018
—®-nE —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
71,508 64,427
2,880 2,133
1,800 1,200
439 4,472
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - Continved

(a)

(b)

— Continved

Transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
business at prices and terms based on mutual agreement.

Note: The related party transactions constitute connected
fransaction or confinuing connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel includes the directors,
whose emoluments is disclosed in Note 14(a) and key
management of the Company during the year. The
emoluments of the key management excluding directors
were as follows:

40. EBEALIRSE &
() —#&
RHGEBEEBBETFZESTHEN
B R AEFRHETT -

et REAMEALRSHER EHAR
ETHABRENBER S AT

b) EEEZESHM

FRAEEEBZEREARRES (A
FENAPRE 1 40 W) REEERE -
EEEER (RES/MFMT:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Shortterm benefits 52 HARE A 900 1,080
Postemployment benefits B BB 12 18 A 30 36
930 1,116
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 8 October 2018 [the “Issue Date”], the Company
issued initially 8% straight bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 with conditional conversion rights (the
"Conversion Rights”]. The bonds mature two years from the lssue
Date at their principal amount, or subject fo the safisfaction of
cerfain condifions precedent in relation o the Conversion Rights
(the "CB Conditions Precedent’), can be converted into ordinary
shares of the Company af the holder's option (the “Conversion
Option") at the fixed rate of HK$O.1 per share. On 22
November 2018 (the “Change Date”), the Conditions Precedent
have been fulfilled and the straight bonds were changed to
6% convertible loan notes embedded with the rights of early
redemption by the Company (the “Redemption Rights’). The
convertible loan notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Further defails of the convertible loan notes were set outf in the
Company's announcements dated 8 October 2018 and 22
November 2018.

The convertible loan notes contain the Redemption Rights that
allow the Company as the issuer to redeem the convertible loan
nofes at par together with accrued inferesfs at any fime during
the life of the convertible loan notes. The redemption price is
substantially equal to the amortised cost of the liability component
of the convertible loan notes. Accordingly, the Redemption Rights
are considered to be ‘closely related” to the liability component of
the convertible loan notes, and the Redemption Right is therefore
nof separafely recognised from the liability component of the
convertible loan nofes.

The Management considered the terms of the convertible loan
notes met the 'fixedforfixed’ criterion. Therefore, the Conversion
Option is recognised as equity component of the convertible loan
notes.

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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41. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES - Continved

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were defermined at the Change Date.
The fair value of the liability component, included in non-current
financial liabilities, was calculated using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible loan notes. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders” equity net of deferred income taxes.

The convertible loan notes recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

41.

MR ERTE -2

BENSLERBREEONATFERE
BET BESBINIFE(GTAFRBE

BAE) KA %”TE#—HWX,\?K%ETFE’J mi5

MEAE KRS (ﬁ’ﬂ%&“ EIE D K (E
B)FFABCR#E s (BRBRERAEN)
RERE Eﬁ*ﬂﬁvﬁ%ﬁﬁ WA BRRERRE

TR T HREE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
FAETT
Equity component of convertible loan nofes REFBHZABRREREENESID

on the Change Date 19,835

Equity component of convertible loan nofes as ZAZ+—HNBRREREBENERILS
at 31 March 19,835
liability component on the Change Date A& 2EANBENRD 94,288
Inferest expense (Note ) ﬂ BERX (H3E9) 6,603
Liability component at 31 March (Note 44(b)) —A=+—HMAES D (MzE44(b)) 100,891

Inferest expense on the convertible bonds is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective inferest rate of
9% to the liability component.

157,000 for
the straight bonds was also recognised in profit or loss (Note 9).

Prior to the Change Date, inferest expense of HK$1,
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42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R

The table below defails changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

1 March 2019

L=

H=+—~H

42. REMEEH 2B EHK

TERHINAKERBREZHELZ AEE
B EEReRFRSEH MEFHEL

ZRBEERSREXRKESREONA

SESABRERERTIER
RengzafE-

MERSZ

Convertible
loan notes Borrowings
CIE: 3.0
BRE EE
HK$'000
FHET
(Note 28)
(B7E28)
At 1 April 2017 —tFMmA—H = 63,788
Change from cash flows: RenEd
Proceeds from borrowings EEESHE - 52,248
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE - (15,419
Inferest paid BN A - (3,451
Other changes: HAh B & = Q7,166
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 B = (226)
Finance costs & AN - 3,451
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-—NF=H=+—H = 100,391
Change from cash flows: Rene#
Proceeds from issue of convertible BITRAIMRE RER G IA
loan notes 120,000 -
Proceeds from borrowings BB IA = 5,612
Repayment of borrowings EREE = (41,281)
Inferest paid ERFE - (3,799
120,000 60,923
Other changes: Hah &g :
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIELEER 2 WH (2,410 -
Equity component on the Change Date EA“@J HERm#ERE S (19,835) —
Deferred tax RIERIA (4,624 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE R A - (51,310)
Finance costs & A 7,760 3,799
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-—NF=A=+T—H 100,891 13,412

PEEEREERERAR

—E-N\ZE-NER



Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRME

31 March 2019

—E-AF=A=+—H

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
comprising the borrowings disclosed in Nofe 28 and convertible
loan notes disclosed in Note 41, less of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposit, available-forsale investiments
and financial assets at FVTPL, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed
in Nofes 31 and 36 respectively.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capifal. Based on recommendations of management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, issue of new share as well as new debts or
redemption of existing debis.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

43. EXEBEE

AEEEEEANB R EERNEEESN
FERLE RRREHOHL AE MR
BATRHE S W RENEREREI

AEBNEARBEBEEGFRE (B2ER
M8 BEM B E LM 41 B R AR A%
EXREBRRS LR EEY DEPRT
FREAEHERE) RIZAFE AR
ZEMEE URARBHEE AEEER
(BRI M EE31 R3O BT 2 I A K
) e

AEEHEEETHRRAEARE - ERIL
R — W BEEEEEEEAKAR KA
ERETNARENAR - RIFEEENES
AEBEREBIKTBE  BITHBRIALIE
BRBORBEL FEEEENEARR
e

RBERRZEERBLRNT

2019 2018

—E—-hF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Debts &% 114,303 100,391
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY (54,940) (57,857)
Pledged bank deposit BEHEMRITHER = (494)
Availableforsale investments AHEERE - (166,855)
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABRZEREE (228,022) (65,867)
Net debfs EFE (168,659 (190,682)
ESlL) W2 393,440 274,150
Net debts to equity rafio 75 R B o L 3 N/AT3E A N/A 138
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it fo a variety of financial risks:

Notes to the Financial Statements
MBI
31 March 2019 —Z—AF=A=+—H

44 BHEABEE

5t %5 J B X 3
AEBEZEZBEEAH TR BERR FE

credit risk, liquidity risk, inferest rate risk and foreign exchange BB RENE SRR - F R DA R IMNE
risk. % o

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily atiributable to its
trade and other receivables and listed debt invesiments.
The Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures fo these credif risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take info account information specific
fo the customers as well as perfaining fo the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
trade cusfomers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are
due within 30-60 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested to seffle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obfain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characterisfics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but fo a lesser extent.
At the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 21% (2018: 12%) and 56%
(2018: 42%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the OBM toys and Chinese health
products business segment.

ZERBRIINARENYHEERREE

HERBRANT ©
o) EERRK

AEENEERRTIEZREHEEKE
ZREMEBIRTAR EHEHFRE -
EEEEMENEERR LEHE
EEMAZNZEEERR -

AREWE SRR ME HRAEER
BRETEESRNBEEYSETHE
FIEENE - EFHEIEHERE
BEDNHS R ER LR RBRFOEN
RN YEBBEENENERRER
REMBHRBERENER -AKHE
SUHEFRPHMBINETHER
B X (MER) BEEEERRE
R RBEZEFTHELREE AL
=T ERTHRIH -BREHRE
B=ERBEARNZ BB A
BREREEERER T ERE—D
ZEE-AEE-—RIEREFUKER
Ef e

AEENERERRIZZEE P @A
REMTE TPRETERERZ
BEHRBTEXEEERR BRE
RE-RBEEHR - BRRAE mE
RETANPERBREB DT
BUEBESEFREBE LB Z =T —

“E-NFEAZTDIREBRAZ
E+AR(ZE-NF:BHZO+)
DHIREBEARERATERAAE
FRRE SAKEFEETEES
R
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

Credit risk — Continved

44 BBEREE -#
FBEBEE &

EERR—#&

(a)
The credit risk of the Group's financial assefs (which AEBGRMEE (BIEREIKEZIRR
comprise gross trade receivables, loan receivables, other BRER EMEWRBNUNRES R
receivables and cash and cash equivalent] arises from ReSBYWRRINEERRKAY
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal FHEXN ZRNABRBAFRZEL
fo the carrying amounts of these instruments. BEHBRMEE-
(Trade receivables) ([EY B B AR5
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBRBEENERBEHEERAR Y
at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs, which is calculated AEAFHRANEHREEFENESTE
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit AERKESRRCERREE BN
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss AEBEZBAEEEELRYERT
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance RAEFSsHBETRERNEEREAEZE
based on past due status is not further distinguished RS AR E o BERETER
between the Group's different customer bases. AEETAEFPER  HE—FED -
The following table provides information about the Group's TRIEHEBAEER _ZE-—NF=
exposure fo credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at R=+—B#EKRE SEFRAEG 2
31 March 2019: EERRBRREBREEBERIER:
Expected Gross
loss rate  carrying amount Loss allowance
RHBRX BEREE BERERE
(%) (HKS$) (HK$)
(B7) (B7)
Current (nof past due) e (REeE) 0.03% 34,369 10
1-30 days past due BH—-AFE=1H 0.37% 4,859 18
31-90 days past due BAH=+—-RAZEATH 0.65% 616 4
90 days - 1 year past due BENTRE—F 65.62% 3,284 2,155
Over 1 year past due BE—FNUE 100.00% 16,298 16,298
59,426 18,485

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted fo reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
condifions and the group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

Credit risk = Continved
(Trade receivables) — Continved

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment. At
31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$16,531,000
was defermined fo be impaired. The ageing analysis of
trade debtors that were not considered fo be impaired was

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

44, B REBERE -
BEEBEE -7

(a)

EERR—&

(ERE SN —%&
R-ZZE-N\FHA—HA REEBRE
BHELBREREZTBRER TSR -
RZE-NF=A=+—B EKE=E
FER—TRNAET=BE—TELE
ERBE - BRARLERENE 5 E

as follows: WER R BRI AT AN T -
2018
—ZE-N\F
HK$
BT
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR B HA TR AR (E 51,198
Within 30 days past due BH=TARN 9,622
31 to 90 days past due BE=+—BEN+H 4,888
Over 90 days past due BHATBEMNRLE 4,723
70,431

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
fo a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent hisfory of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
fo a number of independent customers that had o good
track record with the group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were sfill considered fully recoverable.
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M HRME
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

—E-AF=A=+—H

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(al

Credit risk = Continved

(Trade receivables) — Continved

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

44, IR ERE -

IS bR B & -4

@ EE

A =1
&b — 42

(BUEZHEN) —#&

FREMEKREZERNEBERER

receivables during the year is as follows: e
2019 2018
—Z2-NF —FN\F
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Balance af the beginning of RIBFE B GFHERIFE 3057
last financial year under HKAS 39 R £~ BF R AR 16,531 14,968
Impact of initial application of HKFRS @ BRERBEMBRSE
HRFEIRNTE = -
Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year 4 #4858 5 45 &4 16,531 14,968
Impairment losses recognised during the year A E HERBEEE 3,505 1,731
Amounts written off during the year FAMOR K 25 (667) (286)
Elimination through disposal of subsidiaries BEBLEN BRI E (1,000) =
Exchange allowance PEE 34 1 5 116 118
Balance at 31 March R=ZA=+—HWES 18,485 16,531
EWE 5 R REARENIA TERE

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of frade receivables contributed to the increase in

the loss allowance during 2019:

- Increase in days past due over 30 days resulted in

an increase in loss allowance of HK$2,626,000;

- Origination of new frade receivables net of those

seffled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of

HK$879,000;

- A write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying

amount of HK$667,000 resulted in a decrease in

loss allowance of HK$667,000; and

- Derecognition of trade receivables with a gross

carrying amount of HK$10,469,000 upon disposal

of subsidiaries resulted in a decrease in loss

allowance of HK$1,000,000.
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued 44. HGRBRER -4
Financial risk factors — Continued MHEBEE-Z
Credit risk — Continved () EERRBR—&
(loans receivable) (EWREF)
The loans receivable have been reviewed by the ERECEHNERENR ABBTE
Management fo assess impairment which are based on the ERA(ERA BAEBEREH
evaluation of ECls by assessing financial background of BEATHBIE=7)NUBERIL
the borrowers (the “Borrowers”), who are independent third EREHEEFEIGRE 2R
parties of the Group and its connected person, including TRUERAFFFDENRFERE
but not limited to the fair value of properties held by the RAAZEHEANRA -
Borrowers and the Borrowers” wholly-owned companies.
The movements in the impairment allowance of loans ERWE R Z RERBEEMT
receivable were as follows:
2019
“E-N\E
lifefime ECLnot ~ Lifetime ECL Impairment
12:month ECL  creditimpaired ~ creditimpaired allowance
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) [Stage 3)  under HKAS 39 Total
AR CL:3
ERRH ERRM
1288 HBHEEEE RHGEEEE FHREHEA
BRAEEEE (BREEHE) (CREME)  H9RET
(5-KR) (B=ER) (%=ZER) HESE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn FTEn Thn FTER TEn
At the beginning of the yeor R S S S S =
Effect of inificl adoption of RANERIHREED
HKFRS 9 EOReTE = = = - -
Recognised during the year ~ REREHER 675 4,434 - - 5,109
675 4,434 - - 5,109

The following significant changes in the loans receivable
from money lending business contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during the year:

e Significant increase in credit risk of loans receivable
with a gross carrying amount of HK$35,000,000
has resulted in an increase in loss allowance of

HK$4,434,000.

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

Credit risk — Continved

44, IR ERE -
BEEREE -7

EERR—&

(a)
Oiher receivables H M JEN N E
The other receivables have been reviewed by the EIRE D 60 E M ERIE  LAE R
Management fo assess impairment which are based on the FHEHFIOMBEERAERNEHRE
evaluation of ECLs by assessing financial background of EEEHRE-
the counterparties.
The movements in the impairment allowance of other Hi U HRIA 2 BEREEBNT
receivables were as follows:
2019
ZB-NF
Lifetime ECLnot ~ Lifetime ECL Impairment
12-month ECL ~ creditimpaired ~ creditimpaired allowance
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) Stage 3)  under HKAS 39 Total
(Note 4(h)(ii]] ~ (Note 4(h)(ii]] ~ (Note 4(h)(i)
GLid: %A
EHnM ERRM
128 RHGEFE RHECEFR FBHEHEY
ROGERE (EFERE) (SFEERE)  H39RET
(B-KR) (RZBER)  (BZER) AERE @t
(HEEEAM)Gi)  (HEEEA)G)  (BEEE4(h)fi)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TAn Thn TAR TAn
At the beginning of the year ~ FAE 4] - - - 23,464 23,464
Fffect of initial adoption of KRB AR BREENEOR
HKFRS 9 LEE - - 23,464 (23,464) -
Exchange difference EREE - - (1,508) - (1,508)
- - 21,956 - 21,956

Note: Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of other receivables is a provision for individually
impaired other receivables of HK$21,956,000 with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$21,956,000
(2018: HK$23,464,000)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(b)

1 March 2019

P 355 48 R Bt &
—NE=ZA=+—H

44, B REBERE -
BEEBEE -7

Liquidity risk b) mEBELE
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEEANBYEEERAERAMNEA
responsible for their own cash management, including ¢ EE RIESRESAKRECHKE
the shortterm investment of cash surpluses and the raising EEEFUARNTEHNIRE TR (1
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject fo fﬁ%%ﬁit S TR L EE NIRRT
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings RARGSARRESSHE) KK
exceed cerfain predefermined levels of authority. The Group .LL%%@ZTgbﬁﬁﬁ,l%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
maintains availability of funding through an adequate ERWES - EREEEBBARYE
amount of available credit facilities. The Management aims BREE #FES2BEE-
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available.
The following table details the remaining confractual TRHAVNANEBEARNRBITE RIEDT
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's AeRmBERREHRZFREOH
and the Company’s derivative and non-derivative financial R RESOARTHERERE (B
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted RBREAHMEFTEX(MAEFE)E
cash flows [including interest payments computed using BEHRRITMXRGFERAAFEL)
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current AR AREB R ARBARERNZRZ
af the end of reporting period) and the earliest dafe the BFEHFE-
Group and the Company can be required fo pay.
Tofal
confractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow ondemand  Over 1 year
BHXRAR —ERH
REE RIRELHE EZX BB-F
2019 ZE-NF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHER FEL TR
Trade and other payables and ENEHERR
accrued charges At ERFEREFER 92,048 92,048 92,048 -
Borrowings &8 13,412 13,412 13,412 -
Convertible loan notes TRBEEREE 100,891 123,676 3,676 120,000
Amounts due fo related companies B B BE R BIFUR 89,737 89,737 89,737 =
296,088 318,873 198,873 120,000
TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

Liquidity risk — Continved

44, IR ERE -

MEREBEE -2
b) ABETRR &

Total

contractual Within

Camying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand Over 1 year

ABRFR —FR%
FHE Henses JEEX HiB—F
2018 ZT-N\E HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTEI THT THL

Trade and other payables and ERESRRR

accrued charges HEtEMTIEREGER 129,024 129,024 129,024 -
Borrowings EE 100,391 100,391 100,391 -
Amounts due fo related companies &I B BAE 1} BB 88,290 88,290 88,290 -
317,705 317,705 317,705 -

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set ouf in the
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using confractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained
in above table. Taking info account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates sef out in the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(b)

(c)

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

44, B REBERE -
BEEBEE -7

Liquidity risk — Confinued b) RBETLRER-—&
Total More than ~ More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
BRRFR BB-fF BEME
REE HReRELAH —£x BIRAWE BIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL FET TET TEL
At 31 March 2019 RZBE-NF=ZA=1+—H 13,412 13,412 13,412 - -
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1+—H 100,391 100,624 100,624 = =
Inferest rate risk (c) A==

The Group's inferest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued af variable rafes and af
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rates and ferms of repayment of the Group's borrowings
are disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. The
Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
fo hedge ifs exposure tfo inferest rate risk. However, the
Management will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

TEERREERERAR —T)/ T -NFR

AEEZMERBREERABE -1
FBNEREEMERELZEBEED R
SAREERERSRENERAR MA
FEMNERAR AEEEENHNE R
B RN TR M 28 ] FR
AEEBERMTERATATESOY
HEHMERRER-AM BEEEHRE
IR E BE P E AN KRE L
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(c)

Interest rate risk — Continved

The following table defails the interest rate profile of the
Group's fofal debts at the end of reporting period.

At fixed rate REER®

Bank overdraft RITEX

Bank loan RITEH

Convertible loan notes HRRERTE

Other borrowings HEiEE

At variable rate BEBRE

Bank loans RITER

Trust receipt loans ERREER

Net fixed rate borrowing as RETEME 2 EEFEN
a percentage of fofal debis EBREZADL

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in inferest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase,/decrease
the Group's loss before income tax by approximately

HK$59,000 (2018: HK$309,000).
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44, IR ERE -
BEEREE -7

(c)
TERHVRBEARAEEEH LT
PAIES
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
Effective Effective
inferest rafe inferest rafe
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BERFI= ERFI%
% TAL % TET
- - 13 5,749
- - 13 /7,848
6 100,891 = =
5.6 1,712 = =
102,603 13,597
6.14 11,700 6.63 50,420
- - 3.96 11,366
11,700 61,786
114,303 75,383
90% 18%

MR E e — A

R-ZE-NF=A=1+—8 F&iH
R—REF/THRAITEER M5
A EMEHRE NE B AKERR
FReBAEESEm RO OEE
NTERT(ZE-NF:=Z=+BAT
BIL) e



Notes to the Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk — Continved

31 March 2019

B ERERME
“E-NF=ZRA=+—8H

44, B REBERE -

ISR B B & — 4

R @ —AF

(c)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined | SRR R 3 4T TH R AR N R B 1 R
assuming that the change in interest rafes had occurred SHRE#EL BEKEANZARF
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to EZITERETESRT A ZFIRE
the exposure to inferest rate risk for both derivative and pMET A HEEHNAKRRER
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that BT —E®RE R ZHEA - F
date. The 50 basis points increase/decrease represents RARBELE A BEHNT(E %D
the Management's assessment of a reasonably possible MEER -_T— \FHER -
change in interest rates over the period until the next end
of reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2018.
Foreign exchange risk (d) SR B
The Group is exposed fo foreign exchange risk arising from AEEEE KA TREE 2 IMNERE -
various currency exposures, primarily with respect fo United TEFRET([ET])) RARKE (TA
States dollars {"US$") and Renminbi ("RMB”). Foreign R¥]) SNERBE KB BINETF 2 R
exchange risk arises from future commercial fransactions, REERS BEHERBEENEBEUR
recognised assefs and liabilities and net investments in REF - AEE B A& SR E SN
foreign operations. The Group currently does not hedge its bEE R 22
foreign exchange exposure.
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end TREAAREER H®EHRKB AT
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast RPHENRBER ZINEEE I Z
fransactions or recognised assets or liabilities denominated E¥IEEHREENBBEZINE
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity [ Bz o
fo which they relate.
2019 2018
—B-hE —Z-N\F
RMB'000 US$'000 RMB'000 Us$'000
ARBT T FTEx AREBTR FET
Trade and other receivables FEWRE 5 EH R
Hit IR 2,817 3,775 = 1,202
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBReEEY 3,322 436 716 83
Trade and other payable ERESHERR
H{th B 50R (9,701) (6,633 2) -
Borrowings EBE (1,463 (1,500) = (400)
Overall net exposure BRRRAETE (5,025) (3,922) 714 885

TEEERRERARAT T/ T -NER
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(d)

44, IR ERE -
BEEBEE &

Foreign exchange risk — Continved (d)  HMERER—ZF
The following fable indicates the approximate change in TRETAEBENAFEEBERNER
the Group's loss for the year in response to reasonably SERNHREHRAEARR 2 IMNEE
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which KA e B F 5| Bz BN EE -
the Group has significant exposure af the end of reporting
period.
2019 2018
—B-hE —B-N\F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase,/ Increase,/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease] (decrease)
in foreign in loss in foreign in loss
exchange rates for the year  exchange rates for the year
HEER  AFEEHR HNEER  AFEER
/(PR 8/ (BS) R/ (TH) 0/ 0hd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FERT
RMB AR 5% 251 5% 36
(5%) 251) 15% 136)
Us$ £ 5% 196 5% 1
(5% (196) (5% (1)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to
each of the group entities; exposure to currency risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular inferest rafes, remain constant.

The stated changes represent the Management's assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the end of next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollars and the United Stafes
dollars would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the United States dollars against
Hong Kong dollars. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the group entities” profit or loss for the year and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
franslated into Hong Kong dollars af the exchange rate
ruling at the end of reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

2018.
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45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45 IZERIEBSsWLREERSRE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities as recognised at 31 March 2019 and 2018

EHME

AEERZZE-—NEFEZZE—-—N\F=H
—t—BHERZeREELEHREEZE

may be categorised as follows: HESENT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBIEKAFTEZERMEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREBAEMRSEEY) 377,384 -
Loans and receivables B3 EWGRIE
[including cash and cash equivalents) (BEReEMAEEFEY) - 187,623
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFETAEG e REE 228,022 65,867
Availablefor-sale investments AHERE = 166,855
605,406 420,345
Financial liabilities kot =R
Financial liabilities measured DB AT EZEMEE
at amortised cost 296,088 317,705
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments THRHFINARFEINEZERMITEEAT

carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

level 1:
identical assets or liabilities;

level 2:

Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for

Inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

[i.e. derived from prices); and

level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

are not based

EERZ W

E—A:

oy

E=4

HREEXRENEETS
Tz wE CREAR)

BE-AMBRBEIRE
EXAEATER (AMER) X
& (BURBER) BRME

ZBE R

REEXRBBZTABRED
BHE (TABERBIER) 28

T}§o

THERREERERAT —T /= hER
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45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45 1IRERIEBSsWELREERSREAE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY - Continved BEME_&
2019
—E-hEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E— EZR E=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZ
EREE 228,022 - =
228,022 - _
2018
—E-)N\F
level 1 level 2 level 3
E— E_H B=4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFABRRZ
CREE 65,867 - -
Availablefor-sale investments A ERE 166,855 - -
232,722 = =
There were no transfers between levels during the current and RAFERBEFE SERZEHNESE
prior years. o
46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46. Bt iR 2 #t &
These financial statements were approved and authorised for WERBBRER_FT—NFAAZ+H
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2019. EERoU A NRIRET|E-
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